ALLSTATE CORP Form 424B5 December 02, 2013

> Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5) Registration Statement No. 333-181059

Prospectus Supplement to Prospectus Dated April 30, 2012

## The Allstate Corporation LEOPARDS \*

## Each representing a 1/1,000th Interest in a Share of Fixed Rate Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock

(Liquidation Preference \$25 per share)

We may offer to sell, from time to time, LEOPARDS (the "*Depositary Shares*"), each of which will represent a 1/1,000th interest in a share of a series of Fixed Rate Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, \$1.00 par value per share, with a liquidation preference of \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share) (the "*Preferred Stock*"), of The Allstate Corporation, deposited with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as depositary (the "*Depositary*"). The Depositary Shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts. As a holder of Depositary Shares, you will be entitled to all proportional rights and preferences of the Preferred Stock, including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights. You must exercise these rights through the Depositary.

The general terms of the Depositary Shares and the Preferred Stock of each series are set forth in this prospectus supplement. The specific terms of each offering of Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock will be set prior to the time of sale and described in one or more pricing supplements. You should read this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the applicable pricing supplement and any other offering material carefully.

We may sell all or a portion of the Depositary Shares offered pursuant to this prospectus supplement over a period of time and from time to time through Incapital LLC (the "*purchasing agent*") for resale. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement, the public offering price for the Depositary Shares will be equal to \$25, plus accrued dividends, if any, from the most recent dividend payment date. The applicable pricing supplement will specify the public offering price, agent discounts and commissions and net proceeds for any particular offering of Depositary Shares. We have not set a date for termination of this offering.

Investing in the Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock involves risks. See a discussion of certain risks in the "Risk Factors" section beginning on page S-10 of this prospectus supplement and the periodic and other reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission that should be carefully considered before investing in the Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, any pricing supplement or any other offering material. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Unless specified in the applicable pricing supplement, we intend to apply to list the Depositary Shares on the New York Stock Exchange (the "*NYSE*") under a symbol to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. We generally expect to list the Depositary Shares relating to a particular series of Preferred Stock only after we have completed the offering of that series. There is no guarantee, however, that we will be able

to list the Depositary Shares relating to any series of Preferred Stock. We do not expect that there will be any separate public trading market for the shares of Preferred Stock except as represented by the Depositary Shares.

## **Incapital LLC**

Prospectus Supplement dated December 2, 2013

The Incapital LEOPARDS program provides for the Long Execution of Preferred and Related Debt Securities

\*

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

	Page
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT	S-1
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY	S-2
RISK FACTORS	S-10
CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES	
AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS	S-17
USE OF PROCEEDS	S-18
DESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERRED STOCK	S-19
DESCRIPTION OF THE DEPOSITARY SHARES	S-31
LEGAL OWNERSHIP AND BOOK-ENTRY ISSUANCE	S-33
CERTAIN MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	S-35
CERTAIN CONSIDERATIONS APPLICABLE TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS	S-42
SUPPLEMENTAL PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	S-44
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	S-46
THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION FILINGS	S-46
LEGAL MATTERS	S-47
EXPERTS	S-47

## PROSPECTUS

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	ii
THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION	1
THE TRUSTS	1
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK	
DIVIDENDS	2
RISK FACTORS	3
USE OF PROCEEDS	3
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	3
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	17
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	21
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	23
DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND STOCK PURCHASE UNITS	25
DESCRIPTION OF TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES	26
DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED SECURITIES GUARANTEES	28
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	31
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	33
THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION FILINGS	33
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	34
LEGAL OPINIONS	34
EXPERTS	34
ERISA MATTERS	34
S-i	

#### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

References to "we", "us" and "our" in this prospectus supplement are references to The Allstate Corporation, and not to any of our subsidiaries, unless we state otherwise or the context otherwise requires.

This document consists of two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes certain terms of this offering, the Preferred Stock and the Depositary Shares. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which contains more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering.

If the information set forth in this prospectus supplement differs in any way from the information set forth in the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on the information set forth in this prospectus supplement. You should read this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the applicable pricing supplement, together with the documents identified under the headings "Where You Can Find More Information" and "The Allstate Corporation Filings" in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

We may offer Depositary Shares and the underlying series of Preferred Shares from time to time. Each time we offer Depositary Shares, we will attach a pricing supplement to this prospectus supplement, which will provide to you the specific terms of the Depositary Shares and the series of underlying Preferred Stock being offered and the terms of the offering. In connection with each offering, we may also add, update or change information in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Information in the pricing supplement or any other offering material that you have been provided will replace any inconsistent information in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. In those circumstances, you should not rely on the information in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, a pricing supplement and any related free writing prospectus issued or authorized by us. This prospectus supplement may be used only for the purpose for which it has been prepared. No one is authorized to give information other than that contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, in the documents referred to in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and which are made available to the public and in a pricing supplement or any related free writing prospectus issued or authorized by us. We have not, and the purchasing agent has not, authorized any other person to provide you with different or additional information. If anyone provides you with different or additional information, you should not rely on it.

We are not, and the purchasing agent is not, making an offer to sell the Depositary Shares or any series of underlying Preferred Stock in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, any pricing supplement or any related free writing prospectus issued or authorized by us is accurate as of any date other than the date of the applicable document. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date. Neither this prospectus supplement, nor the accompanying prospectus, nor any pricing supplement, nor any related free writing prospectus issued or authorized by us constitutes an offer, or an invitation on our behalf or on behalf of the purchasing agent, to subscribe for and purchase any of the Depositary Shares or the series of underlying Preferred Stock and may not be used for or in connection with an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

#### PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

The following summary highlights selected information contained elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and may not contain all of the information that is important to you. We encourage you to read this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the applicable pricing supplement, together with the documents identified under the headings "Where You Can Find More Information" and "The Allstate Corporation Filings" in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, in their entirety. You should pay special attention to the "Risk Factors" section of this prospectus supplement and the "Risk Factors" section in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and any Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q filed subsequent to such Annual Report, and in any of our periodic and other reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") prior to the termination of this offering.

#### The Allstate Corporation

The Allstate Corporation is a holding company that conducts its business principally through its subsidiaries Allstate Insurance Company ("*AIC*") and Allstate Life Insurance Company and their affiliates (collectively, including The Allstate Corporation, "*Allstate*"). Allstate is primarily engaged in the personal property and casualty insurance business and the life insurance, retirement and investment products business. Customers can access Allstate products and services such as auto insurance and homeowners insurance through 11,200 exclusive Allstate agencies and financial representatives in the United States and Canada, as well as through independent agencies, call centers and the internet. Allstate is the largest publicly held personal lines insurer in the United States and the 2<sup>nd</sup> largest personal property and casualty insurer in the United States based on 2011 statutory direct premiums earned. In addition, according to A.M. Best, it is the nation's 16<sup>th</sup> largest issuer of life insurance business of 2011 ordinary life insurance in force and 23<sup>rd</sup> largest on the basis of 2011 statutory admitted assets.

Our main business segments include Allstate Protection and Allstate Financial. Allstate Protection principally sells private passenger auto and homeowners insurance through agencies and directly through call centers and the internet. These products are marketed under the Allstate®, Encompass® and Esurance® brand names. Allstate brand auto and homeowners insurance products are sold primarily through Allstate exclusive agencies. Encompass brand auto and homeowners insurance products are sold through independent agencies. Esurance brand auto insurance products are sold directly to consumers online, through call centers and through select agents, including Answer Financial. Allstate Financial provides life insurance, voluntary accident and health insurance, and retirement and investment products. Effective January 1, 2014, Allstate Financial will no longer offer fixed annuities. Allstate Financial distributes its products to individuals through multiple distribution channels, including Allstate exclusive agencies and exclusive financial specialists and workplace enrolling independent agents, and directly through call centers and the internet. Through July 17, 2013, Allstate Financial also sold products through independent master brokerage agencies. Allstate Financial's institutional products, which were most recently offered in 2008, consist of funding agreements sold to unaffiliated trusts that use them to back medium-term notes issued to institutional and individual investors.

The Allstate Corporation was incorporated in Delaware on November 5, 1992. Our executive offices are located at 2775 Sanders Road, Northbrook, Illinois, 60062, and at Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801. Our telephone number is (847) 402-5000.

As a holding company with no significant business operations of our own, we rely on dividends from AIC as the principal source of cash to pay dividends to our stockholders and to meet our obligations, including the payment of principal and any interest on any notes and our other debt obligations. AIC is regulated as an insurance company in Illinois. The payment of dividends by AIC is

limited by Illinois insurance law to formula amounts based on statutory net income and statutory surplus, as well as the timing and amount of dividends paid in the preceding twelve months.

The laws of other jurisdictions that generally govern our insurance subsidiaries contain similar limitations on the payment of dividends; however, in some jurisdictions the laws may be somewhat more restrictive.

## Summary Description of the Depositary Shares and the Underlying Series of Preferred Stock

Securities Offered We may offer to self, from time to time, LEOPARDS (the "Depository Sharers"), each of which will represent a 11,000h interest in a share of a series of our Fixed Rate Noncumulative Perpland Preferred Stock, S1.00 par value per share, with a liquidation preference of S25.000 per share (squident to S25 per Depositary Share) (the "Preferred Stock"). Each holder of a Depositary Share vill be entilled, through the Depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of the series of Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Share, to all the rights and preferences of the Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Share, to all the rights and preferences of the Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights). After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be demod to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of such series of Preferred Stock composities of Preferred Stock will be demod to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares the applicable pricing supplement. Dividend Payment Dates Dividend Payment Dates Dividend Payment Dates Dividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the bard), will secrue on the liquidation amount of S25,000 per share of Stock series of Preferred Stock will be distributed to the biders of the Depositary Shares of the bard, will ach exercited in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the biders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), wild will be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors	Issuer	The Allstate Corporation
Shares"), each of which will         represent a 1/.000h interest in a         share of a series of our Fixed Rate         Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred         Stock, 51.00 par value per share,         with a liquidation preference of         S25,000 per share (equivalent to         S25,000 per share (squivalent to         S25,000 per share (squivalent to         S25,000 per share (squivalent to         Sate of the series of Preferred         Stock represented by such         Depositary Share, tol I the rights         and preferences of the Preferred         Stock represented thereby         (including dividend, volting,         redemption and liquidation rights).         After the original issuare date, any         Depositary Shares to a late referred         Stock represented by such         Breidend Payment Dates         Dividend Payment Dates an annual         Tarte to be specified in the applicable pricing         supplement. </th <th>Securities Offered</th> <th>We may offer to sell, from time to</th>	Securities Offered	We may offer to sell, from time to
represent a 1/1.000h interest in a share of a series of our Fixel Rute Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, \$1.00 per value per share, with a liquidation preference of \$25.2000 per share (equivalent to \$25.2000 per share (equivalent to \$25.2000 per share (equivalent to \$25.2000 per share (equivalent to \$25.2000 per share (squivalent to \$25.2000 per share (squivalent to \$25.2000 per share of the netitled, through the Depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of the series of Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Share, ill be netitled, through the Depositary, in and preferences of the Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Share, to all the rights and preferences of the Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Share, that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares sthat are later Depositary Shares sthat are later Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock crysters of Preferred Stock crysters of Stock series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, story when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duy audorbrized committee of the board), will accrue committee of the board), will accrue committee of such series of Preferred Stock to series of Preferred Stock will be distributed to the holders of the Preferred Stock will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Descripti		
<ul> <li>share of a series of our Fixed Rate</li> <li>Noncumulative Perptual Preferred</li> <li>Stock, \$1.00 par value per share,</li> <li>with a liquidation preference of</li> <li>\$25.000 per share (equivalent to</li> <li>\$25 per Depositary Share) (the</li> <li>"Preferred Stock"). Each holder of a</li> <li>Depositary Share will be entitled,</li> <li>through the Depositary, in</li> <li>proportion to the applicable fraction</li> <li>of a share of the series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented by such</li> <li>Depositary Share, to all the rights</li> <li>and preferences of the Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented thereby</li> <li>(including dividend, voting,</li> <li>redemption and liquidation rights).</li> <li>After the original issuance date, any</li> <li>Depositary Shares, to all the rights</li> <li>aparticular series of underlying</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series with all other</li> <li>Depositary Shares representing</li> <li>shares of such series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock.</li> </ul> Dividend Payment Dates <ul> <li>Dividend payment dates will be</li> <li>specified in the applicable pricing</li> <li>supplement.</li> </ul> Dividends <ul> <li>Dividends on each series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (b). King/udidution</li> <li>and of declared by our board of</li> <li>directors (or a duly authorized</li> <li>committee of the board), will accrute</li> <li>on the liquidation in the applicable pricing</li> <li>supplement.</li> </ul>		
Noncumulative Perpetual PreferredStock, \$1.00 per value per share, with a liquidation preference of \$25.000 per share (equivalent to \$25.per Depositary Share vill be entitled, through the Depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of the series of Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Share, tol be entitled, through the Depositary Share, tol be entitled, through the Depositary Share, tol all the rights and preferences of the Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights), After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares, tol all the rights and preferences of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series of Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption yShares, tol all chart epresential particular series of fueferred Stock represented a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series of Preferred Stock, Bividend Payment DatesDividend Payment DatesDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplicable p		1
<ul> <li>Stock, \$1.00 par value per share, wit at liquidation perference of \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share) (the "Preferred Stock"). Each holder of a Depositary Share will be entitled, through the Depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of the series of Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Share, to all the rights and preferences of the Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights). After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares, that a later issued and that represent particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares near a later Depositary Shares near a later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares near series of Stock represented in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Dividend Payment Dates Dividend Payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Dividend Son each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committe of the baard), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend payment at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the maner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividends payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the described under "Description of the Preferred Stock (the "liquidation" board of directors (or a duly</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>with a liquidation preference of</li> <li>\$25,000 per share (equivalent to</li> <li>\$25 per Depositary Share) (the</li> <li>"Preferred Stock"). Each holder of a</li> <li>Depositary Share will be entitled,</li> <li>through the Depositary, in</li> <li>proportion to the applicable fraction</li> <li>of a share of the series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented by such</li> <li>Depositary Share, to all the rights</li> <li>and preferences of the Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented by such</li> <li>Depositary Share, to all the rights</li> <li>and preferences of the Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented by such</li> <li>Depositary Share, to all the rights</li> <li>and preferences of underlying</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series of Inderlying</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock representing</li> <li>shares of such series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock will a dup anyment dates will be</li> <li>specified in the applicable pricing</li> <li>supplement.</li> <li>Dividend Payment Dates</li> <li>Dividends on each series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock underlying the</li> <li>Depositary Shares, only when, as</li> <li>and if declared by our board of</li> <li>directors (or a duly authorized</li> <li>comittiet of stock series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation</li> <li>around") and he applicable on each</li> <li>dividend ayment date at an annual</li> <li>rate to be specified in the applicable</li> <li>pricing supplement.</li> <li>Any such dividends will be</li> <li>dividend will be</li> <li>dividends will</li></ul>		•
<ul> <li>S25,000 per share (equivalent to</li> <li>S25 per Depositary Share (the "<i>Prefered Stock</i>"). Each holder of a</li> <li>Depositary Share will be entitled,</li> <li>through the Depositary, in</li> <li>proportion to the applicable fraction</li> <li>of a share of the series of Prefered</li> <li>Stock represented by such</li> <li>Depositary Share, to all the rights</li> <li>and preferences of the Prefered</li> <li>Stock represented thereby</li> <li>(including divident, voting,</li> <li>redemption and liquidation rights).</li> <li>After the original issuance date, any</li> <li>Depositary Shares that are later</li> <li>issued and that represent a</li> <li>particular series of underlying</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series with all other</li> <li>Depositary Shares representing</li> <li>shares of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series with all other</li> <li>Depositary Shares representing</li> <li>shares of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock underlying the</li> <li>Depositary Shares, only when, as</li> <li>and rif declared by our board of</li> <li>directors (or a duly authorized</li> <li>community of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Any such dividends will be</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Any such dividends will be</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li>Any such dividends will be</li> <li>Stock (the "liquidation amount of</li> <li< th=""><th></th><th></th></li<></ul>		
S25 per Depositary Share) (the         "Preferred Stock"). Each holder of a         Depositary Share will be entitled,         through the Depositary, in         proportion to the applicable fraction         of a share of the series of Preferred         Stock represented by such         Depositary Share, to all the rights         and preferences of the Preferred         Stock represented threeby         (including dividend, voting,         redemption and liquidation rights).         After the original issuance date, any         Depositary Shares that are later         issued and that represent a         particular series of underlying         Preferred Stock will be deemed to         form a single series with all other         Depositary Shares, not such series of Preferred         Stock.         Dividend Payment Dates         Dividends         Dividends on each series of Preferred         Stock.         Dividends on each ser		
"Preferred Stock"). Each holder of a         Depositary Share will be entitled,         through the Depositary, in         proportion to the applicable fraction         of a share of the series of Preferred         Stock represented by such         Depositary Share, to all the rights         and preferences of the Preferred         Stock represented thereby         (including dividend, voting,         redemption and liquidation rights).         After the original issume date, any         Depositary Shares that are later         issued and that represent a         issued and that represent a         particular series of underlying         Preferred Stock will be deemed to         form a single series will be         popositary Shares representing         shares of such series of Preferred         Stock.         Dividend Payment Dates         Dividends on each series of         Preferred Stock underlying the         Depositary Share, solly when, as         and if declared by our board of         directors (or a duly authorized         committee of the board), will accrute         on the liquidation amount of         Stock (he "liquidation         Preferred Stock (the "liquidation         amou		
<ul> <li>Depositary Share will be entiled, through the Depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of the series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented by such</li> <li>Depositary Share, to all the rights</li> <li>and preferences of the Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented thereby         <ul> <li>(including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights).</li> <li>After the original issuance date, any</li> <li>Depositary Shares that are later</li> <li>issued and that represent a</li> <li>particular series of underlying</li> <li>Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented to be demed to</li> <li>form a single series with all other</li> <li>Depositary Shares representing</li> <li>shares of such series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Dividend Payment Dates</li> <li>Dividends on each series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be specified in the applicable pricing</li> <li>supplement.</li> </ul> <li>Dividends</li> <li>Dividends on each series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation and out of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per share of buch series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the "liquidation anount of \$25,000 per sha</li>		
<ul> <li>bividend Payment Dates</li> <li>bividends</li> <li>bividends</li></ul>		
<ul> <li>proportion to the applicable fraction</li> <li>of a share of the series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented by such</li> <li>Depositary Share, to all the rights</li> <li>and preferences of the Preferred</li> <li>Stock represented thereby         <ul> <li>(including dividend, voting,</li> <li>redemption and liquidation rights).</li> <li>After the original issuance date, any</li> <li>Depositary Shares that are later</li> <li>issued and that represent a</li> <li>particular series of underlying</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to</li> <li>form a single series with all other</li> <li>Depositary Chares that series of Preferred</li> <li>Stock.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Dividend Payment Dates</li> <li>Dividend on payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Dividends on each series of</li> <ul> <li>Preferred Stock will be specified in the applicable pricing</li> <li>supplement.</li> <li>Depositary Shares, or such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock underlying the</li> <li>Depositary Shares, only when, as</li> <li>and if declared by our board of</li> <li>directors (or a duly authorized</li> <li>committee of the board), will accrue</li> <li>on the liquidation amount of</li> <li>\$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the 'Inquidation amount of</li> <li>\$25,000 per share of such series of the</li> <li>Depositary Shares in the manner</li> <li>dividend payment date at an annual</li> <li>rate to be specified in the applicable</li> <li>pricing supplement.</li> <li>Any such dividends will be</li> <li>dividend of will no the</li> <li>cumulative and will not be<th></th><th></th></li></ul></ul>		
of a share of the series of PreferredStock represented by suchDepositary Share, to all the rights and preferences of the PreferredStock represented thereby(including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights).After the original issuance date, anyDepositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all otherDepositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying shares of such series of Preferred Stock.Dividend Payment DatesDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation" amount") and be payable on each dividend swill be dividend swill be dividends will be dividend swill be dividends will be dividends will be dividends will be dividends will be dividends will be dividends will be description of the Preferred Stock. Dividends' below. Depositary Shares in the manner description of the Preferred Stock will not be ecumulative and will not be ecumulative and will not be cumulative and will not be cumulative. (or aduly		
Depositary Share, to all the rights and preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights). After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares that are later a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to Stock.Dividend Payment DatesDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount?) and be payable on each dividend payment date an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount?) and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly bidends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
and preferences of the Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights), After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock. Dividend Payment Dates Dividend Payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Dividends Dividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a du)y authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of S25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock ler ''liquidation amount'') and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under ''Description of the Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duy authorized		Stock represented by such
Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights).After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlyingPreferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock.Dividend Payment DatesDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock will accure oon the liquidation amount of directors (or a duly authorized commut date series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividends will be distributed to the holders of the peopositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of S25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares of the Depositary Shares of each distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and wi		Depositary Share, to all the rights
<ul> <li>(including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights).</li> <li>After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock.</li> <li>Dividend Payment Dates</li> <li>Dividend Payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Dividends</li> <li>Dividends</li> <li>Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the <i>'liquidation</i> <i>amount'</i>) and be payable on each</li> <li>dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares of such series of</li> <li>Preferred Stock (the <i>'liquidation</i> <i>amount'</i>) and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares of such series of Preferred Stock (the 'liquidation <i>amount'</i>) and be payable on each dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be</li> <li>Cumulative and will not be</li> <li>Cumulative</li></ul>		•
redemption and liquidation rights). After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock. Dividend Payment Dates Dividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Dividends Div		
After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock.Dividend Payment DatesDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividend on cach series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount?) and be payable on each dividends will be distributed to the holders of the preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividends will be distributed to the holders of the peositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.		
<ul> <li>Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying</li> <li>Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock.</li> <li>Dividend Payment Dates</li> <li>Dividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Dividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "<i>liquidation amount</i>") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.</li> <li>Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly</li> </ul>		
issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock. Dividend Payment Dates Dividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Dividends Dividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of S25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend payment. Any such dividends will be gricing supplement. Any such dividends will be gricing supplement. Dividends on the boards, below. Dividends on the boards of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
particular series of underlyingPreferred Stock will be deemed toform a single series with all otherDepositary Shares representingshares of such series of PreferredStock.Dividend Payment DatesDividends on each series ofPreferred Stock underlying theDepositary Shares, only when, asand if declared by our board ofdirectors (or a duly authorizedcommittee of the board), will accrueon the liquidation amount of\$25,000 per share of such series ofPreferred Stock (the "liquidationamount") and be payable on eachdividends will besupplement.Any such dividends will bedistributed to the holders of theDepositary Shares, only when, asand if declared by our board ofdirectors (or a duly authorizedcommittee of the board), will accrueon the liquidation amount of\$25,000 per share of such series ofPreferred Stock (the "liquidationamount") and be payable on eachdividend payment date at an annualrate to be specified in the applicablepricing supplement.Any such dividends will bedistributed to the holders of theDepositary Shares in the mannerdescribed under "Description of thePreferred Stock Nill not becumulative and will not becumulati		
Preferred Stock will be deemed to         form a single series with all other         Depositary Shares representing         shares of such series of Preferred         Stock.         Dividend Payment Dates         Dividends         Stock         Dividends         Stock (the "liquidation         Dividends         Dividends         Dividen		-
form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock. Dividend Payment Dates Dividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Dividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock.Dividend Payment DatesDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend swill be aristibuted to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be mering supplement.Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly util core and up)		
Stock.Dividend Payment DatesStock.Dividend Payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of S25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> amount") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		-
Dividend Payment DatesDividend payment dates will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		shares of such series of Preferred
specified in the applicable pricing supplement.DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement.Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares of such series dividend swill be distributed to the holders of the Deprescription of the Preferred Stock Will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
bividends       Dividends on each series of         Preferred Stock underlying the       Depositary Shares, only when, as         and if declared by our board of       directors (or a duly authorized         committee of the board), will accrue       on the liquidation amount of         \$25,000 per share of such series of       Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each         dividend payment date at an annual       rate to be specified in the applicable         pricing supplement.       Any such dividends will be         distributed to the holders of the       Depositary Shares in the manner         described under "Description of the       Preferred Stock will not be         cumulative and will not be       mandatory. If for any reason our         board of directors (or a duly       supplement or a duly	Dividend Payment Dates	
DividendsDividends on each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the "liquidation amount") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> <i>amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly	Dividende	
Depositary Shares, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> <i>amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly	Dividends	
and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> <i>amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> <i>amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
committee of the board), will accrue on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> <i>amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
on the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of such series of Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> <i>amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		•
Preferred Stock (the " <i>liquidation</i> <i>amount</i> ") and be payable on each dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
amount") and be payable on eachdividend payment date at an annualrate to be specified in the applicablepricing supplement.Any such dividends will bedistributed to the holders of theDepositary Shares in the mannerdescribed under "Description of thePreferred Stock Dividends" below.Dividends on shares of each seriesof Preferred Stock will not becumulative and will not bemandatory. If for any reason ourboard of directors (or a duly		\$25,000 per share of such series of
dividend payment date at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
pricing supplement. Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
Any such dividends will be distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
distributed to the holders of the Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
Depositary Shares in the manner described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		•
described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
Preferred Stock Dividends" below. Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		•
cumulative and will not be mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		Dividends on shares of each series
mandatory. If for any reason our board of directors (or a duly		
board of directors (or a duly		
authorized committee of the board)		
		autionzed committee of the board)

does not declare a dividend on the Preferred Stock in respect of a dividend period (as defined below), then no dividend will be deemed to have accrued for such dividend period, be payable on the applicable dividend payment date, or accumulate, and we will have no obligation to pay any dividend for that dividend period, whether or not dividends on the Preferred Stock of any such series are declared for any future dividend period. "Dividend period" means each period from and including a dividend payment date (except that the initial dividend period relating to a series of Preferred Stock will commence on the original issue date of the shares of such series) and continuing to, but excluding, the next succeeding dividend payment date. Dividends will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

During any dividend period while any series of Preferred Stock is outstanding, unless the full dividends for the preceding dividend period on all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock have been declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside and any declared but unpaid dividends for any prior period have been paid:

- (i) no dividend shall be declared or paid or set aside for payment and no distribution shall be declared or made or set aside for payment on any of our common stock or any other class or series of our stock that ranks junior to the Preferred Stock as to the distribution of assets on our liquidation, dissolution or winding up ("*junior stock*") (other than (1) a dividend payable solely in junior stock or (2) any dividend in connection with the implementation of a shareholders' rights plan or the redemption or repurchase of any rights under such plan);
- (ii) no shares of junior stock shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by us, directly or indirectly (other than (1) as a result of a reclassification of junior stock for or into other junior stock, (2) the exchange or conversion of one share of junior stock for or into another share of junior stock, (3) purchases, redemptions or other acquisitions of shares of junior stock in connection with any employment contract, benefit plan or other similar arrangement with or for the benefit of employees, officers, directors or consultants, (4) the purchase of fractional interests in shares of junior stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such securities or the security being converted or exchanged and (5) through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of junior stock), nor shall any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such securities by us; and
- (iii) no shares of stock designated as ranking on a parity with any series of Preferred Stock, including our Fixed Rate Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A (the "Series A Preferred Stock"), our Fixed Rate Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series C (the "Series C Preferred Stock") and each other series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares, as to payments of dividends and the distribution of assets on our liquidation, dissolution or winding up ("dividend parity stock") shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by us otherwise than pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Preferred Stock and such dividend parity stock (other than the exchange or conversion of such dividend parity stock for or into shares of junior stock).

	When dividends are not paid in full	
	upon the shares of a series of	
	Preferred Stock (except for reasons	
	described under "Description of the	
	Preferred Stock Restrictions on	
	Declaration and Payment of	
	Dividends") and any dividend parity	
	stock, all dividends declared upon	
	shares of the Preferred Stock and	
	any dividend parity stock will be	
	declared on a proportional basis so	
	that the amount of dividends	
	declared per share will bear to each	
	other the same ratio that accrued	
	dividends for the then-current	
	dividend period, and any prior	
	dividend periods for which	
	dividends were declared but not	
	paid, per share on the Preferred	
	Stock, and accrued dividends,	
	including any accumulations, on	
	any dividend parity stock, bear to	
	each other.	
Dividend Payment Restrictions	The certificate of designations for each series of the Preferred Stock	
	underlying the Depositary Shares	
	will prohibit the declaration of	
	dividends on such series of	
	Preferred Stock if we fail to meet	
	specified capital adequacy, net	
	income or shareholders' equity	
	levels. The prohibition is subject to	
	an exception permitting us to	
	declare dividends out of the net	
	proceeds of common stock issued	
	by us during the 90 days prior to the	
	date of declaration even if we fail to	
	meet the specified capital adequacy,	
	net income or shareholders' equity	
	levels. See "Description of the	
	Preferred Stock Restrictions on	
	Declaration and Payment of Dividends".	
Dedemation	Each series of the Preferred Stock	
Redemption	underlying the Depositary Shares	
	will be perpetual and will not have a	
	maturity date. We may, at our	
	option, redeem the shares of any	
	series of Preferred Stock (i) in	
	whole but not in part at any time	
	prior to the initial redemption date	
	specified in the applicable pricing	
	supplement (the "initial redemption	
	date"), within 90 days after the	
	occurrence of a "rating agency	
	event" at a redemption price equal	
	to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depository Share), or if	
	\$25 per Depositary Share), or if greater, a make-whole redemption	
	price calculated as described herein,	
	price carculated as described herelli,	

plus, in each case, any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared dividends, to, but excluding, the redemption date, or (ii) in whole or in part, from time to time, on any dividend payment date on or after the initial redemption date at a redemption price equal to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared dividends, to, but excluding, the redemption date.

#### Liquidation Rights

Voting Rights

Ranking

In the event we voluntarily or involuntarily liquidate, dissolve or wind up our affairs, holders of shares of each series of Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive an amount per share equal to the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), plus any dividends that have been declared but not paid prior to the date of payment of distributions to the holders of such Preferred Stock, without regard to any undeclared dividends. Distributions will be made only to the extent of our assets that are available for distribution to shareholders, after payment or provision for payment of our debts and other liabilities, pro rata as to any other class or series of our stock that ranks equally with the Preferred Stock as to the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up and before any distribution of assets is made to holders of our common stock or any of our junior stock. Holders of the Preferred Stock of each series will have no voting rights, except with respect to certain changes in the terms of such Preferred Stock, in the case of certain dividend non-payments, certain other fundamental corporate events, mergers or consolidations and as otherwise required by applicable law. See "Description of the Preferred Stock Voting Rights". Holders of Depositary Shares must act through the Depositary to exercise any voting rights. See "Description of the Depositary Shares Voting of the Preferred Stock". The shares of each series of Preferred Stock offered pursuant to this prospectus supplement will rank senior to our common stock and all other junior stock and senior to or on a parity with each other series of our preferred stock we have issued or may issue (except for any senior series that may be issued upon the requisite vote or consent of the holders of at least a two-thirds of the shares of such series of Preferred Stock

at the time outstanding and entitled to vote and the requisite vote or consent of all other series of preferred stock (stock of each such series, "senior stock")), with respect to the payment of dividends and distributions of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up. We currently have no senior stock outstanding. We will generally be able to pay dividends and distributions upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up only out of funds legally available for such payment (i.e., after taking account of all indebtedness and other non-equity claims) and pro rata as to each series of the underlying Preferred Stock and any dividend parity stock. The only series of dividend parity stock currently outstanding are our Series A Preferred Stock and our Series C Preferred Stock. Each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares offered pursuant to this prospectus supplement will constitute dividend parity stock with each other series of underlying Preferred Stock.

Preferred stock that we may choose to issue in the future that does not include the restrictions on dividends described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends", but that otherwise ranks pari passu with the Preferred Stock will be treated as dividend parity stock and not as senior stock. We may pay dividends on the shares of any such stock that is otherwise on a parity with the Preferred Stock for periods during which we may not pay dividends on the Preferred Stock because of such restrictions. See "Description of the Preferred Stock Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends Interpretive Provisions and Qualifications". No series of the underlying Preferred Stock will have a maturity date, and we are not required to redeem shares of such Preferred Stock. Accordingly, each series of Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely, unless and until we decide to redeem it. The holders of the Preferred Stock will not have the right to require the redemption or repurchase of the Preferred Stock. None.

Unless specified in the applicable pricing supplement, we intend to apply to list the Depositary Shares relating to each series of Preferred Stock on the NYSE under a symbol to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. We generally expect to list the Depositary Shares relating to a particular series of Preferred Stock only after we have completed the offering of that series. There is no guarantee, however, that we will be able to list the Depositary Shares relating to any series of Preferred Stock. We do not expect that there will be any separate public trading market for the shares of Preferred Stock except as represented by the Depositary Shares. If you are a noncorporate United States holder, dividends paid to you will qualify for taxation at preferential rates if you meet certain holding period and other applicable requirements. If you are a corporate United States holder, dividends received by you will be eligible for the dividends-received deduction if you meet certain holding period and other applicable requirements. If you are a non-U.S.

Maturity

Preemptive and Conversion Rights Listing

Tax consequences

holder, dividends paid to you are subject to withholding of United States federal income tax at a 30% rate or at a lower rate if you are eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty that provides for a lower rate. For further discussion of the tax consequences relating to the Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock, see "Certain Material United States Federal Income Tax Considerations". Unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement, we intend to use the net proceeds from offerings of Depositary Shares for general corporate purposes.

Use of Proceeds

Form of the Depositary Shares	The Depositary Shares will be represented by one or more global securities that will be deposited with and registered in the name of The Depositary Trust Company (" <i>DTC</i> ") or its nominee. This means that you will not receive a certificate for your Depositary Shares except under limited circumstances			
	described herein. <i>See</i> "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".			
Transfer Agent, Registrar & Dividend Disbursement Agent	Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.			
Depositary	Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.			
Risk Factors	See "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-10 of this prospectus supplement and the periodic and other reports we file with the SEC to read about important factors you should consider before investing in the Depositary Shares and the underlying series of Preferred Stock			
	Stock.			

#### **RISK FACTORS**

Your investment in the Depositary Shares and the underlying series of Preferred Stock will involve certain risks described below. In consultation with your own financial and legal advisors, you should carefully consider the information included in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the applicable pricing supplement, and pay special attention to the following discussion of risks relating to the Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock before deciding whether an investment in the Depositary Shares is suitable for you. In addition to the risk factors relating to the Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock before deciding whether an investment in the Depositary Shares is suitable for you. In addition to the risk factors relating to the Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock set forth below, we also specifically incorporate by reference into this prospectus supplement the sections captioned "Risk Factors" in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and any Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q filed subsequent to such Annual Report, and in any of our periodic and other reports we file with the SEC prior to the termination of this offering. The Depositary Shares will not be an appropriate investment for you if you are not knowledgeable about significant features of the Depositary Shares and the underlying Preferred Stock or financial matters in general. You should not purchase the Depositary Shares unless you understand, and know that you can bear, these investment risks.

#### The Depositary Shares are fractional interests in the shares of the Preferred Stock of each series.

We are issuing fractional interests in shares of each series of Preferred Stock in the form of Depositary Shares. Accordingly, the Depositary will rely on the payments it receives on the applicable series of Preferred Stock to fund all payments on the Depositary Shares. You should carefully review the information in the accompanying prospectus, this prospectus supplement and the applicable pricing supplement regarding both of these securities.

#### We may not have sufficient cash to enable us to pay dividends on the Preferred Stock.

We may not have sufficient cash available each quarter to pay dividends. The amount of dividends we can pay on each series of the Preferred Stock depends upon the amount of cash we generate from our operations, which may fluctuate based on, among other things:

the level of our operating costs and estimated losses due to catastrophes and other events;

the ability of state insurance regulatory authorities to limit the payment of dividends to us from our insurance subsidiaries;

prevailing global and regional economic and political conditions;

the effect of governmental regulations;

changes in the basis of taxation of our activities in various jurisdictions;

our ability to raise additional equity to satisfy our capital needs;

restrictions under our credit facilities or any debt, including existing restrictions under our debt agreements, that, upon the occurrence of certain events that constitute or would constitute events of default, prevent us from declaring or paying dividends, redeeming shares of our capital stock or making liquidation payments; and

the amount of any cash reserves established by our board of directors.

The amount of cash we generate from our operations may differ materially from our net income or loss for the period, which will be affected by non-cash items. As a result of these and the other factors mentioned above, we may pay dividends during certain periods when we record losses and may not pay dividends during periods when we record net income.

#### Dividends on the Preferred Stock will be discretionary and noncumulative.

Dividends on each series of the Preferred Stock will be discretionary and noncumulative. Consequently, if our board of directors (or any duly authorized committee of the board) does not authorize and declare a dividend on any series of Preferred Stock for any dividend period, holders of such series of Preferred Stock will not be entitled to receive any dividend for that dividend period, and the unpaid dividend will cease to accrue and cease to be payable. Because we contemplate issuing the Preferred Stock over a period of time, the public offering price of the Depositary Shares may include accrued dividends. If our board of directors (or any duly authorized committee of the board) does not authorize and declare a dividend on the shares of Preferred Stock underlying such Depositary Shares for the initial dividend period, holders of the Depositary Shares relating to such series of Preferred Stock will not be entitled to receive the amount they paid relating to accrued dividends as part of the public offering price.

## Our ability to declare and pay dividends on the Preferred Stock will be limited if we fail to achieve specified capital adequacy, net income or shareholders' equity levels.

We will be prohibited from declaring or paying dividends on the Preferred Stock of any series, and on any dividend parity stock that includes the restriction on dividends described below, in excess of the amount of net proceeds from an issuance of common stock taking place within 90 days before a dividend declaration date if, on that dividend declaration date, either:

the risk-based capital ratios of our largest U.S. property-casualty insurance subsidiaries that collectively account for 80% or more of the net written premium of our U.S. property-casualty insurance business on a weighted average basis were less than 175% of their company action level risk-based capital as of the end of the most recent year; or

our consolidated net income for the four-quarter period ending on the preliminary quarter end test date (the quarter that is two quarters prior to the most recently completed quarter) is zero or negative and our consolidated shareholders' equity (minus accumulated other comprehensive income, and subject to certain other adjustments relating to changes in U.S. GAAP) as of each of the preliminary quarter test date and the most recently completed quarter has declined by 20% or more from its level as measured at the end of the benchmark quarter (the date that is ten quarters prior to the most recently completed quarter).

If we fail to satisfy either of the above tests on any dividend declaration date, the restrictions on dividends will continue until we are able again to satisfy the test on a dividend declaration date. In addition, in the case of a restriction arising under the second bullet point above, the restrictions on dividends will continue until our consolidated shareholders' equity (minus accumulated other comprehensive income, and subject to certain other adjustments relating to changes in U.S. GAAP) has increased, or has declined by less than 20%, in either case as compared to its level at the end of the benchmark quarter for each dividend payment date as to which dividend restrictions were imposed.

Examples of situations where we may fail the above tests include: a financial crisis or other negative trends in the global economy and capital markets or a significant catastrophe loss event.

See "Description of the Preferred Stock Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends" for more information on these restrictions.

## We may in the future issue series of preferred stock that do not include restrictions on paying dividends and may pay dividends on such preferred stock at times when we are prohibited from paying dividends on the Preferred Stock.

The certificate of designations for each series of Preferred Stock will provide that preferred stock that we may choose to issue in the future that does not include the restrictions on dividends described

under "Description of the Preferred Stock Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends" but that otherwise rank*pari passu* with the Preferred Stock will not be treated as senior stock. *See* "Description of the Preferred Stock Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends Interpretive Provisions and Qualifications". As a consequence, we could issue such preferred stock without receiving the prior vote or consent of holders of the Preferred Stock of any series and, if we were to issue such preferred stock and if dividends as to a dividend period were not paid on the Preferred Stock of any such series, we would not be precluded from paying dividends on such preferred stock because of the required suspension of dividends on such series of Preferred Stock.

#### The Preferred Stock may be junior in rights and preferences to future preferred stock.

The Preferred Stock of each series may be junior to preferred stock we issue in the future that by its terms is expressly senior to the Preferred Stock, upon the vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the shares of each series of Preferred Stock at the time outstanding and entitled to vote and the requisite vote or consent of all other classes or series of our stock that ranks equally with the Preferred Stock of such series as to the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up and/or the payment of dividends. The terms of any future preferred stock expressly senior to each series of Preferred Stock may restrict dividend payments on the Preferred Stock. In this case, unless full dividends for all outstanding preferred stock senior to each series of Preferred Stock have been declared and paid or set aside for payment, no dividends will be declared or paid and no distribution will be made on any shares of each series of Preferred Stock, and no shares of the Preferred Stock will be permitted to be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired by us, directly or indirectly, for consideration. This could result in dividends on the Preferred Stock of the applicable series not being paid to you.

#### The Preferred Stock will be an equity security and will be subordinate to our existing and future indebtedness.

The shares of Preferred Stock of each series will be equity interests in The Allstate Corporation and will not constitute indebtedness. This means that the Preferred Stock will rank junior to all existing and future indebtedness and other non-equity claims on us with respect to assets available to satisfy claims on us, including claims in the event of our liquidation. Our future indebtedness may restrict payment of dividends on the Preferred Stock.

Additionally, unlike indebtedness, where principal and interest customarily are payable on specified due dates, in the case of each series of Preferred Stock, (1) dividends will be payable only if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board); (2) dividends will not accumulate if they are not declared; and (3) as a Delaware corporation, we may make dividend payments and redemption payments only out of funds legally available under Delaware law. Further, the Preferred Stock of each series will place no restrictions on our business or operations or on our ability to incur indebtedness or engage in any transactions, subject only to certain restrictions on payments of dividends and redemption or repurchase of our junior stock and dividend parity stock described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends" and the limited voting rights referred to below under "Description of the Preferred Stock Voting Rights".

## Your economic interests in the underlying Preferred Stock of each series represented by the Depositary Shares could be adversely affected by the issuance of additional preferred shares, including additional shares of Preferred Stock, and by other transactions.

The issuance of additional preferred shares on parity with or senior to each series of the Preferred Stock would adversely affect the economic interests of the holders of such Preferred Stock and the Depositary Shares, and any issuance of preferred shares senior to the Preferred Stock of each series or of additional indebtedness could affect our ability to pay dividends on, redeem or pay the liquidation preference on such Preferred Stock in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up.

## Our ability to meet our obligations and declare and pay dividends on each series of Preferred Stock is dependent upon distributions from our subsidiaries and the Preferred Stock will be effectively subordinated to the obligations of our subsidiaries.

We are a holding company with no significant operations of our own. Our principal asset is our ownership of our subsidiaries. As such we receive substantially all of our revenue from dividends from our subsidiaries. The ability of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends to us in the future will depend on their statutory surplus, earnings and regulatory restrictions. We and our insurance subsidiaries are subject to regulation by some states as an insurance holding company system. This regulation generally provides that transactions among companies within the holding company system must be fair and reasonable. Transfers of assets among affiliated companies, certain dividend payments from insurance subsidiaries and certain material transactions between companies within the system may require prior notice to, or prior approval by, state regulatory authorities. Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory restrictions that limit the maximum amount of dividends available to be paid to their parent without prior approval of insurance regulatory authorities. The ability of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends to us also is restricted by regulations that set standards of solvency that must be met and maintained, the nature of and limitation on investments, the nature of and limitations on dividends to policyholders and shareholders, the nature and extent of required participation in insurance lines. In addition, competitive pressures generally require the subsidiaries to maintain insurance financial strength ratings. These restrictions and other regulatory requirements affect the ability of the subsidiaries to make dividend payments. The inability of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends to us in an amount sufficient to meet our debt service obligations and other cash requirements could harm our ability to meet our obligations and declare and pay dividends on each series of Preferred Stock.

Because we are a holding company, our right to participate in any distribution of the assets of our subsidiaries, upon a subsidiary's dissolution, winding-up, liquidation or reorganization or otherwise, and thus our ability to meet our obligations and pay dividends on each series of Preferred Stock from such distribution, is subject to the prior claims of creditors of any such subsidiary, except to the extent that we may be a creditor of that subsidiary and our claims are recognized. Our subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities and have no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to pay amounts due under our contracts or otherwise to make any funds available to us. Accordingly, our obligations and the payments of dividends on each series of Preferred Stock will be effectively subordinated to all liabilities of our subsidiaries, including obligations to policyholders.

## If we are deferring payments on our outstanding subordinated debt securities, we will be prohibited from paying dividends on or redeeming any series of Preferred Stock.

The terms of our outstanding subordinated debt securities prohibit us from declaring or paying any dividends or distributions on any series of Preferred Stock, or redeeming, purchasing, acquiring or making a liquidation payment with respect to the Preferred Stock, at any time when we have deferred interest under such subordinated debt securities.

## If we are not paying full dividends on any outstanding dividend parity stock, we will not be able to pay full dividends on any series of Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the shares of any series of Preferred Stock (except for reasons described under "Description of the Preferred Stock Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends") and any dividend parity stock, all dividends declared upon shares of each series of Preferred Stock and any dividend parity stock will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends for the then-current dividend period, and any prior dividend periods for which dividends were declared

but not paid, per share on the Preferred Stock of each series, and accrued dividends, including any accumulations, on any dividend parity stock, bear to each other. Therefore, if we are not paying full dividends on any outstanding dividend parity stock, we will not be able to pay full dividends on the Preferred Stock. *See* "Description of the Preferred Stock Dividends".

## Investors should not expect us to redeem any series of Preferred Stock on the date it becomes redeemable at our option or on any particular date after it becomes redeemable at our option.

Each series of Preferred Stock underlying the Depositary Shares will be a perpetual equity security. This means that the Preferred Stock will have no maturity or mandatory redemption date and will not be redeemable at the option of the holders. Any series of Preferred Stock may be redeemed by us at our option, (i) in whole but not in part at any time prior to the initial redemption date specified in the applicable pricing supplement, within 90 days after the occurrence of a "rating agency event" at a redemption price equal to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), or if greater, a make-whole redemption price calculated as described herein, plus, in each case, any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared dividends, to, but excluding, the redemption date, or (ii) in whole or in part, from time to time, on any dividend payment date on or after the initial redemption date at a redemption price equal to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared dividends, to, but excluding, the redemption date. Any decision we may make at any time to propose a redemption of a series of Preferred Stock will depend upon, among other things, our evaluation of our capital position, the composition of our shareholders' equity and general market conditions at that time.

#### We may redeem any series of Preferred Stock before the initial redemption date in the event of a rating agency event.

We may redeem the Preferred Stock of any series in whole but not in part at any time prior to the initial redemption date, within 90 days after the occurrence of a "rating agency event" at a redemption price equal to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), or if greater, a make-whole redemption price calculated as described herein, plus, in each case, any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared dividends, to, but excluding, the redemption date. If any series of Preferred Stock is redeemed, the redemption may be a taxable event to you. *See* "Certain Material United States Federal Income Tax Considerations" United States Holders' Redemption of the Preferred Stock" in this prospectus supplement.

Events that would constitute a "rating agency event" could occur at any time and could result in any series of Preferred Stock being redeemed earlier than would otherwise be the case. In the event we choose to redeem any series of Preferred Stock, you may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an effective dividend rate as high as that on such series of Preferred Stock.

#### Holders of the Preferred Stock will have limited voting rights.

Holders of the Preferred Stock of each series will have no voting rights with respect to matters that generally require the approval of shareholders. Holders of the Preferred Stock of each series will have voting rights only with respect to certain changes in the terms of such Preferred Stock, certain dividend non-payments, certain other fundamental corporate events and as otherwise required by applicable law. *See* "Description of the Preferred Stock Voting Rights". Holders of the Depositary Shares must act through the Depositary to exercise any voting rights in respect of the underlying series of Preferred Stock. Although each Depositary Share is entitled to 1/1,000th of a vote, the Depositary can only vote whole shares of the underlying series of Preferred Stock. While the Depositary will vote the maximum number of whole shares of such Preferred Stock in accordance with the instructions it receives, any remaining votes of holders of the Depositary Shares will not be voted.

## We intend to offer the Depositary Shares from to time and any issuances of Depositary Shares representing an outstanding series of Preferred Stock could adversely affect the price of the Depositary Shares representing such series of outstanding Preferred Stock.

We intend to offer the Depositary Shares from time to time, as often as weekly. After the original issuance date, any Depositary Shares that are later issued and that represent a particular series of underlying Preferred Stock will be deemed to form a single series with all other Depositary Shares representing shares of such series of Preferred Stock. The issuance of additional Depositary Shares representing a series of outstanding Preferred Stock may adversely affect the price of the Depositary Shares representing such outstanding Preferred Stock.

#### We cannot assure you that an active trading market for the Depositary Shares will ever develop or be maintained.

The Preferred Stock and the Depositary Shares will be new issues with no established trading market. Although we plan to apply to have the Depositary Shares relating to each series of Preferred Stock listed on the NYSE at a certain time in the future depending on the original issuance date of such Depositary Shares, the number of holders of beneficial interests therein and the amount then currently outstanding, there is no guarantee that we will be able to list the Depositary Shares relating to any series of Preferred Stock. Even if the Depositary Shares relating to a series of Preferred Stock are listed, there may be little or no secondary market for such Depositary Shares. Even if a secondary market for the applicable Depositary Shares develops, it may not provide significant liquidity, and transaction costs in any secondary market could be high. As a result, the difference between bid and asked prices in any secondary market could be substantial. We do not expect that there will be any separate public trading market for the shares of Preferred Stock of any series except as represented by the Depositary Shares.

#### General market conditions and unpredictable factors could adversely affect market prices for the Depositary Shares.

There can be no assurance about the market prices for the Depositary Shares. Several factors, many of which are beyond our control, will influence the market prices of the Depositary Shares. Future trading prices of the Depositary Shares will depend on many factors, including:

whether we declare or fail to declare dividends on the Preferred Stock from time to time;

our operating performance, financial condition and prospects, or the operating performance, financial condition and prospects of our competitors;

our creditworthiness;

the financial strength ratings of our insurance subsidiaries;

the ratings given to our securities by credit rating agencies, including the ratings given to the Preferred Stock;

prevailing interest rates;

economic, financial, geopolitical, regulatory or judicial events affecting us or the financial markets generally; and

the market for similar securities.

Accordingly, the Depositary Shares may trade at a discount to the price per share paid for such Depositary Shares in the secondary market.

# A downgrade, suspension or withdrawal of, or change in, the methodology used to determine any rating assigned by a rating agency to us or our securities, including the Preferred Stock, could cause the liquidity or trading price of the Preferred Stock of any series to decline significantly.

Real or anticipated changes in the credit ratings assigned to the Depositary Shares, the Preferred Stock of any series or our credit ratings generally could affect the trading price of the applicable Depositary Shares. Credit ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold any security, and may be revised or withdrawn at any time by the issuing organization in its sole discretion. In addition, credit rating agencies continually review their ratings for the companies that they follow, including us. The credit rating agencies also evaluate the financial services industry as a whole and may change their credit rating for us and our securities, including the Depositary Shares and the Preferred Stock, based on their overall view of our industry. A downgrade, withdrawal, or the announcement of a possible downgrade or withdrawal of the ratings assigned to the Depositary Shares and the Preferred Stock, us or our other securities, or any perceived decrease in our creditworthiness could cause the trading price of the Depositary Shares to decline significantly.

The rating agencies that currently or may in the future publish a rating for us, the Depositary Shares or the Preferred Stock may from time to time in the future change the methodologies that they use for analyzing securities with features similar to the Depositary Shares or the Preferred Stock. This may include, for example, changes to the relationship between ratings assigned to an issuer's senior securities and ratings assigned to securities with features similar to the Depositary Shares or the Preferred Stock, which is sometimes called "notching". If the rating agencies change their practices for rating these securities in the future, and the ratings of the Depositary Shares or the Preferred Stock are subsequently lowered or "notched" further, the trading price of the Depositary Shares could be negatively affected.

## There may be future sales of the Preferred Stock or the Depositary Shares, which may adversely affect the market price of the Depositary Shares.

Except as described under the heading "Supplemental Plan of Distribution" below, we are not restricted from issuing additional Preferred Stock of the same or a different series or, in each case, related Depositary Shares or securities similar to the Preferred Stock or the Depositary Shares, including any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, preferred stock or depositary shares. Holders of the Preferred Stock of any series or the related Depositary Shares have no preemptive rights that entitle holders to purchase their *pro rata* share of any offering of shares of any class or series. The market price of the Depositary Shares could decline as a result of sales of shares of Preferred Stock of the same or a different series or, in each case, related Depositary Shares made after this offering or the perception that such sales could occur. Because our decision to issue securities in any future offering will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing or nature of our future offerings. Thus, holders of the Depositary Shares bear the risk of our future offerings reducing the market price of the Depositary Shares and diluting their related holdings in the underlying series of Preferred Stock.

#### Holders of the Depositary Shares may be unable to use the dividends received deduction.

Distributions paid to corporate U.S. holders of the Depositary Shares out of dividends on the underlying series of Preferred Stock may be eligible for the dividends received deduction if we have current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Although we presently have accumulated earnings and profits, we may not have sufficient current or accumulated earnings and profits during future fiscal years for the distributions on the Preferred Stock of each series to qualify as dividends for federal income tax purposes. *See* "Certain Material United States Federal Income Tax Considerations". If any distributions on the Preferred Stock with respect to any fiscal year are not eligible for the dividends received deduction because of insufficient current or accumulated earnings and profits, the market value of the Depositary Shares may decline.



## CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

The following table sets forth our consolidated ratios of earnings to fixed charges and earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends for the periods indicated. For purposes of these computations, earnings consist of income from operations before income tax, and fixed charges consist of interest on indebtedness, interest factor of annual rental expense, and interest credited to contractholder funds.

	Nine Months Ended September 30,			ed December 31,		
	2013	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges(1)	2.7X	2.9X	1.5X	1.5X	1.5X	Х
Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends(1)	2.7X	2.9X	1.5X	1.5X	1.5X	Х

(1)

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2008 were insufficient to cover fixed charges and combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends by \$2.82 billion.

### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement, we intend to use the net proceeds from offerings of Depositary Shares for general corporate purposes.

#### **DESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERRED STOCK**

The following is a brief summary of the material terms of the Preferred Stock, which is applicable to each series relating to the Depositary Shares. The following summary does not purport to be complete in all respects, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the pertinent sections of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed as an exhibit to a current report on Form 8-K on May 23, 2012), the certificate of designations creating the applicable series of Preferred Stock (to be included as an exhibit to a current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC) and the applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

#### General

Our authorized capital stock includes 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$1.00 per share, as reflected in our Restated Certificate of Incorporation. We may issue shares of Preferred Stock from time to time in one or more series represented by Depositary Shares offered by this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and one or more pricing supplements. Each series of Preferred Stock will be issued pursuant to a separate certificate of designations and will represent a single series of our authorized preferred stock. Shares of the same series of Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time using a separate pricing supplement for each issuance. All shares of Preferred Stock, upon issuance against full payment therefore, will be fully paid and nonassessable.

In addition we may issue additional preferred stock in one or more series, each with preferences, limitations, designations, conversion or exchange rights, voting rights, dividend rights, redemption provisions, voluntary and involuntary liquidation rights and other rights as our board may determine at the time of issuance.

The Preferred Stock will not be convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares of our common stock or any other class or series of our other securities and will not be subject to any sinking fund or any other obligation of ours for their repurchase or retirement.

#### Ranking

With respect to the payment of dividends and distributions of assets upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, each series of Preferred Stock offered pursuant to this prospectus supplement will rank:

senior to our common stock and all other junior stock;

senior to or on a parity with each other series of our preferred stock we have issued or may issue (except for any senior stock that may be issued upon the requisite vote or consent of the holders of at least a two-thirds majority of the shares of the Preferred Stock of each series at the time outstanding and entitled to vote and the requisite vote or consent of all other series of preferred stock), with respect to the payment of dividends and distributions of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up; and

junior to all existing and future indebtedness and other non-equity claims on us.

We currently have no senior stock outstanding.

See "Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends Interpretive Provisions and Qualifications" concerning t**pa**ri passu status of future series of preferred stock that do not include the restrictions on dividends described under "Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends" but that otherwise rank *pari passu* with the Preferred Stock.

#### Dividends

Holders of each series of Preferred Stock, in preference to the holders of our common stock and of any other junior stock, will be entitled to receive, only when, as and if declared by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board), out of funds legally available for payment, noncumulative cash dividends applied to the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share of the Preferred Stock at an annual rate to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement on each dividend payment date for each dividend period.

The "*dividend payment dates*" will be specified in the applicable pricing supplement; *provided* that if any such dividend payment date is not a business day, then such date will nevertheless be a dividend payment date but dividends on the Preferred Stock of such series, when, as and if declared, will be paid on the next succeeding business day (without adjustment in the amount of the dividend per share of the Preferred Stock of such series).

A "business day" means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday or (ii) a day on which banking institutions in The City of New York are authorized or required by law or executive order to remain closed.

A "*dividend period*" means each period from and including a dividend payment date (except that the initial dividend period relating to a series of Preferred Stock will commence on the original issue date of the shares of such series) and continuing to, but excluding, the next succeeding dividend payment date. As that term is used in this prospectus supplement, each dividend payment date "relates" to the dividend period most recently ending before such dividend payment date.

Dividends will be paid to holders of record of each series of Preferred Stock as they appear on our books on the applicable record date, which will be the 15th calendar day before such dividend payment date, or such other record date fixed for that purpose by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board) that is not more than 60 nor less than 10 days prior to such dividend payment date, in advance of payment of each particular dividend.

The amount of dividends payable per share of the Preferred Stock will be computed by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as the dividend disbursement agent (as defined below) on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

Dividends on shares of each series of Preferred Stock will not be cumulative and will not be mandatory. If our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board) does not declare a dividend on the Preferred Stock of any series in respect of a dividend period, then no dividend will be deemed to have accrued for such dividend period, be payable on the related dividend payment date, or accumulate, and we will have no obligation to pay any dividend accrued for such dividend period, whether or not our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board) declares a dividend on the Preferred Stock of any series or any other series of our preferred stock or on our common stock for any future dividend period. References to the "accrual" (or similar terms) of dividends in this prospectus supplement refer only to the determination of the amount of such dividend and do not imply that any right to a dividend arises prior to the date on which a dividend is declared.

During any dividend period while the Preferred Stock of such series is outstanding, unless the full dividends for the preceding dividend period on all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock of such series have been declared and paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside and any declared but unpaid dividends for any prior period have been paid:

(i)

no dividend shall be declared or paid or set aside for payment and no distribution shall be declared or made or set aside for payment on any junior stock (other than (1) a dividend payable solely in junior stock or (2) any dividend in connection with the implementation of a shareholders' rights plan or the redemption or repurchase of any rights under such plan),

(ii)

no shares of junior stock shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by us, directly or indirectly (other than (1) as a result of a reclassification of junior stock for or into other junior stock, (2) the exchange or conversion of one share of junior stock for or into another share of junior stock, (3) purchases, redemptions or other acquisitions of shares of junior stock in connection with any employment contract, benefit plan or other similar arrangement with or for the benefit of employees, officers, directors or consultants, (4) the purchase of fractional interests in shares of junior stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such securities or the security being converted or exchanged and (5) through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of junior stock) nor shall any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such securities by us and

(iii)

no shares of dividend parity stock shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by us other than pursuant to *pro rata* offers to purchase all, or a *pro rata* portion, of the Preferred Stock and such dividend parity stock (other than the exchange or conversion of such dividend parity stock for or into shares of junior stock).

When dividends are not paid in full upon the shares of each series of Preferred Stock (except for reasons described under " Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends") and any dividend parity stock, all dividends declared upon shares the Preferred Stock and any dividend parity stock will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends for the then-current dividend period, and any prior dividend periods for which dividends were declared but not paid, per share on the Preferred Stock of such series, and accrued dividends, including any accumulations, on any dividend parity stock, bear to each other.

#### Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends

We will be prohibited from declaring dividends for payment on the Preferred Stock of each series on any dividend payment date in an aggregate amount exceeding the New Common Equity Amount, if on that declaration date, either:

our Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' Most Recent Weighted Average RBC Ratio was less than 175%; or

(x) our Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount for the period ending on the quarter that is two quarters prior to the most recently completed quarter is less than or equal to zero and (y) our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount as of the most recently completed quarter and as of the end of the quarter that is two quarters before the most recently completed quarter has declined by 20% or more as compared to our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount at the date that is ten quarters prior to the most recently completed quarter (the "*Benchmark Quarter End Test Date*").

The limitation on dividends provided for in the first bullet point above will be of no force and effect if, as of a dividend declaration date, the combined total assets of our Insurance Subsidiaries do not account for 25% or more of our consolidated total assets as reflected on our most recent consolidated financial statements.

If we fail to satisfy either of the above tests for any dividend payment date, the restrictions on dividends will continue until we satisfy both tests for a dividend payment date. In addition, in the case of a restriction arising under the second bullet point above, the restriction on payment of dividends on the Preferred Stock of each series in an aggregate amount exceeding the New Common Equity Amount will continue until we satisfy the two tests set forth above for a dividend payment date and our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount has increased, or has declined by less than 20%, in either case

as compared to our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount at the end of the Benchmark Quarter End Test Date for each dividend payment date as to which dividend restrictions were imposed under the second test above. For example, if we failed to satisfy the second test above for three consecutive dividend payment dates, we would be able to declare dividends on each series of Preferred Stock then outstanding on the fourth dividend payment date only if, as of the related declaration date:

we satisfied both of the tests set forth above for that fourth dividend payment date; and

our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount as of the last completed quarter for that dividend payment date had increased from, or was less than 20% below, its level as of the end of each of the eleventh, twelfth and thirteenth quarters, preceding the most recently completed quarter.

The information required to calculate the Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' Most Recent Weighted Average RBC Ratio for a year will be set forth in the Annual Statements of the Covered Insurance Subsidiaries, which are typically filed on or before March 1 of the following year.

With respect to the quarter ended September 30, 2013:

for the period ended on March 31, 2013, our Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount was \$2.25 billion; and

our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount as of September 30, 2013, and as of March 31, 2013, as compared to such amount as of March 31, 2011, had increased by 5.5% and 2.2%, respectively.

For illustrative purposes and recognizing that for purposes of applying the dividend restriction our net income and shareholders' equity will be determined on a quarterly basis, the following table sets forth net income for the annual periods and the change in adjusted shareholders' equity for the two year periods from 2008 to 2012.

(\$ in millions)	Net in	come (loss)	equity(1)	
2008	\$	(1,542)	N/A(2	2)
2009		888	(10.9)	%
2010		911	10.5	
2011		787	(0.7)	
2012		2,306	3.3	

(1)

Calculated as the change in adjusted shareholders' equity as of December 31 of the current year compared to December of the second prior year. Adjusted shareholders' equity is shareholders' equity excluding accumulated other comprehensive income and loss.

(2)

Historical results not available due to changes in accounting standards. The percentage change in adjusted shareholders' equity from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008 was (17.7)%.

We believe that we would have been able to declare dividends on the Preferred Stock in each quarter during the five year period ended December 31, 2012. In addition, although the foregoing tests would not restrict our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board) from declaring dividends on the Preferred Stock currently, there can be no assurance that future financial results will not result in these tests restricting the declaration of dividends.

The term "Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' Most Recent Weighted Average RBC Ratio" is defined below and is based upon the "RBC" or "risk-based capital" ratios that insurance companies are

required to calculate and report to their regulators as of the end of each year in accordance with prescribed procedures. The ratio measures the relationship of an insurance company's "total adjusted capital", calculated in accordance with those prescribed procedures, relative to a standard that is determined based on the magnitude of various risks present in an insurance company's operations. The prescribed procedures set forth the RBC levels, ranging from the "company action level" to the "mandatory control level", at which certain corrective actions are required and at which a state insurance regulator is required, or authorized and expected, to take regulatory action.

The highest RBC level is known as the "company action level". If an insurance company's "total adjusted capital" is greater than the "company action level", no corrective action is required to be taken. At progressively lower levels of "total adjusted capital", an insurance company faces increasingly rigorous levels of corrective action, including the submission of a comprehensive financial plan to the insurance regulator in its state of domicile, a mandatory examination or analysis of the insurance company's business and operations by the regulator and the issuance of appropriate corrective orders to address the insurance company's financial problems, and, at the lowest levels, either voluntary or mandatory action by the regulator to place the insurer under regulatory control. The "company action level" is twice the level (known as the "authorized control level") below which the regulator is authorized (but not yet required) to place the insurance company under regulatory control. The Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' Most Recent Weighted Average RBC Ratio is based upon the "company action level".

If because of a change or cumulative effect of changes in insurance company statutory accounting or in the determination of Company Action Level RBC, our Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' Most Recent Weighted Average RBC Ratio is higher or lower than it would have been absent such change or cumulative effect of changes, then, for purposes of the calculations in the first test set forth above, and for so long as such calculations are required to be performed, our Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' Most Recent Weighted Average RBC Ratio may, in our discretion, be calculated on a best efforts *pro forma* basis as if such change or cumulative effect of changes had not occurred.

With the exception of terms that have specific insurance regulatory meanings such as "risk-based capital", all financial terms used in this caption "Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends" will be determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP as applied and reflected in our related financial statements as of the relevant dates, except as provided in the next sentence. If because of a change or cumulative effect of changes in U.S. GAAP, either:

our net income for the quarter in which such change or cumulative effect of changes take effect is higher or lower than it would have been absent such change or cumulative effect of changes and our Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount is higher or lower than it would have been absent such change or cumulative effect of changes, then, for purposes of the calculations described in the second test set forth above, commencing with the fiscal quarter for which such changes in U.S. GAAP becomes effective, and for so long as such calculations are required to be performed, such Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount may, in our discretion, be calculated on a best efforts pro forma basis as if such change or cumulative effect of changes had not occurred; or

our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount as of the end of the quarter in which such change or cumulative effect of changes take effect is higher or lower than it would have been absent such change or cumulative effect of changes then, for purposes of the calculations described in the second test set forth above, commencing with the fiscal quarter for which such changes in U.S. GAAP becomes effective, and for so long as such calculations are required to be performed, our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount may, in our discretion, be calculated on a best efforts *pro forma* basis as if such change or cumulative effect of changes had not occurred.

If at any relevant time or for any relevant period, we are not a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "*Exchange Act*"), then for any such relevant dates and periods we will prepare and post on our web site, or otherwise make publicly available, the financial statements that we would have been required to file with the SEC had we continued to be a reporting company under the Exchange Act, in each case on or before the dates that we would have been required to file such financial statements had we continued to be a "large accelerated filer" within the meaning of Rule 12-b2 under the Exchange Act.

As used in this section:

"Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount" means, as of any quarter end, our shareholders' equity, as reflected on our consolidated statement of financial position as of such quarter end, excluding (i) accumulated other comprehensive income and loss and (ii) any increase in our shareholders' equity resulting from the issuance of preferred stock (other than the Preferred Stock) during the period from and including the first dividend payment date on which we were restricted in our ability to pay dividends on the Preferred Stock as a result of our Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount having been less than zero and our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount having declined by 20% or more as compared to the Benchmark Quarter End Test Date, through to the first quarter end thereafter as of which our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount has declined by less than 20% or increased as compared to the Benchmark Quarter End Test Date, in each case, as reflected on such consolidated statement of financial position.

"Annual Statement" means, as to an Insurance Subsidiary, the annual statement of such Insurance Subsidiary containing its statutory balance sheet and income statement as required to be filed by it with one or more state insurance commissioners or other state insurance regulatory authorities.

"*Company Action Level RBC*" has the meaning specified in Section 35-A15 (or the relevant successor section, if any) of the Illinois Insurance Code or similar provision of the laws governing property-casualty insurance companies for the state in which a Covered Insurance Subsidiary is domiciled.

"*Covered Insurance Subsidiaries*" means, for any year, Insurance Subsidiaries that account for 80% or more of the Net Written Premiums of our property liability Insurance Subsidiaries for such year. Our Insurance Subsidiaries for any year will be identified by first ranking the Insurance Subsidiaries from largest to smallest based upon the amount of each Insurance Subsidiary's Net Written Premiums during such year and then, beginning with the Insurance Subsidiaries until the ratio of the combined Net Written Premiums of the Insurance Subsidiaries so identified to the combined Net Written Premiums of all of the Insurance Subsidiaries during such year equals or exceeds 80%.

"*Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' Most Recent Weighted Average RBC Ratio*" means, as of any date, an amount (expressed as a percentage) calculated as (i) the sum of the Total Adjusted Capital of each of our Covered Insurance Subsidiaries as shown on such Covered Insurance Subsidiary's most recently filed Annual Statement, divided by (ii) the sum of the Company Action Level RBC of each of our Covered Insurance Subsidiaries, which is determined as two times the authorized control level RBC, as shown on such Covered Subsidiary's most recently filed Annual Statement. The computation will be done in a manner that does not double count subsidiary RBC.

"Insurance Subsidiary" means any of our subsidiaries that is organized under the laws of any state in the United States and is licensed as a property-casualty insurance company in any state in the United States.

"*Net Written Premiums*" means, as to an Insurance Subsidiary for any full fiscal year, the total net written premiums by such Insurance Subsidiary for such year as shown on such Insurance Subsidiary's most recently filed Annual Statement including any affiliate assumed or ceded premiums.

"*New Common Equity Amount*" means, at any date, the net proceeds (after underwriters' or placement agents' fees, commissions or discounts and other expenses relating to the issuances) received by us from new issuances of our common stock (whether in one or more public offerings registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "*Securities Act*"), or private placements or other transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act) during the period commencing on the 90th day prior to such date, and which are designated by our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board) at or before the time of issuance as available to pay dividends on one or more series of Preferred Stock.

"*Total Adjusted Capital*" has the meaning specified in Section 35-A5 (or the relevant successor section, if any) of the Illinois Insurance Code or similar provision of the laws governing property-casualty insurance companies for the state in which a Covered Insurance Subsidiary is domiciled.

"Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount" means, for any period ending on the last day of a fiscal quarter, the sum of our U.S. GAAP net income for the four fiscal quarters ending on the last day of such fiscal quarter, with losses being treated as negative numbers for such purpose.

"U.S. GAAP" means, at any date or for any period, U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as in effect on such date or for such period.

#### Notices Related to Potential or Actual Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends

We are required to give notice to holders of each series of Preferred Stock of a potential restriction on the declaration and payment of dividends that could take effect for a subsequent dividend payment date two quarters in the future if:

our Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount for the most recently completed quarter is less than or equal to zero; and

our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount as of the most recently completed quarter has declined by 20% or more as compared to our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount as of the date that is eight quarters prior to the most recently completed quarter.

We will send such a notice no later than the first dividend payment date following the end of the most recently completed quarter as of which the above tests indicate that a potential restriction on declaration and payment of dividends could occur. Such notice will be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of record of the Preferred Stock at their respective last addresses appearing on our books and we will file a copy of such notice on Form 8-K with the SEC. Such notice will (i) set forth the results of our Trailing Four Quarters Net Income Amount and our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amounts for the relevant period and dates, and (ii) state that we may be limited by the terms of the Preferred Stock from declaring and paying dividends on such future dividend payment date unless we, through the generation of earnings or new issuances of our common stock, increase our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount by an amount specified in such notice by the second dividend payment date after the date of such notice.

By not later than the 15<sup>th</sup> day prior to each dividend payment date for which dividends are being suspended because we have failed either of the two tests set forth above and we are not otherwise able to pay dividends out of New Common Equity Amount, we will give notice of such suspension by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of record of each series of Preferred Stock, and will file a copy of such notice on Form 8-K with the SEC. Such notice, in addition to stating that dividends will be suspended, will set forth the fact that the Covered Insurance Subsidiaries' risk based

capital ratio is less than 175% of such subsidiaries' company action level if dividends are suspended by reason of failing to satisfy the first test above and the applicable Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount (and the amount by which our Adjusted Shareholders' Equity Amount must increase in order for declaration and payment of dividends to be resumed) if dividends are suspended by reason of failing to satisfy the second test above.

#### Interpretive Provisions and Qualifications

In order to give effect to the foregoing, the terms of each series of Preferred Stock prohibit our board of directors (or duly authorized committee of the board) from declaring dividends on the Preferred Stock of any series on a declaration date (i) that is more than 60 days prior to the related dividend payment date or (ii) that is earlier than the date on which our financial statements for the most recently completed quarter prior to the related dividend payment date have been filed with or furnished to the SEC (*e.g.*, on a Form 10-K, 10-Q or 8-K) or have otherwise been made publicly available. The limitation in clause (ii) of the preceding sentence is subject to the exception that, if the board of directors determines to delay filing our financial statements (without giving effect to any permitted extensions), for example because of concerns over the accuracy of such financial statements or their compliance with U.S. GAAP, then the board of directors (or any duly authorized committee of the board) will be permitted to determine the ability of the board of directors (or any duly authorized committee of the board) to declare dividends under the financial test outlined above based upon our financial statements as most recently filed with the SEC or otherwise made publicly available.

Any other class or series of our preferred stock will not be deemed to rank senior to (or other than on a parity with) the Preferred Stock of each series in the payment of dividends solely because such other class or series of our stock does not include the limitation on payment of dividends (and the related exceptions) described in " Restrictions on Declaration and Payment of Dividends". Therefore, we may pay dividends on the shares of any such other class or series of our stock that is otherwise on a parity with each series of Preferred Stock for periods during which we may not pay dividends on such Preferred Stock because of such limitation.

#### Redemption

Each series of Preferred Stock is perpetual and has no maturity date. We may, at our option, redeem the shares of the Preferred Stock of any series (i) in whole but not in part at any time prior to the initial redemption date specified in the applicable pricing supplement (the "initial redemption date"), within 90 days after the occurrence of a "rating agency event" at a redemption price equal to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), or if greater, a make-whole redemption price calculated as described herein, in each case, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared dividends, to, but excluding, the redemption date, or (ii) in whole or in part, from time to time, on any dividend payment date on or after the initial redemption date at a redemption price equal to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared in the section price equal to \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without regard to any undeclared dividends, to, but excluding, the redemption date. Dividends will cease to accrue on the shares of the Preferred Stock called for redemption from and including the redemption date.

For the purposes of the preceding paragraph:

"*make-whole redemption price*" means, with respect to a redemption of the Preferred Stock in whole prior to the initial redemption date, the present values of (i) \$25,000 per share of Preferred Stock and (ii) all undeclared dividends for the dividend periods from the date of redemption to, and including, the initial redemption date, in each case, discounted to the date of

redemption on a quarterly basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the treasury rate, as calculated by the treasury dealer plus a make-whole amount to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement (the "make-whole amount");

"*treasury rate*" means the quarterly equivalent yield to maturity of the treasury security that corresponds to the treasury price (calculated in accordance with standard market practice and computed by the treasury dealer as of the second trading day preceding the redemption date);

"*treasury security*" means the United States Treasury security that the treasury dealer determines would be appropriate to use, at the time of determination and in accordance with standard market practice, in pricing the Preferred Stock being redeemed in a tender offer based on a spread to United States Treasury yields;

"*treasury price*" means the bid-side price for the treasury security as of the third trading day preceding the redemption date, as set forth in the Wall Street Journal in the table entitled "Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills", except that: (i) if that table (or any successor table) is not published or does not contain that price information on that trading day, or (ii) if the treasury dealer determines that the price information is not reasonably reflective of the actual bid-side price of the treasury security prevailing at 3:30 p.m., New York City time, on that trading day, then treasury price will instead mean the bid-side price for the treasury security at or around 3:30 p.m., New York City time, on that trading day (expressed on a next trading day settlement basis) as determined by the treasury dealer through such alternative means as are commercially reasonable under the circumstances; and

"*treasury dealer*" means, unless specified in the applicable pricing supplement, the purchasing agent and its successors, or, if the then appointed treasury dealer refuses or is unable to act as treasury dealer for this purpose, a primary U.S. Government securities dealer in the United States specified by us for these purposes.

"*Rating agency event*" means that any nationally recognized statistical rating organization as defined in Section 3(a)(62) of the Exchange Act, that then publishes a rating for us (a "*rating agency*") amends, clarifies or changes the criteria it uses to assign equity credit to securities such as the Preferred Stock, which amendment, clarification or change results in:

the shortening of the length of time the Preferred Stock is assigned a particular level of equity credit by that rating agency as compared to the length of time it would have been assigned that level of equity credit by that rating agency or its predecessor on the initial issuance of the Preferred Stock; or

the lowering of the equity credit (including up to a lesser amount) assigned to the Preferred Stock by that rating agency as compared to the equity credit assigned by that rating agency or its predecessor on the initial issuance of the Preferred Stock.

If fewer than all of the outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock of a particular series are to be redeemed, the shares to be redeemed will be selected either *pro rata* from the holders of record of shares of such series of Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of shares held by those holders or by lot or in such other manner as our board of directors (or a duly authorized committee of the board) may determine to be fair and equitable.

We will mail notice of every redemption of the applicable series of Preferred Stock by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of record of such Preferred Stock to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on our books. This mailing will be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed for redemption (*provided* that if the Preferred Stock is held in book-entry form through The Depository Trust Company ("*DTC*"), we may give this notice in any manner permitted by DTC). Any notice mailed or otherwise given as provided in this paragraph will be

conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives this notice, and failure duly to give this notice by mail or otherwise, or any defect in this notice or in the mailing or provision of this notice, to any holder of the applicable series of Preferred Stock designated for redemption will not affect the validity of the redemption of any other shares of such series of Preferred Stock.

Each notice will state:

the redemption date;

the number of shares of such series of Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less than all shares of such series held by the holder are to be redeemed, the number of shares to be redeemed from the holder;

the redemption price or the manner of its calculation; and

if Preferred Stock of such series is evidenced by definitive certificates, the place or places where the certificates representing those shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.

If notice of redemption of any shares of a series of Preferred Stock has been duly given and if, on or before the redemption date specified in the notice, we have set aside all funds necessary for the redemption in trust for the *pro rata* benefit of the holders of record of any shares of such series of Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, notwithstanding that any certificate for any share called for redemption has not been surrendered for cancellation, from and after the redemption date, those shares will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of the holders of the series (including the right to receive any dividends) will terminate, except the right to receive the redemption price.

Neither holders of any series of Preferred Stock nor holders of the Depositary Shares representing the underlying Preferred Stock of such series will have the right to require the redemption or repurchase of the Preferred Stock.

#### Liquidation Rights

In the event that we voluntarily or involuntarily liquidate, dissolve or wind up our affairs, holders of the Preferred Stock of each series will be entitled to receive an amount per share (the "*total liquidation amount*") equal to the liquidation amount of \$25,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), plus any dividends that have been declared but not paid prior to the date of payment of distributions to the holders of such Preferred Stock, without regard to any undeclared dividends. Holders of each series of Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive the total liquidation amount out of our assets that are available for distribution to shareholders, after payment or provision for payment of our debts and other liabilities but before any distribution of assets is made to holders of our common stock or any other junior stock.

If our assets are not sufficient to pay the total liquidation amount in full to all holders of each series of Preferred Stock and all holders of any of our stock ranking equally with the Preferred Stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock and the Series C Preferred Stock, as to distributions of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the amounts paid to the holders of each series of Preferred Stock and to such other stock will be paid *pro rata* in accordance with the respective total liquidation amount for those holders. If the total liquidation amount per share of Preferred Stock of each series has been paid in full to all holders of the Preferred Stock and such other stock, the holders of our common stock or any other junior stock will be entitled to receive all of our remaining assets according to their respective rights and preferences.

For purposes of the liquidation rights, neither the sale, conveyance, exchange or transfer of all or substantially all of our property and assets, nor the consolidation or merger by us with or into any

other corporation or by another corporation with or into us, will constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of our affairs.

#### Voting Rights

Except as provided below, the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will have no voting rights.

#### Right to Elect Two Directors Upon Nonpayment

If and when the dividends on a series of Preferred Stock and any other class or series of our preferred stock, whether bearing dividends on a noncumulative or cumulative basis but otherwise ranking on a parity with the Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends and that has voting rights equivalent to those described in this paragraph ("*voting parity stock*"), have not been declared and paid (i) in the case of a series of Preferred Stock and voting parity stock bearing noncumulative dividends, in full for at least six quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent (whether or not consecutive); or (ii) in the case of voting parity stock bearing cumulative dividends, in a aggregate amount equal to full dividends for at least six quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent (whether or not consecutive), the authorized number of directors then constituting our board of directors will be increased by two. Holders of the series of Preferred Stock on which dividends have not been declared and paid, together with the holders of all other affected classes and series of voting parity stock, voting as a single class, will be entitled to elect the two additional members of our board of directors (the "*preferred stock directors*") at any annual or special meeting of shareholders at which dividends have not been paid, called as provided below, but only if the election of any preferred stock directors would not cause us to violate the corporate governance requirement of the NYSE (or any other exchange on which our securities may be listed) that listed companies must have a majority of independent directors.

At any time after this voting power has vested as described above, our secretary may, and upon the written request of holders of record of at least 20% of the outstanding shares of the applicable series of Preferred Stock and voting parity stock (addressed to the secretary at our principal office) must, call a special meeting of the holders of such series of Preferred Stock and voting parity stock for the election of the preferred stock directors; *provided* that if any such written request for a special meeting is received less than 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of our stockholders such election shall be held only at such next annual or special meeting of stockholders. Notice for a special meeting will be given in a similar manner to that provided in our Amended and Restated Bylaws for a special meeting of the shareholders, which we will provide upon request, or as required by law. If our secretary is required to call a meeting but does not do so within 20 days after receipt of any such request, then any holder of shares of the applicable series of Preferred Stock may (at our expense) call such meeting, upon notice as provided in this paragraph, and for that purpose will have access to our stock books. The preferred stock directors to serve until the next annual meeting of our shareholders unless they have been previously terminated as described below. In case any vacancy occurs among the preferred stock directors, a successor will be elected by our board of directors to serve until the next annual meeting of the shareholders upon the nomination of the then remaining preferred stock directors or if none remains in office, by the vote of the holders of record of a majority of the outstanding shares of the applicable series of Preferred Stock and all voting parity stock for which dividends have not been paid, voting as a single class. The preferred stock directors shall each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

Whenever full dividends have been paid on the applicable series of Preferred Stock and any noncumulative voting parity stock for at least one year and all dividends on any cumulative voting parity stock have been paid in full, then the right of the holders of such series of Preferred Stock to

elect the preferred stock directors will cease (but subject always to the same provisions for the vesting of these voting rights in the case of any similar non-payment of dividends in respect of future dividend periods), the terms of office of all preferred stock directors will immediately terminate and the number of directors constituting our board of directors will be reduced accordingly.

#### Other Voting Rights

So long as any shares of a series of Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all outstanding shares of such series of Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class, will be required to:

authorize or increase the authorized amount of, or issue shares of any class or series of senior stock, or issue any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the right to purchase any such shares;

amend the provisions of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation so as to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of such series of Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; *provided*, *however*, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued shares of such series of Preferred Stock or authorized common stock or preferred stock or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of preferred stock ranking equally with or junior to such series of Preferred Stock with respect to the payment of dividends (whether such dividends are cumulative) or the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of such series of Preferred Stock; or

consolidate with or merge into any other corporation unless the shares of such series of Preferred Stock outstanding at the time of such consolidation or merger or sale are converted into or exchanged for preference securities having such rights, privileges and voting powers, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers of such series of Preferred Stock, taken as a whole.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of any applicable series of Preferred Stock will have been redeemed or called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds will have been set aside by us for the benefit of the holders of such series of Preferred Stock to effect such redemption. *See* "Description of Capital Stock Preferred Stock Voting Rights" in the accompanying prospectus for more information.

## No Preemptive and Conversion Rights

No holders of the Preferred Stock of any series will have any preemptive rights. The Preferred Stock is not convertible into or exchangeable for property or shares of any other series or class of our capital stock.

#### Transfer Agent, Registrar & Dividend Disbursement Agent

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. will be the transfer agent, registrar and dividend disbursement agent for each series of Preferred Stock as of the original issue date of the shares of such series. We may terminate such appointment and may appoint a successor transfer agent, registrar and/or dividend disbursement agent at any time and from time to time, *provided* that we will use our best efforts to ensure that there is, at all relevant times when the Preferred Stock of each series is outstanding, a person or entity appointed and serving as transfer agent, registrar and/or dividend disbursement agent.

## DESCRIPTION OF THE DEPOSITARY SHARES

In this prospectus supplement, references to "holders" of the Depositary Shares mean those who own the Depositary Shares registered in their own names, on the books that we or the Depositary maintain for this purpose, and not indirect holders who own beneficial interest in the Depositary Shares registered in street name or issued in book-entry form through DTC. See "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

The following is a brief summary of the material terms of the Depositary Shares relating to the Preferred Stock of each series. As described above under "Description of the Preferred Stock", we are issuing from time to time fractional interests in shares of one or more series of Preferred Stock in the form of the Depositary Shares. Each Depositary Share will represent a 1/1,000th interest in a share of a series of Preferred Stock, and will be evidenced by a depositary receipt. The shares of each series of Preferred Stock represented by the Depositary Shares will be deposited under a deposit agreement among us, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as the Depositary, and the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts evidencing the Depositary Shares. Subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, each holder of Depositary Shares will be entitled, through the Depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of the applicable series of Preferred Stock represented by such Depositary Shares, to all the rights and preferences of such Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights).

Immediately following each issuance of the Preferred Stock of a particular series, we will deposit the Preferred Stock of such series with the Depositary, which will then issue the Depositary Shares. Each series of Preferred Stock will be held by the Depositary under a separate deposit agreement. The form of deposit agreement and the form of depositary receipts with respect to each series of Preferred Stock will be included as exhibits to a current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.

#### Dividends and Other Distributions

The Depositary will distribute any cash dividends or other cash distributions received in respect of the deposited Preferred Stock of a series to the record holders of the Depositary Shares relating to the underlying series of Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of such Depositary Shares held by the holders. The Depositary will distribute any property received by it other than cash to the record holders of the Depositary Shares entitled to those distributions, unless it determines that the distribution cannot be made proportionally among those holders or that it is not feasible to make a distribution. In that event, the Depositary may, with our approval, sell the property and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to the holders of the applicable Depositary Shares in proportion to the number of the Depositary Shares they hold.

Record dates for the payment of dividends and other matters relating to the Depositary Shares will be the same as the corresponding record dates for the applicable series of Preferred Stock.

The amounts distributed to holders of the Depositary Shares will be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by the Depositary or by us on account of taxes or other governmental charges.

#### **Redemption of the Depositary Shares**

If we redeem the Preferred Stock of any series represented by the Depositary Shares, the Depositary Shares will be redeemed from the proceeds received by the Depositary resulting from the redemption of such Preferred Stock held by the Depositary. The redemption price per Depositary Share will be equal to 1/1,000th of the redemption price per share payable with respect to the Preferred Stock of such series (equivalent to \$25 per Depositary Share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared dividends, on the shares of the Preferred Stock. Whenever we redeem shares of the Preferred Stock of a particular series held by the Depositary, the Depositary will redeem, as of the same redemption date, the number of the Depositary Shares representing shares of the Preferred Stock of such series so redeemed.

In case of any redemption of less than all of the outstanding Depositary Shares relating to a particular series of Preferred Stock, the related Depositary Shares to be redeemed will be selected by us *pro rata*, by lot or in such other manner we determine to be equitable. In any such case, we will redeem the applicable Depositary Shares only in increments of 1,000 shares and any integral multiple thereof.

## Voting of the Preferred Stock

When the Depositary receives notice of any meeting at which the holders of any series of Preferred Stock are entitled to vote, the Depositary will mail (or otherwise transmit by an authorized method) the information contained in the notice to the record holders of the applicable Depositary Shares relating to such series of Preferred Stock. Each record holder of Depositary Shares on the record date, which will be the same date as the record date for the applicable series of Preferred Stock, may instruct the Depositary to vote the amount of the Preferred Stock of such series represented by the holder's Depositary Shares. To the extent possible, the Depositary will vote the amount of the Preferred Stock of such series represented by the Depositary Shares in accordance with the instructions it receives. We will agree to take all reasonable actions that the Depositary determines are necessary to enable the Depositary to vote as instructed. If the Depositary does not receive specific instructions from the holders of any Depositary Shares, it will not vote the amount of the Preferred Stock of such series represented by such Depositary Shares, it will not vote the amount of the Preferred Stock of such series represented by such

## Listing

Unless specified in the applicable pricing supplement, we intend to apply to list the Depositary Shares relating to each series of Preferred Stock on the NYSE under a symbol to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. We generally expect to list the Depositary Shares relating to a particular series of Preferred Stock only after we have completed the offering of that series. There is no guarantee, however, that we will be able to list the Depositary Shares relating to any series of Preferred Stock. Even if the Depositary Shares are listed, there may be little or no secondary market for the Depositary Shares. Even if a secondary market for the Depositary Shares develops, it may not provide significant liquidity, and transaction costs in any secondary market could be high. As a result, the difference between bid and asked prices in any secondary market could be substantial. We do not expect that there will be any separate public trading market for the shares of Preferred Stock except as represented by the Depositary Shares.

### Form of the Depositary Shares

The Depositary Shares will be issued in book-entry form through DTC (see "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance"). The Preferred Stock of each series will be issued in registered form to the Depositary.

## Depositary

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. will be the Depositary for the Depositary Shares as of the original issuance date of each series of Preferred Stock relating to the Depositary Shares. We may terminate any such appointment and may appoint a successor Depositary at any time and from time to time, *provided* that we will use our best efforts to ensure that there is, at all relevant times when the Preferred Stock of any series is outstanding, a person or entity appointed and serving as such Depositary.

## LEGAL OWNERSHIP AND BOOK-ENTRY ISSUANCE

All of the Depositary Shares we offer will be issued under a book-entry system in the form of one or more global depositary receipts, unless otherwise specified in the applicable pricing supplement. We will register the global depositary receipts in the name of Cede & Co., as a nominee for DTC, New York, New York, or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC and deposit the global depositary receipts with the Depositary. Ownership of beneficial interests in a global depositary receipt will be limited to institutions who have accounts with DTC ("*participants*") or persons who hold interests through such participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee (with respect to interests of participants) and records of participants (with respect to interests of persons other than participants).

Following any issuance of the Depositary Shares in book-entry only form, DTC will credit the accounts of its participants with the Depositary Shares upon our instructions. In order to own a beneficial interest in a depositary receipt, you must be an organization that participates in DTC or have an account with an organization that participates in DTC.

As long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the global depositary receipts, DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner and holder of the global depositary receipts and all Depositary Shares represented by these depositary receipts for all purposes under the instruments governing the rights and obligations of holders of Depositary Shares. Except in the limited circumstances referred to above, owners of beneficial interests in global depositary receipts:

will not be entitled to have such global depositary receipts or the Depositary Shares represented by these receipts registered in their names;

will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of depositary receipts in exchange for beneficial interests in the global depositary receipts;

will not be able to transfer their interests except in accordance with the applicable procedures of DTC; and

will not be considered to be owners or holders of the global depositary receipts or the Depositary Shares represented by these receipts for any purpose under the instruments governing the rights and obligations of holders of Depositary Shares.

The laws of some jurisdictions may require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of securities in definitive form. These laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in the Depositary Shares, so long as the Depositary Shares are represented by global depositary receipts.

Accordingly, each person owning a beneficial interest in the depositary receipts must rely on the procedures of DTC and, if that person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which that person owns its beneficial interest, in order to exercise any rights of a holder of Depositary Shares.

As long as the Depositary Shares are represented by the global depositary receipts, we will pay dividends on the series of Preferred Stock represented by the Depositary Shares to the relevant agent who in turn will make payments to DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered holder of the global depositary receipts. Payments to DTC will be in immediately available funds by wire transfer. DTC will credit the relevant accounts of their participants on the applicable date. Neither we nor the depositary or our agent will be responsible for making any payments to participants or customers of participants or for maintaining any records relating to the holdings of participants and their customers, and you will have to rely on the procedures of DTC and its participants.

If we discontinue the book-entry only form system of registration, we will replace the global depositary receipt with definitive depositary receipts.

Transfers between participants in DTC will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with DTC rules and will be settled in same-day funds.

DTC has advised us that it is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments that DTC's participants deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among direct participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between direct participants' accounts. Direct participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("*DTCC*"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.

DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a direct participant, either directly or indirectly. The DTC rules applicable to its participants are on file with the SEC.

Indirect access to the DTC system is available to others such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a participant, either directly or indirectly (indirect participants).

Although DTC is expected to follow the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfers of interests in a global security among its participants, it is under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued at any time. None of us, the depositary, the transfer agent or the registrar will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC or its participants or indirect participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

If DTC is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as a depositary for the global security and a successor depositary is not appointed by us within 90 days, we will issue certificated depositary receipts in exchange for the global depositary receipts. Holders of an interest in a global security may receive certificated shares, at our option, in accordance with the rules and procedures of DTC in addition to those provided for under the statement. Beneficial interests in global depositary receipts held by any direct or indirect participant may also be exchanged for certificated shares upon request to DTC by such direct participant (for itself or on behalf of an indirect participant), to the transfer agent in accordance with their respective customary procedures.

As long as the Depositary Shares are represented by a global depositary receipt registered in the name of DTC, or its nominee, the Depositary Shares will trade in the DTC Same-Day Funds Settlement System. DTC requires secondary market trading activity in the Depositary Shares to settle in immediately available funds. This requirement may affect trading activity in the Depositary Shares.

So long as the global depositary receipts are held on behalf of DTC or any other clearing system, notices to holders of Depositary Shares represented by a beneficial interest in the global depositary receipts may be given by delivery of the relevant notice to DTC or the alternative clearing system, as the case may be.

The information in this section concerning DTC and its book-entry system has been obtained from sources that we believe to be reliable, but we take no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

## CERTAIN MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

This section describes certain material United States federal income tax consequences relevant to the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Preferred Stock and the Depositary Shares representing interests in such series of underlying Preferred Stock. When we refer to the Preferred Stock in this section, we mean both the underlying series of Preferred Stock and the Depositary Shares representing shares of such Preferred Stock.

The summary is limited to taxpayers who will hold the Preferred Stock as "capital assets" and who purchase the Preferred Stock in the initial offering at the public offering price. This section does not apply to you if you are a member of a class of holders subject to special rules, including:

a dealer in securities or currencies;

a trader in securities that elects to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for your securities holdings;

a bank;

an insurance company;

a thrift institution;

a regulated investment company;

a tax-exempt organization;

a person that purchases or sells the Preferred Stock as part of a wash-sale for tax purposes;

a person that owns the Preferred Stock as part of a straddle or a hedging or conversion transaction for tax purposes;

a United States holder (as defined below) whose functional currency for tax purposes is not the U.S. dollar;

a United States expatriate; or

a person liable for alternative minimum tax.

This section is based on the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "*Internal Revenue Code*"), its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations under the Internal Revenue Code, published rulings and court decisions, all as currently in effect. These laws are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis.

If an entity treated as a partnership for United States federal income tax purposes holds the Preferred Stock, the United States federal income tax treatment of a partner in that partnership will generally depend on the status of the partner and the tax treatment of the partnership. A partner in a partnership holding the Preferred Stock should consult its tax advisor with regard to the United States federal income tax treatment of an investment in the Preferred Stock.

Please consult your own tax advisor concerning the consequences of owning the Preferred Stock in your particular circumstances under the Internal Revenue Code and the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

## United States Holders

This subsection describes the tax consequences of an investment in the Preferred Stock to a United States holder. You are a United States holder if you are a beneficial owner of a share of the Preferred Stock and you are:

an individual citizen or resident of the United States;

a domestic corporation;

an estate whose income is subject to United States federal income tax regardless of its source; or

a trust if a United States court can exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more United States persons are authorized to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

If you are not a United States holder, this subsection does not apply to you and you should refer to " Non-U.S. Holders" below.

### Distributions on the Preferred Stock

Distributions with respect to our Preferred Stock will constitute dividends to the extent made out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under United States federal income tax principles. If a distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will be treated as a non-taxable return of capital to the extent of your tax basis in our Preferred Stock (and you will reduce your tax basis accordingly) and thereafter as capital gain from the sale or exchange of such Preferred Stock. If you are a corporation, dividends received by you will be eligible for the dividends-received deduction if you meet certain holding period and other applicable requirements. If you are a noncorporate United States holder, dividends paid to you will qualify for taxation at preferential rates if you meet certain holding period and other applicable requirements. United States holders should consult their own tax advisers regarding the availability of the reduced dividend tax rate in light of their particular circumstances.

Dividends that exceed certain thresholds in relation to your tax basis in the Preferred Stock could be characterized as an "extraordinary dividend" under the Internal Revenue Code. If you are a corporation, you have held the stock for two years or less before the dividend announcement date and you receive an extraordinary dividend, you will generally be required to reduce your tax basis in your stock with respect to which such dividend was made by the non-taxed portion of such dividend. If the amount of the reduction exceeds your tax basis in such stock, the excess is treated as taxable gain. If you are a noncorporate United States holder and you receive an extraordinary dividend, you will be required to treat any losses on the sale of our Preferred Stock as long-term capital losses to the extent of the extraordinary dividends you receive that qualify for the preferential rates described above. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

#### Sale or Exchange of the Preferred Stock Other than by Redemption

If you sell or otherwise dispose of your Preferred Stock (other than by redemption), you will generally recognize capital gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized upon the disposition and your adjusted tax basis of the Preferred Stock. Capital gain of a noncorporate United States holder is generally taxed at preferential rates where the holder has a holding period greater than one year.

#### Redemption of the Preferred Stock

Redemption of your Preferred Stock generally will be a taxable event. You will be treated as if you had sold your Preferred Stock if the redemption:

results in a complete termination of your stock interest in us;

is substantially disproportionate with respect to you; or

is not essentially equivalent to a dividend with respect to you.

In determining whether any of these tests has been met, shares of Preferred Stock or other classes of our stock considered to be owned by you by reason of certain constructive ownership rules, as well as any such shares actually owned, must be taken into account.

If we redeem your Preferred Stock in a redemption that meets one of the tests listed above, you generally will recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the amount of cash received by you less your tax basis in the Preferred Stock redeemed. This gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or capital loss if you have held the Preferred Stock for more than one year.

If a redemption does not meet any of the tests described above, you generally will be taxed on the cash you receive as a dividend to the extent paid out of our current and accumulated earnings and profits. Any amount in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits will first reduce your tax basis in the Preferred Stock and thereafter will be treated as capital gain. If a redemption of the Preferred Stock is treated as a distribution that is taxable as a dividend, you should consult with your own tax advisor regarding the allocation of your basis between the redeemed and remaining stock.

#### Medicare Tax

A United States holder that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, will be subject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (1) the United States holder's "net investment income" for the relevant taxable year and (2) the excess of the United States holder's modified adjusted gross income for the taxable year over a certain threshold (which in the case of individuals will be between \$125,000 and \$250,000, depending on the individual's circumstances). A United States holder's net investment income will generally include its dividend income and its net gains from the disposition of the Preferred Stock, unless such dividend income or net gains are derived in the ordinary course of the conduct of a trade or business (other than a trade or business that consists of certain passive or trading activities). If you are a United States holder that is an individual, estate or trust, you are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the applicability of the Medicare tax to your income and gains in respect of your investment in the Preferred Stock.

#### Non-U.S. Holders

This section summarizes certain material United States federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Preferred Stock by a non-U.S. holder. You are a non-U.S. holder if you are a beneficial owner of a share of the Preferred Stock and you are, for United States federal income tax purposes:

a nonresident alien individual;

a foreign corporation; or

an estate or trust that in either case is not subject to United States federal income tax on a net income basis on income or gain from the Preferred Stock.

### Distributions on the Preferred Stock

Subject to the discussions below regarding FATCA withholding (defined below) and backup withholding, except as described below, if you are a non-U.S. holder of the Preferred Stock, dividends paid to you are subject to withholding of United States federal income tax at a 30% rate or at a lower rate if you are eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty that provides for a lower rate provided you provide us with a valid Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, your status as a person who is not a United States person and your entitlement to the lower treaty rate with respect to such payments.

If you are eligible for a reduced rate of United States tax under a tax treaty or because any such distribution is treated as a non-taxable return of capital or as capital gain since it is in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits as described above under "United States Holders" Distributions on the Preferred Stock", you may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld in excess of that rate by filing a refund claim with the United States Internal Revenue Service.

If dividends paid to you are "effectively connected" with your conduct of a trade or business within the United States, and, if required by a tax treaty, the dividends are attributable to a permanent establishment that you maintain in the United States, we and other payors generally are not required to withhold tax from the dividends, provided that you have furnished to the relevant payor a valid Internal Revenue Service Form W-8ECI or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, that:

you are not a United States person; and

the dividends are effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business within the United States and are includible in your gross income.

"Effectively connected" dividends are taxed on a net basis at rates applicable to United States citizens, resident aliens and domestic United States corporations.

If you are a corporate non-U.S. holder, "effectively connected" dividends that you receive may, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional "branch profits tax" at a 30% rate or at a lower rate if you are eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty that provides for a lower rate.

## Sale or Exchange of the Preferred Stock Other Than by Redemption

If you are a non-U.S. holder, you generally will not be subject to United States federal income tax on gain that you recognize on a disposition of the Preferred Stock unless:

the gain is "effectively connected" with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States, and the gain is attributable to a permanent establishment that you maintain in the United States, if that is required by an applicable income tax treaty as a condition for subjecting you to United States taxation on a net income basis;

you are an individual, you are present in the United States for 183 or more days in the taxable year of the disposition and certain other conditions exist; or

we are or have been a United States real property holding corporation for United States federal income tax purposes and certain other conditions are met.

If you are a non-U.S. holder described in the first bullet point immediately above you will be subject to tax on the net gain derived from the disposition under regular graduated United States federal income tax rates. If you are a corporate non-U.S. holder, "effectively connected" gains that you recognize may also, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional "branch profits tax" at a 30% rate or at a lower rate if you are eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty that provides for a lower rate. If you are an individual non-U.S. holder described in the second bullet point immediately

above you will be subject to a flat 30% tax on the gain derived from the disposition, which may be offset by United States source capital losses, even though you are not considered a resident of the United States.

We have not been, are not and do not anticipate becoming a United States real property holding corporation for United States federal income tax purposes.

#### Redemption of the Preferred Stock

Redemption of your Preferred Stock generally will be a taxable event. You will be treated as if you had sold your Preferred Stock, with the consequences described in " Sale or Exchange of the Preferred Stock Other Than by Redemption" above, if the redemption:

results in a complete termination of your stock interest in us;

is substantially disproportionate with respect to you; or

is not essentially equivalent to a dividend with respect to you.

In determining whether any of these tests has been met, shares of Preferred Stock or other classes of our stock considered to be owned by you by reason of certain constructive ownership rules, as well as any such shares actually owned, must be taken into account.

If a redemption does not meet any of the tests described above, the redemption will be treated as a distribution, with the consequences described in " Distributions on the Preferred Stock" above.

### Withholdable Payments to Foreign Financial Entities and Other Foreign Entities

A 30% withholding tax may be imposed on certain payments to certain foreign financial institutions and other foreign entities, including intermediaries ("*FATCA withholding*"). Such payments will include U.S.-source dividends and the gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of stock that can produce U.S.-source dividends. FATCA withholding applies on such payments to a foreign financial institution unless such foreign financial institution enters into (or is deemed to have entered into) an agreement with the Internal Revenue Service to, among other things, undertake to identify accounts held by certain U.S. persons or U.S.-owned foreign entities, annually report certain information about such accounts and withhold 30% of payments to such account holders whose actions prevent the financial institution from complying with these reporting and other requirements. FATCA withholding is imposed on similar types of payments to a non-financial foreign entity unless the entity certifies that it does not have any substantial U.S. owners or furnishes identifying information regarding each substantial U.S. owner. Certain countries have entered into, and other countries are expected to enter into, agreements with the United States to facilitate the type of information reporting required to avoid FATCA withholding, which will reduce but not eliminate the risk of FATCA withholding. Additionally, FATCA withholding will not apply to payments of dividends before July 1, 2014, or to payments of gross proceeds from a sale or other disposition of our Preferred Stock before January 1, 2017. You should consult your own tax advisors regarding the relevant U.S. law and other official guidance on FATCA withholding.

## Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

In general, if you are a noncorporate United States holder, dividend payments or other taxable distributions made on your Preferred Stock, as well as the payment of the proceeds from the sale or redemption of your Preferred Stock that are made within the United States will be subject to information reporting requirements. Additionally, backup withholding will generally apply to such payments if you are a noncorporate United States holder and you:

fail to provide an accurate taxpayer identification number;

are notified by the Internal Revenue Service that you have failed to report all interest or dividends required to be shown on your federal income tax returns; or

in certain circumstances, fail to comply with applicable certification requirements.

You generally may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld under the United States backup withholding rules that exceed your income tax liability by filing a refund claim with the United States Internal Revenue Service.

If you are a non-U.S. holder, certain payors are required to report payments of dividends on IRS Form 1042-S even if the payments are exempt from withholding. You are otherwise generally exempt from backup withholding and information reporting requirements with respect to:

dividend payments; and

the payment of the proceeds from the sale of your Preferred Stock effected at a United States office of a broker;

as long as the income associated with such payments is otherwise exempt from United States federal income tax, and:

the payor or broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and you have furnished to the payor or broker:

a valid Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, that you are a non-United States person, or

other documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payments as made to a non-United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments in accordance with U.S. Treasury Department regulations, or

you otherwise establish an exemption.

Payment of the proceeds from the sale of the Preferred Stock effected at a foreign office of a broker generally will not be subject to information reporting or backup withholding. However, a sale of the Preferred Stock that is effected at a foreign office of a broker will be subject to information reporting and backup withholding if:

the proceeds are transferred to an account maintained by you in the United States;

the payment of proceeds or the confirmation of the sale is mailed to you at a United States address; or

the sale has some other specified connection with the United States as provided in United States Treasury Department regulations;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above are met or you otherwise establish an exemption.

In addition, a sale of the Preferred Stock will be subject to information reporting if it is effected at a foreign office of a broker that is:

a United States person;

a controlled foreign corporation for United States tax purposes;

a foreign person 50% or more of whose gross income is effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business for a specified three-year period; or

a foreign partnership, if at any time during its tax year:

one or more of its partners are "U.S. persons", as defined in U.S. Treasury Department regulations, who in the aggregate hold more than 50% of the income or capital interest in the partnership; or

such foreign partnership is engaged in the conduct of a United States trade or business;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above are met or you otherwise establish an exemption. Backup withholding will apply if the sale is subject to information reporting and the broker has actual knowledge that you are a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments.

You generally may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules that exceed your income tax liability by filing a refund claim with the Internal Revenue Service.

THE PRECEDING DISCUSSION OF CERTAIN MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES IS FOR GENERAL INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT BEING PROVIDED AS, OR INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE, TAX ADVICE. ACCORDINGLY, YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES TO YOU OF PURCHASING, HOLDING OR DISPOSING OF THE PREFERRED STOCK, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY STATE, LOCAL, FOREIGN OR OTHER TAX LAWS, AND OF ANY CHANGES OR PROPOSED CHANGES IN APPLICABLE LAW.

## CERTAIN CONSIDERATIONS APPLICABLE TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

When we refer to the Preferred Stock in this section, we mean both the applicable series of underlying Preferred Stock and the Depositary Shares representing shares of such Preferred Stock.

A fiduciary of a pension, profit-sharing or other employee benefit plan subject to the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("*ERISA*") (each, an "*ERISA Plan*"), should consider the fiduciary standards of ERISA in the context of the ERISA Plan's particular circumstances before authorizing an investment in the Preferred Stock. Among other factors, the fiduciary should consider whether the investment would satisfy the prudence and diversification requirements of ERISA and would be consistent with the documents and instruments governing the ERISA Plan, and whether the investment would involve a prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code prohibit ERISA Plans, as well as individual retirement accounts, Keogh plans and other plans that are subject to Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code (collectively with ERISA Plans, "*Plans*"), from engaging in certain transactions involving "plan assets" with persons who are "parties in interest" under ERISA or "disqualified persons" under the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the Plan. A violation of these prohibited transaction rules may result in excise tax or other liabilities under ERISA or the Internal Revenue Code for those persons and in penalties and liabilities under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code for the fiduciary of the Plan, unless exemptive relief is available under an applicable statutory, regulatory or administrative exemption. Employee benefit plans that are governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA), certain church plans (as defined in Section 3(33) of ERISA) and non-U.S. plans (as described in Section 4(b)(4) of ERISA) ("*Non-ERISA Arrangements*") are not subject to the requirements of Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code, but may be subject to similar provisions under other applicable federal, state, local, non-U.S. or other laws ("*Similar Laws*").

The acquisition, holding or disposition of the Preferred Stock by a Plan or any entity whose underlying assets include "plan assets" by reason of any Plan's investment in the entity (a "*Plan Asset Entity*") with respect to which we, certain of our affiliates or the agents are or become a party in interest or a disqualified person may result in a direct or indirect prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code, unless the Preferred Stock is acquired pursuant to an applicable exemption. The U.S. Department of Labor has issued prohibited transaction class exemptions, or "*PTCEs*", that may provide exemptive relief if required for direct or indirect prohibited transactions that may arise from the purchase of the Preferred Stock. These exemptions include, without limitation, PTCE 84-14 (for certain transactions determined by independent qualified professional asset managers), PTCE 90-1 (for certain transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts), PTCE 91-38 (for certain transactions involving bank collective investment funds), PTCE 95-60 (for transactions involving certain insurance company general accounts), and PTCE 96-23 (for transactions managed by in-house asset managers). In addition, Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Internal Revenue Code provide limited relief from the prohibited transactions provisions of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code for certain transactions, *provided* that neither we nor any of our affiliates (directly or indirectly) have or exercise any discretionary authority or control or render any investment advice with respect to the assets of any Plan involved in the transaction, and provided further that the Plan pays no more and receives no less than "adequate consideration" in connection with the transaction. There can be no assurance that all of the conditions of any such exemptions will be satisfied.

Because of the foregoing, the Preferred Stock should not be acquired or held by any person investing "plan assets" of any Plan, Plan Asset Entity or Non-ERISA Arrangement, unless such

acquisition and holding will not constitute a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code or similar violation of any applicable Similar Laws.

Any purchaser or transferee of the Preferred Stock or any interest therein will be deemed to have represented and warranted by its acquisition of such Preferred Stock that it either (1) is not a Plan, a Plan Asset Entity or a Non-ERISA Arrangement and is not purchasing or holding such Preferred Stock on behalf of or with the assets of any Plan, Plan Asset Entity or Non-ERISA Arrangement or (2) the acquisition and holding of such Preferred Stock will not constitute a non-exempt prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code because of an available administrative or statutory exemption, all of the conditions of which are satisfied, or a similar violation of any applicable Similar Laws.

A fiduciary of any Plan, Plan Asset Entity or Non-ERISA Arrangement considering the acquisition of Preferred Stock should consult its legal advisors regarding the matters discussed above and other applicable legal requirements.

## SUPPLEMENTAL PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Under the terms of a Distribution Agreement dated December 2, 2013, the Depositary Shares may be offered from time to time by us to the purchasing agent for subsequent resale to dealers who are broker-dealers and securities firms. The Depositary Shares will be offered for sale in the United States only. The purchasing agent may appoint subagents or engage the services of any other broker or dealer in connection with the offer and sale of the Depositary Shares. We also may appoint additional agents to sell the Depositary Shares. Any sale of the Depositary Shares through those additional agents, however, will be on the same terms and conditions to which the purchasing agent has agreed.

Upon acceptance of instructions from us, the purchasing agent has agreed to use its reasonable best efforts to solicit offers to purchase the Depositary Shares subject to the terms and conditions of the Distribution Agreement. We have the sole right to accept offers to purchase Depositary Shares and may reject any proposed offer to purchase Depositary Shares in whole or in part. The purchasing agent also has the right, in its discretion reasonably exercised, to reject any proposed offer to purchase Depositary Shares in whole or in part. We reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify any offer without notice. We also may change the terms of the Depositary Shares or the underlying shares of Preferred Stock at any time prior to our acceptance of an offer to purchase.

Unless otherwise set forth in the applicable pricing supplement, the purchasing agent will purchase the Depositary Shares at a discount of \$0.7875 for each Depositary Share sold. However, we also may sell the Depositary Shares to the purchasing agent at a discount greater than or less than this amount.

Unless otherwise set forth in the applicable pricing supplement, the Depositary Shares will be purchased by the purchasing agent and resold by it to one or more investors at the public offering price set forth in the applicable pricing supplement. The purchasing agent may also resell Depositary Shares to certain dealers at such price less a concession. After the initial public offering of Depositary Shares, the public offering price (in the case of Depositary Shares to be resold at a fixed public offering price), discount and concession may be changed. Investment advisers, either registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, or exempt therefrom, purchasing Depositary Shares for the account of their advisory clients may be offered Depositary Shares at a discount to the public offering price.

The purchasing agent may be deemed to be an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act. We have agreed to indemnify the purchasing agent against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to any payments it may be required to make in respect of such liabilities. We also have agreed to reimburse the purchasing agent for certain expenses.

Each series of Preferred Stock and the related Depositary Shares will be new issues with no established trading market. Unless specified in the applicable pricing supplement, we intend to apply to list the Depositary Shares relating to each series of Preferred Stock on the NYSE under a symbol to be specified in the applicable pricing supplement. We generally expect to list the Depositary Shares relating to a particular series of Preferred Stock only after we have completed the offering of that series. If approved, we expect trading on the NYSE of the Depositary Shares of the applicable series of Preferred Stock to begin within 120 days after the first issue date of such Depositary Shares. There is no guarantee, however, that we will be able to list the Depositary Shares relating to any series of Preferred Stock. We do not expect that there will be any separate public trading market for the shares of Preferred Stock of any series except as represented by the applicable Depositary Shares.

We have agreed in the Distribution Agreement that we will not, without the prior written consent of the purchasing agent, offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any securities which are substantially similar to the Depositary Shares and the Preferred Stock (i) during the period beginning on the fifth business day immediately prior to each date on which we notify the purchasing agent that we desire to sell Depositary Shares pursuant to this prospectus supplement and ending on the fifth

business day immediately following the corresponding settlement date for such Depositary Shares or (ii) in any "at-the-market" or similar offering.

The purchasing agent and other agents or dealers to or through which we may sell Depositary Shares may engage in transactions with us and perform services for us in the ordinary course of business.

In addition, in the ordinary course of their business activities, the purchasing agent and other agents or dealers to or through which we may sell Depositary Shares and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments, including acting as counterparties to certain derivative and hedging arrangements, and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers. Such investments and securities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or our affiliates. If any of these firms or their affiliates have a lending arrangement with us, certain of those firms or their affiliates routinely hedge, and certain other of those firms or their affiliates may hedge, their credit exposure to us consistent with their customary risk management policies. Typically, these firms and their affiliates would hedge such exposure by entering into transactions which consist of either the purchase of credit default swaps or short positions in our securities, including prices of the Depositary Shares offered hereby. Any such credit default swaps or short positions could adversely affect future trading prices of the Depositary Shares and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or financial instruments and may, at any time, hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

## Alternative Settlement Cycle

It is expected that delivery of any Depositary Shares will be made against payment therefor on or about the fifth business day following the date of pricing such Depositary Shares (such settlement cycle being referred to as "T+5"). Pursuant to Rule 15c6-1 under the Exchange Act, trades in the secondary market generally are required to settle in three business days unless the parties to any such trade expressly agree otherwise. Accordingly, purchasers who wish to trade the Depositary Shares on the date of pricing such Depositary Shares or the next succeeding business day will be required, by virtue of the fact that the Depositary Shares initially will settle in T+5, to specify an alternative settlement cycle at the time of any such trade to prevent failed settlement. Purchasers who wish to trade the Depositary Shares on the date of pricing such Depositary Shares on the next succeeding business day should consult their own advisors.

## WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act. Accordingly, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may review a copy of those reports, statements or other information at the SEC's public reference room, which is located at Room 1580, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can also request copies of such documents, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by writing to the SEC's public reference room. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room.

These SEC filings are also available to the public from commercial document retrieval services and at the Internet site maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov. Reports, proxy statements and other information concerning us may also be inspected at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to other documents filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. This prospectus supplement incorporates by reference the documents set forth below that we have previously filed with the SEC (File No. 001-11840). These documents contain important business and financial information about us that is not included in or delivered with this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

## THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION FILINGS

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, filed February 20, 2013, and the portions of our Proxy Statement, filed April 10, 2013, for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders incorporated by reference into our Annual Report;

Our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended March 31, 2013, June 30, 2013 and September 30, 2013, filed May 1, 2013, July 31, 2013 and October 30, 2013, respectively; and

Our Current Reports on Form 8-K dated January 3, 2013, January 10, 2013, January 14, 2013, February 18, 2013, February 28, 2013, May 21, 2013, May 22, 2013, June 4, 2013, June 6, 2013, June 6, 2013, June 10, 2013, June 20, 2013, July 17, 2013, July 23, 2013, August 5, 2013, September 23, 2013 and September 26, 2013, filed January 4, 2013, January 10, 2013, January 16, 2013, February 19, 2013, February 20, 2013, March 1, 2013, May 21, 2013 and May 22, 2013, June 7, 2013, June 7, 2013, June 11, 2013, June 12, 2013, June 24, 2013, July 22, 2013, July 25, 2013, August 8, 2013, September 25, 2013 and September 30, 2013, respectively.

We are also incorporating by reference all other documents subsequently filed by us pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, prior to the termination of this offering. We have not set a date for termination of our offering. Any information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded to the extent that information contained in any subsequently filed document that is also incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus modifies or supersedes that information.

You can request a free copy of any or all of these documents, other than the exhibits to those documents, unless those exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into these documents, by writing to: Investor Relations Department, The Allstate Corporation, 2775 Sanders Road, Northbrook, Illinois 60062-7127, or calling: (800) 416-8803.

## LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with the Depositary Shares and each series of underlying Preferred Stock will be passed upon for us by Susan L. Lees, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of The Allstate Corporation, and by Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP, New York, New York. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the purchasing agent by Mayer Brown LLP, Chicago, Illinois. Ms. Lees is a full-time employee of Allstate Insurance Company and an officer of The Allstate Corporation and owns 70,234 shares of its common stock as of October 31, 2013, of which 54,424 were subject to options.

## EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedules, incorporated in this Prospectus Supplement by reference to The Allstate Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, and the effectiveness of The Allstate Corporation's internal control over financial reporting have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports which are incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

With respect to the unaudited interim financial information which is incorporated herein by reference, Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, have applied limited procedures in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) for a review of such information. However, as stated in their reports included in the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of The Allstate Corporation and incorporated by reference herein, they did not audit and they do not express an opinion on that interim financial information. Accordingly, the degree of reliance on their reports on such information should be restricted in light of the limited nature of the review procedures applied. Deloitte & Touche LLP are not subject to the liability provisions of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 for their reports on the unaudited interim financial information because those reports are not "reports" or a "part" of the Registration Statement prepared or certified by an accountant within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

## PROSPECTUS

# THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION

Debt Securities Common Stock Preferred Stock Depositary Shares Warrants Stock Purchase Contracts Stock Purchase Units

# ALLSTATE FINANCING VII ALLSTATE FINANCING VIII

# ALLSTATE FINANCING IX ALLSTATE FINANCING X

# Trust Preferred Securities Fully and Unconditionally Guaranteed as described in this Prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement by The Allstate Corporation

By this prospectus, we, in conjunction with our trusts, may offer from time to time any combination of the securities described in this prospectus.

We will provide the specific terms of these securities in supplements to this prospectus. We can only use this prospectus to offer and sell any specific security by also including a prospectus supplement for that security. You should read this prospectus and the prospectus supplements carefully before you invest.

Unless stated otherwise in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement, these securities will not be listed on any securities exchange.

Investing in our securities or the securities of our trusts involves risks. See "Risk Factors" on page 3 of this prospectus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is April 30, 2012

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	ii
THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION	1
THE TRUSTS	1
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED	
STOCK DIVIDENDS	2
RISK FACTORS	3
USE OF PROCEEDS	3
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	3
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	17
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	21
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	23
DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND STOCK PURCHASE UNITS	25
DESCRIPTION OF TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES	26
DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED SECURITIES GUARANTEES	28
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	31
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	33
THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION FILINGS	33
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	34
LEGAL OPINIONS	34
EXPERTS	34
ERISA MATTERS	34
i	

## ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we and Allstate Financing VII, Allstate Financing VII, Allstate Financing IX and Allstate Financing X, which we refer to as the trusts, have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission using a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf process, we and the trusts may sell the securities described in the prospectus from time to time. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we and the trusts may offer. We and the trusts may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus through one or more supplements to this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by The Allstate Corporation or the trusts, or any underwriter, agent, dealer or remarketing firm. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of The Allstate Corporation since the date hereof or that the information contained or incorporated by reference herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date of such information. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

References to "Allstate," "we," "us" and "our" in this prospectus are references to The Allstate Corporation, and not to any of our subsidiaries, unless we state otherwise or the context otherwise requires.



## THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION

The Allstate Corporation is a holding company that conducts its business principally through its subsidiaries Allstate Insurance Company ("AIC") and Allstate Life Insurance Company and their affiliates (collectively, including The Allstate Corporation, "Allstate"). Allstate is primarily engaged in the personal property and casualty insurance business and the life insurance, retirement and investment products business. Customers can access Allstate products and services such as auto insurance and homeowners insurance through nearly 12,000 exclusive Allstate agencies and financial representatives in the United States and Canada. The Allstate Corporation is the largest publicly held personal lines insurer in the United States and the second largest personal property and casualty insurer in the United States based on 2010 statutory direct premiums earned. In addition, according to A.M. Best, it is the nation's 16th largest issuer of life insurance business on the basis of 2010 ordinary life insurance in force and 21st largest on the basis of 2010 statutory admitted assets.

Our main business segments include Allstate Protection and Allstate Financial. Allstate Protection principally sells private passenger auto and homeowners insurance through agencies and directly through call centers and the internet. These products are marketed under the Allstate®, Encompass® and Esurance® brand names. Allstate brand auto and homeowners insurance products are sold primarily through Allstate exclusive agencies. Encompass brand auto and homeowners insurance products are sold through independent agencies. Esurance brand auto insurance products are sold directly to consumers online, through call centers and through select agents, including Answer Financial. Allstate Financial provides life insurance, retirement and investment products and voluntary accident and health insurance products. Allstate Financial distributes its products to individuals through multiple distribution channels, including Allstate exclusive agencies and exclusive financial specialists, independent agents, specialized structured settlement brokers and directly through call centers and the internet. Allstate Financial's institutional products, which were most recently offered in 2008, consist of funding agreements sold to unaffiliated trusts that use them to back medium-term notes issued to institutional and individual investors.

The Allstate Corporation was incorporated in Delaware on November 5, 1992. Our executive offices are located at 2775 Sanders Road, Northbrook, Illinois 60062, and at Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801. Our telephone number is (847) 402-5000.

As a holding company with no significant business operations of our own, we rely on dividends from AIC as the principal source of cash to pay dividends to our stockholders and to meet our obligations, including the payment of principal and any interest on any notes and our other debt obligations. AIC is regulated as an insurance company in Illinois. The payment of dividends by AIC is limited by Illinois insurance law to formula amounts based on statutory net income and statutory surplus, as well as the timing and amount of dividends paid in the preceding twelve months.

The laws of other jurisdictions that generally govern our insurance subsidiaries contain similar limitations on the payment of dividends; however, in some jurisdictions the laws may be somewhat more restrictive.

## THE TRUSTS

The four trusts, Allstate Financing VII, VIII, IX and X, are Delaware statutory trusts formed to raise capital for us by issuing common securities to us and preferred securities issued under this prospectus and a prospectus supplement, and investing the proceeds in subordinated debt securities issued by us.

We will directly or indirectly own all of the common securities of each of our trust subsidiaries. The common securities will rank equally with, and each trust will make payments on the common securities in proportion to, the trust preferred securities, except that if an event of default occurs under

the trust agreement of one of the trusts, our rights, as holder of the common securities, to payments will be subordinated to your rights as holder of the trust preferred securities.

Each of our trusts has a term of approximately 55 years, but may terminate earlier as provided in its trust agreement, each trust agreement being governed by Delaware law. As holder of the common securities of the trusts, we are entitled to appoint, remove or replace any of, or increase or decrease the number of, the trustees of each of our trusts. Each of our trusts' business and affairs will be conducted by the trustees we appoint. The trustees' duties and obligations are governed by the trusts' trust agreements and applicable law. Prior to the issuance of any trust preferred securities, we will ensure that a majority of the trustees of the applicable trust are persons who are our employees or officers or affiliates and that one trustee of each trust is a financial institution that will not be an affiliate of ours and that will act as property trustee, guarantee trustee and indenture trustee for purposes of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the "Trust Indenture Act"). In addition, unless the property trustee maintains a principal place of business in the State of Delaware and meets the other requirements of applicable law, one other trustee of each of our trusts will have its principal place of business or reside in the State of Delaware.

We will pay all of our trusts' fees and expenses, including those relating to any offering of trust preferred securities. In addition, we will guarantee payments on the trust preferred securities to the extent our trusts can themselves make payments on the trust preferred securities.

The name and office of the Delaware trustee for each trust in the State of Delaware is U.S. Bank Trust National Association, 300 Delaware Avenue, 9<sup>th</sup> Floor, Wilmington, Delaware 19801. The principal place of business of each trust is 2775 Sanders Road, Northbrook, Illinois 60062. The telephone number of each trust in Northbrook, Illinois is (847) 402-5000.

## RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

The following table shows the ratio of earnings to fixed charges and the ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends for Allstate and its subsidiaries for the periods indicated:

	For the year ended December 31,				
	2011	2010	2009	2008	2007
Ratio of earnings to fixed $charges(1)(2)(3)$	1.5X	1.5X	1.5X	Х	3.2X

(1)

We have authority to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$1.00 per share; however, there are currently no shares of preferred stock outstanding and we do not have a preferred stock dividend obligation. Therefore, the ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends is equal to the ratio of earnings to fixed charges and is not disclosed separately.

(2)

For purposes of this computation, earnings consist of income from continuing operations before income tax expense and dividends on preferred securities. Fixed charges consist of interest expense, including interest credited to contractholder funds, amortization of financing costs, that portion of rental expense that is representative of the interest factor and dividends on redeemable preferred securities.

(3)

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2008 were insufficient to cover fixed charges by \$3.03 billion.

2

## **RISK FACTORS**

Investing in our securities or the securities of our trusts involves risks. You should carefully consider the risks described in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission referred to below in "Where You Can Find More Information" as well as those included in any prospectus supplement hereto. For example, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 contains a discussion of significant risks under the caption "Risk Factors" which could be relevant to your investment in the securities. Our subsequent filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission may contain amended and updated discussions of significant risks.

#### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus, we will use the net proceeds from the sale of the securities for general corporate purposes. Each trust will invest all proceeds received from the sale of its trust preferred securities in a particular series of subordinated debt securities to be issued by us.

### **DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES**

The following description of the debt securities and terms of the indentures is a summary. It summarizes only those aspects of the debt securities and those portions of the indentures which we believe will be most important to your decision to invest in our debt securities. You should keep in mind, however, that it is the indentures, and not this summary, which define your rights as a debtholder. There may be other provisions in the indentures which are also important to you. You should read the indentures for a full description of the terms of the debt. The senior indenture and the subordinated indenture are filed as exhibits to the Registration Statement that includes this prospectus. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for information on how to obtain copies of the senior indenture and the subordinated indenture.

The debt securities may be issued from time to time in one or more series. The particular terms of the debt securities offered by any prospectus supplement and the extent to which the general provisions described below may apply to such debt securities will be outlined in the applicable prospectus supplement.

We will issue the senior debt securities under a Senior Indenture, entered into between Allstate and U.S. Bank National Association (as successor in interest to State Street Bank and Trust Company), as trustee, dated December 16, 1997, as amended by a third supplemental indenture dated as of July 23, 1999 and as amended by a sixth supplemental indenture dated as of June 12, 2000 and as may be supplemented by one or more additional supplemental indentures. We will issue the subordinated debt securities under a separate Subordinated Indenture, entered into between Allstate and U.S. Bank National Association (as successor in interest to State Street Bank and Trust Company), as trustee, dated November 25, 1996, as amended by a third supplemental indenture dated as of July 23, 1999 and as amended by a fourth supplemental indenture dated as of July 23, 1990 and as may be supplemented by one or more additional supplemental indentures. The Senior Indenture and the Subordinated Indenture are sometimes referred to collectively as the "indentures." The trustees under the Senior Indenture and under the Subordinated Indenture are referred to herein as the "indenture trustees."

In addition, as described under "Description of Depositary Shares," we may, at our option, offer depositary shares evidenced by depositary receipts, each representing a fractional interest in debt securities and deposited with a depositary. The fractional interest in the debt securities which each depositary share represents will be stated in the prospectus supplement relating to any debt securities offered through depositary shares.

3

Numerical references in parentheses below are to sections in the applicable indenture. Wherever we refer to particular sections or defined terms of an indenture, those sections or defined terms are incorporated by reference in this description as part of the statement made, and the statement is qualified in its entirety by such reference.

#### General

The indentures provide that we may issue debt securities in separate series from time to time in an unlimited amount. We may specify a maximum aggregate principal amount for the debt securities of any series. (Section 301) The debt securities will have terms and provisions that are not inconsistent with the applicable indenture, including our determination as to maturity, principal and interest. Unless otherwise indicated in a prospectus supplement, the senior debt securities will be our unsecured obligations and will rank on parity with all other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The subordinated debt securities will be our unsecured obligations, subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all our senior debt as described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Our assets consist primarily of the common stock of AIC and other subsidiaries, and we conduct no substantial business or operations of our own. We derive substantially all of our income from our operating subsidiaries. Accordingly, our cash flows and consequent ability to service our obligations, including our debt securities, are dependent upon the earnings of our subsidiaries, and distributions of those earnings to us, and other payments or distributions of funds by our subsidiaries to us.

Except to the extent we or our creditors have a priority or equal claim as a creditor directly against our subsidiaries, payments due on the debt securities and any distribution of assets of any of our subsidiaries upon liquidation or reorganization effectively will be subordinated to the debt and preferred stock of the subsidiaries because, as the common stockholder of those subsidiaries, we will be subject to the prior claims of their creditors. Our debt securities effectively will also be subordinated to any of our secured indebtedness to the extent of any such security.

If subordinated debt securities are issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities, such subordinated debt securities may thereafter be distributed pro rata to the holders of such trust securities in connection with the dissolution of such trust upon the occurrence of certain events described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

We will prepare a prospectus supplement for each series of debt securities that we issue. Each prospectus supplement will set forth the applicable terms of the debt securities to which it relates. These terms will include some or all of the following:

the title of the debt securities;

any limit on the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities or the series of which they are a part;

the person to whom any interest on any of the debt securities will be payable, if other than the person in whose name that debt security is registered at the close of business on the record date for such interest payment;

the dates on which the principal of any of the debt securities will be payable;

the rates at which the debt securities will bear interest, the dates from which any interest will accrue, the interest payment dates on which any interest will be payable and the record date for any such interest payable;

the places where the principal, interest and premium on any of such debt securities will be payable;

the definition of business day;

the periods within which, the prices at which and the terms on which any debt securities may be redeemed at our option and, if other than by a resolution by our Board of Directors, the manner in which any election by us to redeem the debt securities will be evidenced;

any obligation we have to redeem or purchase any of the debt securities out of any sinking fund or, at the option of the holder, the periods within which, the prices and terms on which any of such debt securities will be redeemed or purchased;

the denominations in which any of the debt securities will be issuable, if other than denominations of \$1,000 and any integral multiple thereof;

if the amount of principal, interest or premium on any of the debt securities may be determined with reference to an index or by a formula, the manner in which such amounts will be determined;

if other than the currency of the United States, the currency, currencies or currency units in which the principal, interest or premium on any of the debt securities will be payable;

if the principal, interest or premium on any of the debt securities is to be payable, at our election or the election of the holder, in one or more currencies other than those in which the debt securities are stated to be payable, the currencies in which payment of the principal, interest and premium on the debt securities as to which such election is made will be payable, the periods within which and the terms upon which such election is to be made and the amount so payable;

if other than the entire principal amount, the portion of the principal amount of debt securities which will be payable upon trust agreement of acceleration of the maturity thereof;

if the principal amount payable at the stated maturity of any of the debt securities is not determinable upon original issuance, the amount which will be deemed to be the principal amount of the debt securities for any other purpose thereunder or under the applicable indenture including the principal amount thereof which will be due and payable upon any maturity other than the stated maturity or which will be deemed to be outstanding as of any date (or, in any such case, any manner in which such principal amount is to be determined);

any trustee (other than U.S. Bank National Association), depositary, authenticating or paying agent, transfer agent, registrar or other agent with respect to the debt securities;

if applicable, the extent to which the debt securities are defeasible, that is, capable of being made void;

whether any of the debt securities will be issuable in the form of global securities;

the terms and conditions of any obligation or right we would have or any option you would have to convert or exchange the debt securities into other securities or cash;

any addition to or change in the events of default applicable to any of the debt securities and any change in the right of an indenture trustee or the holders to declare the principal amount of any debt securities due and payable;

any addition to or change in the covenants described under "Certain Covenants with Respect to Senior Debt Securities" and "Certain Covenants with Respect to Subordinated Debt Securities" applicable to any of such debt securities; and

any other terms of the debt securities not inconsistent with the provisions of the applicable indenture but which may modify or delete any provision of the indenture insofar as it applies to such series; provided that no term of any indenture may be modified or deleted if imposed under the Trust Indenture Act and that any modification or deletion of the rights, duties or

immunities of the applicable indenture trustee shall have been consented to in writing by the indenture trustee.

## (Section 301)

Debt securities, including original issue discount securities, may be sold at a substantial discount below their principal amount. Special United States federal income tax considerations applicable to debt securities sold at an original issue discount or which are denominated in a currency or currency unit other than United States dollars will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

#### Form, Exchange And Transfer

The debt securities of a series shall be issued as registered securities, unless a supplemental indenture, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement, provides that debt securities of a series may be issued as bearer securities (with or without coupons attached) or as both registered securities and bearer securities. Debt securities may be issuable in the form of global debt securities, as described below under "Global Securities."

Registered securities of any series will be exchangeable for other registered securities of the same series of any authorized denominations and of a like aggregate principal amount and tenor. If the supplemental indenture permits debt securities of any series to be issuable as both registered securities and as bearer securities, then at the option of the holder and subject to the terms of the applicable indenture, bearer securities of such series will be exchangeable for registered securities of the same series of any authorized denominations and of a like aggregate principal amount and tenor. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, any bearer security surrendered in exchange for a registered security between a record date or a special record date for defaulted interest and the relevant date for payment of interest will be surrendered without the coupon relating to such date for payment of interest and interest represented by that coupon will not be payable in respect of the registered security issued in exchange for such bearer security, but will be payable only to the holder of such coupon when due in accordance with the terms of the applicable indenture. Bearer securities will not be issued in exchange for registered securities.

No service charge will be made for any registration of transfer or exchange of debt securities, but we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith. Such transfer or exchange will be effected upon the security registrar or such transfer agent, as the case may be, being satisfied with the documents of title and identity of the person making the request. We have appointed the applicable indenture trustee as security registrar. Any transfer agent (in addition to the security registrar) initially designated by us for any debt securities will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement. (Section 305)

At any time, we may designate additional transfer agents or rescind the designation of any transfer agent or approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts, except that we will be required to maintain a transfer agent in each place of payment for the debt securities of each series. (Section 1002)

In the event that we redeem in part debt securities of any series, we will not be required to:

issue, register the transfer of or exchange any debt security of that series, or of that series and specified terms, as the case may be, during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 business days before the day of mailing of a notice of redemption of any such debt security selected for redemption and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing; or

register the transfer of or exchange any debt security so selected for redemption, in whole or in part, except the unredeemed portion of any such debt security being redeemed in part.

(Section 305)

6

#### **Global Securities**

The debt securities of any series may be represented by global securities which will have an aggregate principal amount equal to that of the debt securities they represent. We will deposit the debt securities with, or on behalf of, a depositary identified in the prospectus supplement relating to such series. Each global security will bear a legend regarding the restrictions on exchanges and registration of transfer as may be provided by the indentures. The depositary shall at all times be a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). (Section 101)

No global security may be exchanged for debt securities registered, and no transfer of a global security may be registered, in the name of any person other than the depositary for such global security unless:

the depositary has notified us that it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for such global security or has ceased to be qualified to act as such as required by the applicable indenture;

there shall have occurred and be continuing an event of default with respect to the debt securities represented by such global security; or

there shall exist such circumstances as may be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

All debt securities issued in exchange for a global security or any portion thereof will be registered in such names as the depositary may direct. (Section 305) The laws of some jurisdictions require that certain purchasers of debt securities take physical delivery of such debt securities in definitive form. Such laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in a global security.

As long as the depositary, or its nominee, is the registered holder of a global security, the depositary or such nominee, will be considered the sole owner and holder of such global security and the debt securities represented by it. Except in the limited circumstances referred to above, owners of beneficial interests in a global security will not be entitled to have such global security or any debt securities represented thereby registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of certificated debt securities in exchange therefor and will not be considered to be the owners or holders of such global security or any debt securities represented thereby for any purpose under the debt securities or the applicable indenture. All payments of principal, interest and premium on a global security will be made to the depositary or its nominee, as its holder.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be limited to participants or to persons that may hold beneficial interests through institutions that have accounts with the depositary or its nominee. Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be shown only on, and the transfer of those ownership interests will be effected only through, records maintained by the depositary or any such participant. Payments, transfers, exchanges and other matters relating to beneficial interests in a global security may be subject to various policies and procedures adopted by the depositary from time to time. Neither Allstate, any indenture trustee or any agent of Allstate or of any indenture trustee will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the depositary or any participant's records relating to, or for payments made on account of, beneficial interests in a global security, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any of the depositary's records or any participant's records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

## **Payment And Paying Agents**

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, payment of interest on a debt security on any interest payment date will be made to the person in whose name such debt security is

7

registered at the close of business on the record date for such interest, except in the case of defaulted interest. (Section 307)

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, principal, interest and premium on the debt securities of a particular series will be payable at the office of such paying agent or paying agents as we may designate for such purpose from time to time. Notwithstanding, at our option, payment of any interest may be made by check mailed to the address of the person entitled thereto as such address appears in the security register.

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, a paying agent designated by us and located in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York will act as paying agent for payments with respect to debt securities of each series. All paying agents initially designated by us for the debt securities of a particular series will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement. We may at any time designate additional paying agents or rescind the designation of any paying agent or approve a change in the office through which any paying agent acts, except that we will be required to maintain a paying agent in each place of payment for the debt securities of a particular series. (Section 1002)

All moneys paid by us to a paying agent for the payment of the principal, interest or premium on any debt security which remain unclaimed at the end of two years after such principal, premium or interest has become due and payable will be repaid to us upon request, and the holder of such debt security thereafter may look only to us for payment thereof. (Section 1003)

#### **Conversion or Exchange**

We may convert or exchange the debt securities into our common stock or other securities. If so, we will describe the specific terms on which the debt securities may be converted or exchanged in the applicable prospectus supplement. The conversion or exchange may be mandatory, at your option, or at our option. The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the manner in which the shares of our common stock or other securities you would receive would be converted or exchanged.

### Subordination of Subordinated Debt Securities

Unless otherwise indicated in the prospectus supplement, the following provisions will apply to the subordinated debt securities.

To the extent set forth in the Subordinated Indenture, the subordinated debt securities will be subordinate in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness. (Section 1401 of the Subordinated Indenture) In the event of an insolvency, the holders of senior indebtedness shall be entitled to receive payment in full of all amounts due or to become due in respect of all senior indebtedness (or provisions shall be made for such payment in cash) before the holders of subordinated debt securities are entitled to receive any distribution on account of principal, interest or premium on subordinated debt securities. Consequently, the holders of senior indebtedness shall be entitled to receive all distributions of any kind which may be deliverable in respect of the subordinated debt securities in any insolvency, including any distribution which may be deliverable by reason of the payment of any of our other indebtedness being subordinated to the payment of subordinated debt securities. The holders of senior indebtedness.

"Insolvency" means any of the following events:

any insolvency or bankruptcy case or proceeding, or any receivership, liquidation, reorganization or other similar case or proceeding, relative to us or to our creditors, or to our assets; or



any liquidation, dissolution or other winding-up of Allstate, whether or not involving insolvency or bankruptcy; or

any assignment for the benefit of creditors or any other marshaling of our assets and liabilities. (Section 1403 of the Subordinated Indenture)

By reason of such subordination, in the event of liquidation or insolvency, our creditors may recover less, ratably, than holders of senior debt securities and may recover more, ratably, than the holders of the subordinated debt securities.

In the event of the acceleration of the maturity of any subordinated debt securities, the holders of all senior debt securities outstanding at the time of such acceleration will first be entitled to receive payment in full of all amounts due on the senior debt securities before the holders of the subordinated debt securities will be entitled to receive any payment of principal, interest or premium on the subordinated debt securities. (Section 1404 of the Subordinated Indenture)

No payment of principal, interest or premium on the subordinated debt securities is permitted if any of our senior indebtedness is not paid when due and any applicable grace period with respect to such default has ended and such default has not been cured or waived or ceased to exist, or if the maturity of any of our senior indebtedness has been accelerated because of a default. (Section 1402 of the Subordinated Indenture)

The Subordinated Indenture does not limit or prohibit the issuance of additional senior debt securities, which may include indebtedness that is senior to the subordinated debt securities, but subordinate to our other obligations.

The term "Senior Indebtedness" means, with respect to Allstate:

the principal, interest and premium in respect of our indebtedness for borrowed money and indebtedness evidenced by securities, debentures, bonds or other similar instruments issued by us;

all of our capital lease obligations;

all of our obligations issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property, all of our conditional sale obligations and all of our obligations under any title retention agreement (but excluding trade accounts payable arising in the ordinary course of business);

all of our obligations for the reimbursement on any letter of credit, banker's acceptance, security purchase facility or similar credit transaction;

all obligations of the types referred to above of other persons for the payment of which we are responsible or liable as obligor, guarantor or otherwise; and

all obligations of the types referred to above of other persons secured by any lien on any of our property or assets whether or not such obligation is assumed by us, except for:

any such indebtedness that is by its terms subordinated to or ranks equal with the subordinated debt securities; and

any indebtedness between or among us or our affiliates (including all other debt securities and guarantees in respect of those debt securities) issued to any of our wholly owned trust subsidiaries or any trust, partnership or other entity affiliated with us that is our financing vehicle in connection with the issuance by such financing entity of preferred securities unless otherwise expressly provided in the terms of such debt securities.

Such senior indebtedness shall continue to be senior indebtedness and be entitled to the benefits of the subordination provisions irrespective of any amendment, modification or waiver of any term of such senior indebtedness. (Sections 101 and 1408 of the Subordinated Indenture)

The prospectus supplement may further describe the provisions applicable to the subordination of the subordinated debt securities of a particular series.

### Certain Covenants With Respect To Senior Debt Securities

*Limitation on Liens of Stock of AIC.* The Senior Indenture prohibits us and our subsidiaries from directly or indirectly creating, assuming, incurring or permitting to exist any indebtedness secured by any lien on the capital stock of AIC unless the senior debt securities shall be secured equally and ratably with such indebtedness for at least the time period such indebtedness is so secured. (Section 1008 of the Senior Indenture)

"Indebtedness" is defined in the Senior Indenture as the principal, premium and interest due on indebtedness of a person, whether outstanding on the date of such indenture or thereafter created, incurred or assumed, which is indebtedness for borrowed money, and any amendments, renewals, extensions, modifications and refundings of any such indebtedness. For purposes of this definition, "indebtedness for borrowed money" means:

any obligation of, or any obligation guaranteed by, such person for the repayment of borrowed money, whether or not evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other written instruments;

any obligation of, or any such obligation guaranteed by, such person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar written instruments, including obligations assumed or incurred in connection with the acquisition of property, assets or businesses, provided, however, that the deferred purchase price of any property, assets or business shall not be considered indebtedness if the purchase price thereof is payable in full within 90 days from the date on which such indebtedness was created; and

any obligations of such person as lessee under leases required to be capitalized on the balance sheet of the lessee under generally accepted accounting principles and leases of property or assets made as part of any sale and lease-back transaction to which such person is a party.

For purposes of this covenant only, indebtedness also includes any obligation of, or any obligation guaranteed by, any person for the payment of amounts due under a swap agreement or similar instrument or agreement, or under a foreign currency hedge exchange or similar instrument or agreement. (Sections 101 and 1008 of the Senior Indenture)

*Limitations on Disposition of Stock of AIC.* Subject to limited exceptions, the Senior Indenture provides that as long as any senior debt securities are outstanding, we will not issue, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any shares of, securities convertible into, or warrants, rights or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of, capital stock of AIC, other than preferred stock having no voting rights of any kind, and that we will not permit AIC to issue any shares of, or securities convertible into, or warrants, rights or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of, capital stock of AIC, other than preferred stock having no voting rights of any kind, and the issuances of the maximum number of shares issuable upon the conversion or exercise of all such convertible securities, warrants, rights or options, we would own, directly or indirectly, less than 80% of the shares of AIC, other than preferred stock having no voting rights of any kind. The Senior Indenture also requires that any such issuance, sale, transfer or other disposition by AIC must be made for at least a fair market value consideration, as determined by our Board of Directors in good faith, and that the foregoing shall not prohibit any such issuance or disposition of securities if required by any law or any regulation or order of any governmental or insurance regulatory authority

10

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may merge or consolidate AIC into or with another direct wholly owned subsidiary and we may, subject to the provisions set forth in "Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets" below, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the entire capital stock of AIC at one time for at least a fair market value consideration as determined by our Board of Directors in good faith. (Section 1009 of the Senior Indenture)

#### Certain Covenants with Respect to Subordinated Debt Securities

If subordinated debt securities are issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust securities and there has occurred an event of default under the applicable trust agreement, we are in default with respect to our payment of any obligations under the related preferred securities guarantee or common securities guarantee or we have given notice of our election to defer payments of interest on subordinated debt securities by extending the interest payment period as provided in the Subordinated Indenture, then we shall not:

declare or pay any dividend on, make any distributions with respect to, or redeem, purchase or make a liquidation payment with respect to any of our capital stock;

make any guarantee payments with respect to our capital stock; or

make any payment of principal, interest, or premium on or repay, repurchase or redeem any debt securities (including guarantees) that rank equal with or junior to such subordinated debt securities.

However, in such circumstances, we may:

declare and pay dividends on, or make distributions with respect to, our capital stock payable in our common stock;

redeem or repurchase any rights, declare a dividend of any rights or issue any security under any rights plan then in effect;

purchase or acquire shares of our common stock in order to satisfy our obligations under any employee benefit plan;

carry out any reclassification of our capital stock or the exchange or conversion of one class or series of our capital stock for another class or series of our capital stock; and

purchase fractional interests in shares of our capital stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such capital stock or the security being converted or exchanged.

(Section 1008 of the Subordinated Indenture)

If subordinated debt securities are issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust securities, for so long as such securities remain outstanding, we covenant to:

directly or indirectly maintain 100% ownership of the common securities of such trust; provided, however, that any permitted successor under the applicable indenture may succeed to our ownership of such common securities;

use our reasonable efforts to cause such trust to remain a statutory business trust, except in connection with the distribution of subordinated debt securities to the holders of trust preferred securities in liquidation of such trust, the redemption of all of the trust securities of such trust, or certain mergers, consolidations or amalgamations, each as permitted by the trust agreement of such trust, and to continue to be classified as a grantor trust for United States federal income tax purposes; and

use our reasonable efforts to cause each holder of trust preferred securities to be treated as owning an undivided beneficial interest in the subordinated debt securities.

(Section 1009 of the Subordinated Indenture)

#### **Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets**

Without the consent of the holders of any of the outstanding debt securities under the indentures, we may consolidate with or merge into, or convey, transfer or lease our properties and assets to any person and may permit any person to consolidate with or merge into us. However, in such event, any successor person must be a corporation, partnership, or trust organized and validly existing under the laws of any domestic jurisdiction and must assume our obligations on the debt securities and under the applicable indenture. We agree that after giving effect to the transaction, no event of default, and no event which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an event of default shall have occurred and be continuing and that certain other conditions are met; provided such provisions will not be applicable to the direct or indirect transfer of the stock, assets or liabilities of any of our subsidiaries to another of our direct or indirect subsidiaries. (Section 801)

Except as provided in this prospectus or as may otherwise be provided in the accompanying prospectus supplement, there are no "event risks" or similar provisions of the indentures or the debt securities that are intended to afford protection to holders in the event of a merger or other significant corporate event involving us or our subsidiaries.

#### **Outstanding Debt Securities**

"Outstanding," when used with respect to debt securities, means, as of the date of determination, all debt securities authenticated and delivered under the applicable indenture, except:

debt securities canceled by the indenture trustee or delivered to the indenture trustee for cancellation;

debt securities for whose payment or redemption money in the necessary amount has been deposited with the indenture trustee or any paying agent (other than us) in trust or set aside and segregated in trust by us (if we shall act as its own paying agent) for the holders of such debt securities and, if such debt securities are to be redeemed, notice of such redemption has been given according to the applicable indenture or provisions satisfactory to the indenture trustee have been made;

debt securities as to which defeasance has been effected pursuant to Section 1302 of the applicable indenture; and

debt securities which have been paid pursuant to the applicable indenture or in exchange for or in lieu of which other debt securities have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to the applicable indenture, other than any debt securities in respect of which there shall have been presented to the indenture trustee proof satisfactory to it that such debt securities are held by a *bona fide* purchaser in whose hands such debt securities are our valid obligations.

Each indenture provides that in determining whether the holders of the requisite principal amount of the outstanding debt securities have given, made or taken any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action under the applicable indenture:

the principal amount of an original issue discount security that shall be deemed to be outstanding shall be the amount of the principal that would be due and payable as of the date of such determination upon acceleration of the maturity to such date;

the principal amount of a debt security denominated in one or more foreign currencies which shall be deemed to be outstanding shall be the U.S. dollar equivalent, determined as of the date of original issuance of such debt security in the manner provided by the applicable indenture, of the principal amount of such debt security (or, in the case of an original issue discount security, of the amount determined as provided above);

if the principal amount payable at the stated maturity of any debt security is not determinable upon original issuance, the principal amount of such debt security that is deemed to be outstanding shall be the amount as specified by the applicable indenture; and

debt securities beneficially owned by us or any other obligor upon the debt securities or any of our affiliates or such other obligor shall be disregarded and deemed not to be outstanding, except that, in determining whether the applicable indenture trustee shall be protected in relying upon any such request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only debt securities which a responsible officer of the indenture trustee knows to be so owned shall be so disregarded.

Debt securities so owned which have been pledged in good faith may be regarded as outstanding if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of the applicable indenture trustee the pledgee's right to act with respect to the debt securities and that the pledgee is not us or any other obligor upon the debt securities or any of our affiliates or of such other obligor. (Section 101)

### **Events of Default**

The following are events of default under the applicable indenture with respect to debt securities of any series:

we fail to pay the principal or premium on any debt security of that series when due;

we fail to pay any interest on any debt securities of that series when due, continued for 30 days;

we fail to deposit any sinking fund payment, when due, in respect of any debt security of that series;

we fail to perform any other covenant of ours in the applicable indenture, other than a covenant included in the applicable indenture solely for the benefit of a series other than that series, continued for 60 days after written notice has been given by the indenture trustee or by the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series, as provided in the applicable indenture;

in the event subordinated debt securities are issued to a trust in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities, the dissolution, winding-up or termination of such trust, except in connection with the distribution of subordinated debt securities to the holders of trust preferred securities in liquidation of such trust, the redemption of all of the trust preferred securities of such trust, or certain mergers, consolidations or amalgamations permitted by the trust agreement of such trust; and

certain events in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization.

### (Section 501)

Each indenture provides that if an event of default with respect to the debt securities of any series at the time outstanding shall occur and be continuing, either the indenture trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series may declare the principal amount of the debt securities of that series to be due and payable immediately. However, after such acceleration, but before a judgment or decree based on acceleration, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series may, under

certain circumstances, rescind and annul such acceleration if all events of default, other than the nonpayment of accelerated principal, have been cured or waived. (Section 502) For information as to waiver of defaults, see "Modification and Waiver."

Subject to the provisions of the applicable indenture relating to the duties of the indenture trustee in case an event of default shall occur and be continuing, the indenture trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the applicable indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders, unless such holders shall have offered to the indenture trustee reasonable indemnity. (Section 603) Subject to such provisions for the indemnification of the indenture trustee, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the indenture trustee or exercising any trust or power conferred on the indenture trustee with respect to the debt securities of that series. (Section 512)

No holder of a debt security of any series will have any right to institute any proceeding with respect to the applicable indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or a trustee, or for any remedy thereunder, unless:

such holder has previously given written notice to the indenture trustee of a continuing event of default with respect to the debt securities of that series;

the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series shall have made proper written request to the indenture trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such event of default in its own name as trustee under the applicable indenture;

such holder or holders have offered to the indenture trustee reasonable indemnity against costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request;

the indenture trustee has failed to institute such proceeding for 60 days after receipt of such notice, request or offer of indemnity; and

no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the indenture trustee during the 60-day period by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series.

### (Section 507)

However, such limitations do not apply to a suit instituted by a holder of a debt security for the enforcement of payment of the principal, interest or premium on such debt security on or after the due dates expressed in the debt security. (Section 508)

Annually, we are required to furnish to each indenture trustee a statement by certain of our officers as to whether we are in default in the performance or observance of any of the terms of the applicable indenture and, if so, specifying all such known defaults. (Section 1004)

### **Modification and Waiver**

We and the trustee under each indenture may, without the consent of the holders of the debt securities, amend, waive or supplement the indenture for specified purposes, including to:

cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency in an indenture, provided that the cure or correction does not adversely affect the holders of such debt securities;

secure any debt securities;

add covenants or any additional events of default for the protection of the holders of debt securities;

add provisions to permit or facilitate the issuance of bearer securities (with or without coupons attached);

establish the forms or terms of debt securities of any series;

evidence the assumption by a successor corporation of our obligations;

evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee; or

conform any provision in an indenture to the requirements of the Trust Indenture Act.

#### (Section 901)

Each of the indentures provide that we and the applicable indenture trustee may modify and amend the applicable indenture with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each series affected by such modification or amendment; provided, however, that no such modification or amendment may, without the consent of the holder of each outstanding debt security affected thereby:

change the stated maturity of the principal of, or any installment of principal of or interest on, any debt security except to the extent provided in a prospectus supplement;

reduce the principal amount of or any premium or interest on any debt security;

reduce the amount of principal of an original issue discount security or any other debt security payable upon acceleration of the maturity;

change the currency of payment of principal, interest or premium on any debt security;

impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or with respect to any debt security;

reduce the percentage in principal amount of outstanding debt securities of any series, the consent of whose holders is required for modification or amendment of the applicable indenture;

reduce the percentage in principal amount of outstanding debt securities of any series necessary for waiver of compliance with certain provisions of the applicable indenture or for waiver of certain defaults; or

modify such provisions with respect to modification and waivers.

### (Section 902)

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series may waive compliance by us with certain restrictive provisions of the applicable indenture. (Section 1010 of the Senior Indenture and Section 1011 of the Subordinated Indenture) The holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series may waive any past default under the applicable indenture, except a default in the payment of principal, premium or interest and certain covenants and provisions of the applicable indenture which cannot be amended without the consent of the holder of each outstanding debt security of such series affected. (Section 513)

We will be entitled, except in certain limited circumstances, to set any day as a record date for the purpose of determining the holders of outstanding debt securities of any series entitled to give, make or take any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action provided or permitted by the applicable indenture. To be effective, any such action for which we have set a record date must be taken by holders of the requisite principal amount of debt securities of the relevant series outstanding on such record date within 180 days after the record date, or within such shorter period as we may specify. (Section 104)

#### **Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance**

We may elect, at our option, to have the provisions of Section 1302, relating to defeasance and discharge of indebtedness, or Section 1303, relating to defeasance of certain covenants in the indentures, apply to the debt securities of any series, or to any specified part of a series. (Section 1301)

*Defeasance And Discharge.* Each indenture provides that we may elect to be discharged from obligations with respect to any particular debt securities. Such discharge will take effect when we deposit in trust for the benefit of the holders of such debt securities money or U.S. government obligations, or both which, through the payment of principal and interest in respect thereof in accordance with their terms will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay the principal, interest and premium on such debt securities in accordance with their terms. However, such discharge shall not apply to our obligations to exchange or register the transfer of debt securities, to replace stolen, lost or mutilated debt securities, to maintain paying agencies and to hold moneys in trust. Such defeasance or discharge may occur only if, among other things, we have delivered to the indenture trustee an opinion of counsel stating that we have received from, or there has been published by, the United States Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or there has been a change in tax law, in either case to the effect that holders of the debt securities will not recognize gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit, defeasance and discharge and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amount, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit, defeasance and discharge were not to occur. (Sections 1302 and 1304)

*Defeasance Of Certain Covenants.* Each indenture provides that we may elect to defease certain covenants with respect to any particular debt securities. Such defeasance will take effect when we deposit, in trust for the benefit of the holders of such debt securities, money or U.S. government obligations, or both, which, through the payment of principal and interest in accordance with their terms, will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay the principal, interest and premium on such debt securities in accordance with their terms. Such defeasance may occur only if, among other things, we have delivered to the indenture trustee an opinion of counsel stating that holders of the debt securities will not recognize gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit and defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amount, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit and defeasance were not to occur. In the event we exercise this option with respect to any debt securities and such debt securities are declared due and payable because of the occurrence of any event of default, the amount of money and U.S. government obligations so deposited in trust will be sufficient to pay amounts due on such debt securities at the time of their stated maturities but may not be sufficient to pay amounts due on the debt securities upon any acceleration resulting from such event of default. In such case, we will remain liable for such payments. (Sections 1303 and 1304)

#### Notices

Notices to holders of debt securities will be given by mail to the addresses of such holders as they may appear in the security register. (Sections 101 and 106)

#### Title

Allstate, the applicable indenture trustee and any agent of Allstate or the indenture trustee may treat the person in whose name a debt security is registered as the absolute owner for the purpose of making payment and for all other purposes. (Section 308)

#### **Governing Law**

The indentures and the debt securities will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal laws of the State of New York. (Section 112)

### **Regarding the Indenture Trustee**

U.S. Bank National Association, which is the trustee under the indentures described in this prospectus, performs other services for us and our affiliates.

### DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following description of our capital stock is a summary. It summarizes only those aspects of our capital stock which we believe will be most important to your decision to invest in our capital stock. You should keep in mind, however, that it is our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, and our Amended and Restated Bylaws and the Delaware General Corporation Law, and not this summary, which define your rights as a securityholder. There may be other provisions in these documents which are also important to you. You should read these documents for a full description of the terms of our capital stock. Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and our Amended and Restated Bylaws are incorporated by reference as exhibits to the Registration Statement that includes this prospectus. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for information on how to obtain copies of these documents.

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation authorizes us to issue 2,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of \$0.01 per share, and 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$1.00 per share. As of March 30, 2012, there were 493,024,376 shares of common stock outstanding and we had no preferred stock issued or outstanding.

The particular terms of the common stock or preferred stock offered by any prospectus supplement and the extent to which the general provisions described below may apply to such common stock or preferred stock will be outlined in the applicable prospectus supplement.

#### **Common Stock**

Outstanding shares of our common stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange under the symbol "ALL." All outstanding shares of common stock are, and the shares of common stock issued under this prospectus, will be, fully paid and non-assessable.

*Dividends.* Subject to the prior rights of the holders of shares of preferred stock that may be issued and outstanding, none of which are currently outstanding, the holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by our Board of Directors. The issuance of dividends will depend upon, among other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors, our financial condition, results of operations, cash requirements, future prospects, changes in tax or other applicable laws relating to the treatment of dividends and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends that apply under applicable insurance laws. Dividends may be paid in cash, stock or other form. Each such dividend shall be payable to holders of record as they appear on our stock books on such record dates as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.

*Voting Rights.* Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters presented to a vote at a stockholders meeting, including the election of directors. The holders of common stock are not entitled to cumulative voting rights. Directors are elected if they receive the vote of the majority of the votes cast at any meeting for the election of directors at which a quorum is present. A majority of votes cast means the number of shares voted "for" a director exceeds 50% of the votes cast with respect to that director's election. Votes cast shall include votes to withhold authority in each case and exclude abstentions. Except as otherwise provided in our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or Amended and Restated Bylaws or as required by law, all other matters can be approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at a meeting and entitled to vote on the matter.



*Liquidation Rights.* In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Allstate, the holders of common stock will share equally in the assets remaining after creditors and preferred stockholders are paid.

*Other Rights.* The holders of common stock have no preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for any additional shares of common stock or other securities and there are no conversion rights or redemption or sinking fund provisions with respect to the common stock.

### **Preferred Stock**

We are authorized to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, none of which is currently issued and outstanding. Our Board of Directors is authorized to provide for the issuance of the preferred stock in a series, to establish or change the number of shares to be included in each series and to fix the designation, relative rights, preferences and limitations of each series, subject to such limitations as may be prescribed by law. In particular, our Board of Directors is authorized, without limitation, to determine the number of shares, the designation of the series, the dividend rate, voting rights, conversion and exchange rights, redemption provisions, liquidation rights and sinking fund provisions, all without further action by our stockholders. The rights of holders of the preferred stock offered may be adversely affected by the rights of holders of any shares of preferred stock that may be issued in the future. Our Board of Directors may cause shares of preferred stock to be issued in public or private transactions for any proper corporate purpose. Examples of proper corporate purposes include issuances to obtain additional financing in connection with acquisitions or otherwise, and issuances to officers, directors and employees of Allstate and its subsidiaries pursuant to benefit plans or otherwise. Shares of preferred stock issued by us may have the effect of rendering more difficult or discouraging an acquisition of Allstate deemed undesirable by our Board of Directors.

We will describe the terms, if any, on which shares of any series of preferred stock are convertible or exchangeable into our common stock or other securities in the prospectus supplement relating to the offering. The conversion or exchange may be mandatory, at your option or at our option. The applicable prospectus supplement will state the manner in which the shares of our common stock or other securities that you will receive as a holder of preferred stock would be converted or exchanged.

The preferred stock will be fully paid and non-assessable. Unless otherwise indicated in an applicable prospectus supplement, holders of preferred stock will not have preemptive or subscription rights to acquire more of our stock. Unless otherwise indicated in an applicable prospectus supplement, the preferred stock will have preference over our common stock with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets in the event of a liquidation, winding-up or dissolution of Allstate. Unless otherwise indicated in an applicable prospectus supplement, each series of preferred stock will rank on a parity with each other series of preferred stock.

In addition, as described under "Description of Depositary Shares," we may, at our option, instead of offering whole individual shares of any series of preferred stock, offer depositary shares evidenced by depositary receipts, each representing a fraction of a share or some multiple of shares of the particular series of preferred stock issued and deposited with a depositary. The fraction of a share of preferred stock which each depositary share represents will be stated in the prospectus supplement relating to any series of preferred stock offered through depositary shares.

*Dividends.* Holders of shares of the preferred stock of each series shall be entitled to receive, as and when declared by our Board of Directors, cash or other dividends at such rates and on such dates as will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. Each such dividend shall be payable to holders of record as they appear on our stock books or, if applicable, the records of the depositary referred to below under "Description of Depositary Shares," on such record dates as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.

Dividends on any series of the preferred stock may be cumulative or noncumulative, as provided in the applicable prospectus supplement. If our Board of Directors fails to declare a dividend payable on a dividend payment date on any series of the preferred stock for which dividends are noncumulative, then the holders of such series of the preferred stock will have no right to receive a dividend in respect of the dividend period ending on such dividend payment date, and we will have no obligation to pay the dividend accrued for such period, whether or not dividends on such series are declared payable on any future dividend payment date.

*Liquidation Rights.* In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Allstate, the holders of preferred stock will be entitled to receive out of our assets, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of common stock, liquidating distributions in the amount of the liquidation price per share, as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. If, upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Allstate, the amounts payable with respect to the preferred stock and any other shares of our stock ranking as to any such distribution of a parity with the preferred stock are not paid in full, the holders of the preferred stock and of such other shares will share ratably in any such distribution of our assets in proportion to the full respective preferential amounts to which they are entitled. After payment of the full amount of the liquidation or merger of Allstate with or into any other corporation or corporations or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of Allstate shall not be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Allstate.

*Redemption.* The preferred stock will be redeemable at the times and at the redemption prices set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may not purchase or redeem any of the outstanding shares of any series of preferred stock unless full cumulative dividends, if any, have been paid or declared and set apart for payment upon all outstanding shares of any series of preferred stock for all past dividend periods, and unless all of our matured obligations with respect to all sinking funds, retirement funds or purchase funds for all series of preferred stock then outstanding have been met.

Voting Rights. The holders of the preferred stock will have no voting rights, except:

as otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement;

as otherwise stated in the certificate of designation establishing such series; and

as required by applicable law.

# Provisions of Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws that May Delay or Make More Difficult Unsolicited Acquisitions or Changes of Our Control

Some provisions of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws may delay or make more difficult unsolicited acquisitions or changes of our control. We believe that these provisions will enable us to develop our business in a manner that will foster long-term growth without disruption caused by the threat of a takeover not thought by our Board of Directors to be in the best interests of Allstate and its stockholders.

Those provisions could have the effect of discouraging third parties from making proposals involving an unsolicited acquisition or change of control of our company, although the proposals, if made, might be considered desirable by a majority of our stockholders. Those provisions may also have the effect of making it more difficult for third parties to cause the replacement of our current management without the concurrence of our Board of Directors.

These provisions include:

our Amended and Restated Bylaws establish advance notice procedures with regard to stockholder proposals relating to the nomination of candidates for election as directors or new business to be brought before annual or special stockholders meetings;

special meetings of the stockholders may be called only by (i) the Secretary upon the written request of stockholders owning not less than 20% of all outstanding common stock, in accordance with the applicable requirements and procedures of the Amended and Restated Bylaws or (ii) the chairman of the Board of Directors; and

stockholders may not act by written consent. All actions required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders must be taken only at an annual or special meeting of stockholders.

In addition, we are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Generally, Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" during the three years after the date the person became an interested stockholder, unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. A "business combination" includes a merger, asset sale or a transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. An "interested stockholder" is a person, who together with affiliates and associates, owns (or, in certain cases, within the preceding three years, did own) 15% or more of the corporation's outstanding voting stock. Under Section 203, a business combination between us and an interested stockholder is prohibited unless it satisfies one of the following conditions:

before the stockholder became an interested stockholder, our Board of Directors approved either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

upon the completion of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding, for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding, shares owned by persons who are directors and officers; or

the business combination is approved by our Board of Directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders by at least  $66^{2}/3\%$  of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

### Limitations on Liability

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation limits our directors' liability to the fullest extent permitted by law. Generally, our directors will not be held liable for their actions. However, they will be held liable for:

a breach of their duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders;

acts or omissions not in good faith or in a way which involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

payment of an improper dividend or improper repurchase of our stock; or

acting or not acting for improper personal benefit.

Because of these limitations on liability, our stockholders may not sue one of our directors for money unless the stockholder can show the director committed one of the offenses listed above. These provisions do not affect our directors' liability under federal securities laws. Also, our directors still have a duty of care. The limitation of our directors' liability may discourage or deter stockholders or management from suing directors for a breach of their duties, even though such an action, if successful,

might otherwise have benefited us or our stockholders. This limitation on our directors' liability should not affect the availability of equitable remedies such as injunctions or rescissions based upon a director's breach of his or her duty of care.

### DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

The following description of the depositary shares and the terms of the deposit agreement is a summary. It summarizes only those aspects of the depositary shares and those portions of the deposit agreement that we believe will be most important to your decision to invest in our depositary shares. You should keep in mind, however, that it is the deposit agreement, and not this summary, which defines your rights as a holder of depositary shares. There may be other provisions in the deposit agreement that are also important to you. You should read the deposit agreement for a full description of the terms of the depositary shares. The form of the deposit agreement is filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement that includes this prospectus. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for information on how to obtain a copy of the deposit agreement.

The particular terms of the depositary shares offered by any prospectus supplement and the extent to which the general provisions described below may apply to such depositary shares will be outlined in the applicable prospectus supplement.

### General

We may choose to offer fractional interests in debt securities or fractional shares of our common stock or preferred stock. If we decide to do so, we will issue fractional interests in debt securities, or fractional shares of our common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be, in the form of depositary shares. Each depositary share would represent a fractional interest in a security of a particular series of debt securities or a fraction of a share of common stock or of a particular series of preferred stock, as the case may be, and would be evidenced by a depositary receipt.

We will deposit the debt securities or shares of common stock or preferred stock represented by depositary shares under a deposit agreement between us and a depositary which we will name in the applicable prospectus supplement. Subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, as an owner of a depositary share you will be entitled, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a debt security or share of common stock or preferred stock represented by the depositary share, to all the rights and preferences of the debt security, common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be, represented by the depositary share, including, as the case may be, interest, dividend, voting, conversion, redemption, sinking fund, repayment at maturity, subscription and liquidation rights.

#### Interest, Dividends and Other Distributions

The depositary will distribute all payments of interest, cash dividends or other cash distributions received on the debt securities or preferred stock, as the case may be, to you in proportion to the number of depositary shares that you own.

In the event of a distribution other than in cash, the depositary will distribute property received by it to you in an equitable manner, unless the depositary determines that it is not feasible to make a distribution. In that case, the depositary may sell the property and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to you.

#### **Redemption of Depositary Shares**

If we redeem a debt security, common stock or series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the depositary will redeem your depositary shares from the proceeds received by the depositary resulting from the redemption. The redemption price per depositary share will be equal to the

applicable fraction of the redemption price per debt security or share of common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be, payable in relation to the redeemed series of debt securities, common stock or preferred stock. Whenever we redeem debt securities or shares of common stock or preferred stock held by the depositary, the depositary will redeem as of the same redemption date the number of depositary shares representing, as the case may be, fractional interests in the debt securities or shares of common stock or preferred stock redeemed. If fewer than all the depositary shares are to be redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot, proportionately or by any other equitable method as the depositary may determine.

#### Exercise of Rights under the Indentures or Voting the Common Stock or Preferred Stock

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which you are entitled to vote, or of any request for instructions or directions from you as a holder of fractional interests in debt securities, common stock or preferred stock, the depositary will mail to you the information contained in that notice. Each record holder of the depositary shares on the record date will be entitled to instruct the depositary how to give instructions or directions with respect to the debt securities represented by that holder's depositary shares or how to vote the amount of the common stock or preferred stock represented by that holder's depositary shares. The record date for the depositary shares will be the same date as the record date for the debt securities, common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be. The depositary will endeavor, to the extent practicable, to give instructions or directions with respect to the debt securities or to vote the amount of the common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be. The depositary will agree to take all reasonable action which the depositary may deem necessary to enable the depositary to do so. The depositary will abstain from giving instructions or directions with respect to your fractional interests in the debt securities or voting shares of the common stock, as the case may be, if it does not receive specific instructions from you.

### Amendment and Termination of the Deposit Agreement

We and the depositary may amend the form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the deposit agreement at any time. However, any amendment which materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders of the depositary shares will not be effective unless the amendment has been approved by the holders of at least a majority of the depositary shares then outstanding.

The deposit agreement will terminate if:

all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed;

if applicable, the debt securities and the preferred stock represented by depository shares have been converted into or exchanged for our common stock; or

there has been a complete repayment or redemption of the debt securities or a final distribution in respect of the common stock or preferred stock, including in connection with our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, and the repayment, redemption or distribution proceeds, as the case may be, have been distributed to you.

### **Resignation and Removal of Depositary**

The depositary may resign at any time by delivering to us notice of its election to do so. We also may, at any time, remove the depositary. Any resignation or removal will take effect upon the appointment of a successor depositary and its acceptance of such appointment. We must appoint the successor depositary within 60 days after delivery of the notice of resignation or removal. The successor

depositary must be a bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States and having a combined capital and surplus of at least \$50,000,000.

### **Charges of Depositary**

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the existence of the depositary arrangements. We will pay charges of the depositary in connection with the initial deposit of the debt securities, common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be, and issuance of depositary receipts, all withdrawals of depositary shares of debt securities, common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be, by you and any repayment or redemption of the debt securities, common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be, and other taxes and governmental charges, as well as the other charges that are expressly provided in the deposit agreement to be for your account.

### Miscellaneous

The depositary will forward all reports and communications from us which are delivered to the depositary and which we are required or otherwise determine to furnish to holders of debt securities, common stock or preferred stock, as the case may be.

Neither we nor the depositary will be liable under the deposit agreement to you other than for its gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith. Neither we nor the depositary will be obligated to prosecute or defend any legal proceedings relating to any depositary shares, debt securities, common stock or preferred stock unless satisfactory indemnity is furnished. We and the depositary may rely upon written advice of counsel or accountants, or upon information provided by persons presenting debt securities or shares of common stock or preferred stock for deposit, you or other persons believed to be competent and on documents which we and the depositary believe to be genuine.

### **DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS**

The following description of the warrants and terms of the warrant agreement is a summary. It summarizes only those aspects of the warrants and those portions of the warrant agreement which we believe will be most important to your decision to invest in our warrants. You should keep in mind, however, that it is the warrant agreement and the warrant certificate relating to the warrants, and not this summary, which defines your rights as a warrantholder. There may be other provisions in the warrant agreement and the warrant certificate relating to the warrant certificate relating to the warrants. Forms of these documents are filed as exhibits to the Registration Statement that includes this prospectus. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for information on how to obtain copies of these documents.

We may issue warrants for the purchase of our debt securities, preferred stock or common stock or units of two or more of these types of securities. Warrants may be issued independently or together with debt securities, preferred stock or common stock and may be attached to or separate from these securities. Each series of warrants will be issued under a separate warrant agreement that we will describe in the prospectus supplement relating to the warrants that we offer.

#### **Debt Warrants**

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the terms of warrants to purchase debt securities that we may offer, the warrant agreement relating to the debt warrants and the warrant certificates representing the debt warrants. These terms will include the following:

the title of the debt warrants;

the aggregate number of the debt warrants;

the price or prices at which the debt warrants will be issued;

the designation, aggregate principal amount and terms of the debt securities purchasable upon exercise of the debt warrants and the procedures and conditions relating to the exercise of the debt warrants;

if applicable, the number of warrants issued with a specified principal amount of debt securities or with other securities, including shares of preferred stock or common stock;

the date, if any, on and after which such debt warrants and the related debt securities will be separately transferable;

the principal amount of debt securities purchasable upon exercise of each debt warrant and the price at which such principal amount of debt securities may be purchased;

the date on which the right to exercise such debt warrants shall commence and the date on which such right shall expire;

whether the debt securities purchasable upon exercise of such debt warrants are original issue discount debt securities, and discussion of applicable federal income tax considerations; and

any other material terms of the debt warrants and terms, procedures and limitations relating to the exercise of the debt warrants.

We will also describe in the applicable prospectus supplement any provisions for a change in the exercise price or the expiration date of the debt warrants and the kind, frequency and timing of any notice to be given. You may exchange debt warrant certificates for new debt warrant certificates of different denominations and may exercise debt warrants at the corporate trust office of the warrant agent or any other office that we indicate in the applicable prospectus supplement.

### **Other Warrants**

We may issue other warrants. We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the following terms of those warrants:

the title of the warrants;

the aggregate number of the warrants;

the number of securities purchasable upon exercise of each warrant, and the price or prices at which the warrants will be issued;

the securities, which may include preferred stock or common stock, for which the warrants are exercisable;

the procedures and conditions relating to the exercise of the warrants;

the designation and terms of any related securities issued with the warrants, and the number of warrants issued with each security;

the date, if any, on and after which such warrants and the related securities will be separately transferable;

the date on which the right to exercise such warrants shall commence and the date on which such right shall expire;

the maximum or minimum number of warrants which may be exercised at any time;

if applicable, a discussion of material United States federal income tax considerations; and

any other terms of the warrants, including terms, procedures and limitations relating to the exchange and exercise of such warrants.

We will also describe in the applicable prospectus supplement any provisions for a change in the exercise price or the expiration date of the warrants and the kind, frequency and timing of any notice to be given. You may exchange warrant certificates for new warrant certificates of different denominations and may exercise warrants at the corporate trust office of the warrant agent or any other office that we indicate in the applicable prospectus supplement.

### **Exercise of Warrants**

Each warrant will entitle the holder to purchase the principal amount of debt securities or other securities, including shares of preferred stock or common stock, at the exercise price as shall in each case be set forth in, or be determinable as set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to the warrants offered in the applicable prospectus supplement. Warrants may be exercised at any time up to the close of business on the expiration date set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. After the close of business of the expiration date, unexercised warrants will become void.

Upon receipt of payment and the warrant certificate properly completed and duly executed at the corporate trust office of the warrant agent or any other office indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will, as soon as practicable, forward the debt securities or other securities, including shares of preferred stock or common stock, to be purchased upon such exercise. If less than all of the warrants represented by a warrant certificate are exercised, a new warrant certificate will be issued for the remaining warrants.

Prior to the exercise of any warrants to purchase debt securities or other securities, including shares of preferred stock or common stock, holders of the warrants will not have any of the rights of holders of the debt securities or other securities, including shares of preferred stock or common stock purchasable upon exercise, including:

in the case of warrants for the purchase of debt securities, the right to receive payments of principal of, or any premium or interest on, the debt securities purchasable upon exercise or to enforce covenants in the applicable indenture; or

in the case of warrants for the purchase of shares of preferred stock or shares of common stock, the right to vote or to receive any payments of dividends on the shares of preferred stock or common stock purchasable upon exercise.

### DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND STOCK PURCHASE UNITS

We may issue stock purchase contracts, including contracts obligating you to purchase from us, and us to sell to you, a specified number of shares of common stock, shares of preferred stock or other property at a future date or dates. The consideration per share of common stock or preferred stock and the number of shares of each may be fixed at the time the stock purchase contracts are issued or may be determined by reference to a specific formula set forth in the stock purchase contracts. The stock purchase contracts may be issued separately or as part of units, often known as stock purchase units, consisting of a stock purchase contract and any combination of:

debt securities;

common stock;

preferred stock;

other stock purchase contracts;

preferred securities issued by trusts, all of whose common securities are owned by us or by one of our subsidiaries;

depositary shares representing fractional interests in debt securities or shares of common stock or preferred stock; or

preferred securities or debt obligations of third parties, including United States Treasury securities,

which may secure your obligations to purchase the common stock, preferred stock or other property under the stock purchase contracts. The stock purchase contracts may require us to make periodic payments to you or vice versa, and these payments may be unsecured or prefunded on some basis. The stock purchase contracts may require you to secure your obligations in a specified manner.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the terms of the stock purchase contracts and stock purchase units, including, if applicable, collateral or depositary arrangements.

### DESCRIPTION OF TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

The following description of the trust preferred securities and the form of trust agreement is a summary. It summarizes only those aspects of the trust preferred securities and portions of the form of trust agreement which we believe will be most important to your decision to invest in the trust preferred securities. You should keep in mind, however, that it is the trust agreement, and not this summary, which defines your rights as a holder. There may be other provisions in the trust agreement which are also important to you. You should read the form of trust agreement itself for a full description of the terms of the preferred securities. The form of trust agreement is filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for information on how to obtain a copy of the trust agreement.

The trust preferred securities may be issued from time to time in one or more series. The particular terms of the trust preferred securities offered by any prospectus supplement and the extent to which the general provisions described below may apply to such securities will be outlined in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Each trust may issue, from time to time, only one series of preferred securities. The trust preferred securities will represent preferred undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the related trust. Each of the trusts is a legally separate entity and the assets of one are not available to satisfy the obligations of any of the others. The trust agreement for each trust will be qualified as an indenture under the Trust Indenture Act. The trust preferred securities will have such terms, including distributions, redemption, voting, liquidation and such other preferred, deferred or other special rights or such restrictions as shall be set forth in the trust agreement or made part of the trust agreement by the Trust Indenture Act, and which will mirror the terms of the subordinated debt securities held by the trust and described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Reference is made to the prospectus supplement relating to the preferred securities of any trust for specific terms, including:

the distinctive designation of such trust preferred securities;

the number of trust preferred securities issued by such trust;

the annual distribution rate for trust preferred securities issued by such trust and the dates upon which distributions are payable; provided, however, that distributions on such trust preferred securities are payable on a quarterly basis to holders of the trust preferred securities as of a record date in each quarter during which such trust preferred securities are outstanding;

whether distributions on trust preferred securities issued by such trust are cumulative and the dates from which distributions will be cumulative;

the amount which shall be paid out of the assets of such trust to the holders of trust preferred securities upon dissolution of the trust;

the obligation or the option of such trust to purchase or redeem trust preferred securities and the prices at which, the periods within which, and the terms upon which, trust preferred securities may be purchased or redeemed;

any voting rights of trust preferred securities in addition to those required by law, including the number of votes per trust preferred security and any requirement for the approval by the holders of trust preferred securities as a condition to specified action or amendments to the trust agreement of such trust;

the terms and conditions upon which the subordinated debt securities purchased by such trust may be distributed to holders of trust preferred securities;

whether any of the trust preferred securities will be issuable in the form of global securities;

any securities exchange upon which the trust preferred securities shall be listed; and

any other relevant rights, preferences, privileges, limitations or restrictions of trust preferred securities issued by such trust not inconsistent with its trust agreement or with applicable law.

We will guarantee all trust preferred securities offered hereby to the extent set forth below under "Description of Preferred Securities Guarantees." Certain United States federal income tax considerations applicable to any offering of trust preferred securities will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

In connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities, each trust will issue one series of common securities having such terms including distributions, redemption, voting and liquidation rights or such restrictions as shall be set forth in its trust agreement. The terms of the common securities will be substantially similar to the terms of the trust preferred securities issued by such trust and the common securities will rank equal with, and payments will be made thereon pro rata, with the trust preferred securities except that, upon an event of default under the trust agreement, the rights of the holders of the common securities to payment in respect of distributions and payments upon liquidation, redemption and otherwise will be subordinated to the rights of the holders of the trust preferred securities. Except in certain limited circumstances, the common securities will carry the right to vote to appoint, remove or replace any of the trustees of a trust. Directly or indirectly, we will own all of the common securities of each trust.

#### **Enforcement Of Certain Rights By Holders Of Preferred Securities**

If an event of default under the trust agreement of a trust occurs and is continuing, then the holders of trust preferred securities of such trust would rely on the enforcement by the property trustee of its rights as a holder of the applicable series of subordinated debt securities against us. In addition, the holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities of such trust will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the property trustee or to direct the exercise of any trust or power conferred upon the property trustee to exercise the remedies available to it as a holder of the subordinated debt securities. If the property trustee fails to enforce its rights under the trust agreement, a holder of trust preferred securities of such trust may institute a legal proceeding directly against us to enforce the property trustee's rights under the applicable series of subordinated debt securities without first instituting any legal proceeding against the property trustee or any other person or entity.

Notwithstanding, if an event of default under the applicable trust agreement has occurred and is continuing and such event is attributable to our failure to pay principal or interest on the applicable series of subordinated debt securities on the date such principal or interest is otherwise payable or in the case of redemption, on the redemption date, then a holder of trust preferred securities of subordinated debt securities having a principal amount equal to the aggregate liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities of such holder on or after the respective due date specified in the applicable series of subordinated debt securities. In connection with such direct action, we will be subrogated to the rights of such holder of trust preferred securities in such direct action.

### DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED SECURITIES GUARANTEES

The following description of the terms of the preferred securities guarantee is a summary. It summarizes only those portions of the preferred securities guarantee which we believe will be most important to your decision to invest in the trust preferred securities. You should keep in mind, however, that it is the preferred securities guarantee, and not this summary, which defines your rights. There may be other provisions in the preferred securities guarantee which are also important to you. You should read the preferred securities guarantee itself for a full description of its terms. The preferred securities guarantee is filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement that includes this prospectus. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for information on how to obtain a copy of the preferred securities guarantee. When we refer in this summary to trust preferred securities, we mean the trust preferred securities issued by a trust to which the preferred securities guarantee relates.

At the same time as the issuance by a trust of its preferred securities, we will execute and deliver a preferred securities guarantee for your benefit, as a holder of the trust preferred securities. Each preferred securities guarantee will be qualified as an indenture under the Trust Indenture Act. U.S. Bank National Association will act as the independent preferred guarantee trustee under each preferred securities guarantee for purposes of compliance with the Trust Indenture Act. The terms of each preferred securities guarantee will be those set forth in such preferred securities guarantee. Each preferred securities guarantee will be held by the preferred guarantee trustee for the benefit of the holders of the trust preferred securities of the applicable trust.

#### General

Pursuant to each preferred securities guarantee, we will agree to pay in full on a subordinated basis, to the holders of the trust preferred securities issued by a trust, the following guarantee payments, except to the extent paid by such trust, as and when due, regardless of any defense, right of set-off or counterclaim which such trust may have or assert. The following payments with respect to trust preferred securities, to the extent not paid by such trust, will be subject to the preferred securities guarantee:

any accrued and unpaid distributions which are required to be paid on such trust preferred securities, to the extent such trust has funds available;

the redemption price set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, which will not be lower than the liquidation amount, and all accrued and unpaid distributions, to the extent such trust has funds available therefor with respect to any trust preferred securities called for redemption by such trust; and

upon dissolution, winding-up or termination of such trust other than in connection with the distribution of subordinated debt securities to the holders of trust preferred securities or the redemption of all of the trust preferred securities, the lesser of (1) the aggregate of the



liquidation amount and all accrued and unpaid distributions on such trust preferred securities to the date of payment, to the extent such trust has funds available and (2) the amount of assets of such trust remaining available for distribution to holders of such trust preferred securities in liquidation of such trust.

Our obligation to make a guarantee payment may be satisfied by direct payment of the required amounts by us to the holders of trust preferred securities or by causing the applicable trust to pay such amounts to such holders.

The preferred securities guarantees will be guarantees on a subordinated basis of the related trust obligations under the preferred securities, but will apply only to the extent that the related trust has funds sufficient to make the payments. The preferred securities guarantees will constitute a guarantee of payment and not of collection. If we do not make interest payments on the corresponding subordinated debt securities held by the trust, we expect that the trust will not pay distributions on the preferred securities and will not have funds legally available for those payments.

The preferred securities guarantee, when taken together with our obligations under the subordinated debt securities, the Subordinated Indenture and the trust agreement, including our obligations to pay costs, expenses, debts and liabilities of such trust other than with respect to the trust securities, will provide a full and unconditional guarantee on a subordinated basis by us of payments due on the trust preferred securities.

We have also agreed separately to irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee the obligations of the trusts with respect to the common securities (our common securities guarantee) to the same extent as the preferred securities guarantee, except that upon an event of default under the Subordinated Indenture, holders of trust preferred securities shall have priority over holders of common securities with respect to distributions and payments on liquidation, redemption or otherwise.

### Status of the Preferred Securities Guarantees

Unless otherwise indicated in an applicable prospectus supplement, the preferred securities guarantees will constitute our unsecured obligations and will rank:

subordinate and junior in right of payment to all our other liabilities;

equal with the most senior preferred or preference stock now or hereafter issued by us and with any guarantee now or hereafter entered into by us in respect of any preferred or preference stock of any of our affiliates; and

senior to common stock.

The terms of the trust preferred securities provide that each holder agrees to the subordination provisions and other terms of the preferred securities guarantee.

The preferred securities guarantees will constitute a guarantee of payment and not of collection; that is, the guaranteed party may institute a legal proceeding directly against the guarantor to enforce its rights under the guarantee without instituting a legal proceeding against any other person or entity.

#### **Certain Covenants of Allstate**

In each preferred securities guarantee, we will covenant that, so long as any trust preferred securities issued by the applicable trust remain outstanding, if there shall have occurred any event that would constitute an event of default under such preferred securities guarantee or the trust agreement of such trust, then, unless otherwise set forth in an applicable prospectus supplement, we shall not:

declare or pay any dividend on, make any distributions with respect to, or redeem, purchase or make a liquidation payment with respect to, any of our capital stock;

make any guarantee payments with respect to any of our capital stock; or

make any payment of principal, interest, or premium on or repay, repurchase or redeem any debt securities (including guarantees) that rank equal with or junior to such subordinated debt securities.

However, in such circumstances we may:

declare and pay dividends on, or make distributions with respect to, our capital stock payable in our common stock;

redeem or repurchase any rights, declare a dividend of any rights, or issue any security under any rights plan then in effect;

purchase or acquire shares of common stock in order to satisfy our obligations under any employee benefit plan;

carry out any reclassification of our capital stock or the exchange or conversion of one class or series of our capital stock for another class or series of our capital stock; and

purchase fractional interests in shares of our capital stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such capital stock or the security being converted or exchanged.

#### Modification of the Preferred Securities Guarantees; Assignment

Each preferred securities guarantee may be amended only with the prior approval of the holders of not less than a majority in liquidation amount of the outstanding trust preferred securities issued by the applicable trust except with respect to any changes which do not adversely affect the rights of holders of trust preferred securities in which case no vote will be required. The manner of obtaining any such approval of holders of such trust preferred securities will be as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. All guarantees and agreements contained in a preferred securities guarantee shall bind our successors, assigns, receivers, trustees and representatives and shall inure to the benefit of the holders of the trust preferred securities of the applicable trust then outstanding.

### Termination

Each preferred securities guarantee will terminate as to the trust preferred securities issued by the applicable trust:

upon full payment of the redemption price of all trust preferred securities of such trust;

upon distribution of the subordinated debt securities held by such trust to the holders of the trust preferred securities of such trust; or

upon full payment of the amounts payable in accordance with the trust agreement of such trust upon liquidation of such trust.

Each preferred securities guarantee will continue to be effective or will be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time any holder of trust preferred securities issued by the applicable trust must restore payment of any sums paid under such trust preferred securities or such preferred securities guarantee.

The subordination provisions of the subordinated debt securities provide that in the event payment is made on the subordinated debt securities or the preferred securities guarantee in contravention of such provisions, such payments shall be paid over to the holders of senior indebtedness.

### **Events of Default**

An event of default under a preferred securities guarantee will occur upon our failure to perform any of our obligations thereunder.

The holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the trust preferred securities relating to such preferred securities guarantee have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the preferred guarantee trustee in respect of the guarantee or to direct the exercise of any trust or power conferred upon the preferred guarantee trustee under such trust preferred securities. If the preferred guarantee trustee fails to enforce such preferred securities guarantee, any holder of trust preferred securities relating to such guarantee may institute a legal proceeding directly against us to enforce the preferred guarantee trustee's rights under such guarantee, without first instituting a legal proceeding against the relevant trust, the guarantee or any other person or entity. Notwithstanding, if we fail to make a guarantee for such payment. We waive any right or remedy to require that any action be brought first against such trust or any other person or entity before proceeding directly against us.

### Information Concerning the Preferred Guarantee Trustee

The preferred guarantee trustee, before the occurrence of a default with respect to a preferred securities guarantee, undertakes to perform only such duties as are specifically set forth in such preferred securities guarantee and, after default, shall exercise the same degree of care as a prudent individual would exercise in the conduct of his or her own affairs. The preferred guarantee trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the powers vested in it by a preferred securities guarantee at the request of any holder of preferred securities, unless offered reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities which might be incurred.

#### **Governing Law**

The preferred securities guarantees will be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York.

### PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell any series of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depository shares, warrants, stock purchase contracts and stock purchase units and the trusts may sell the trust preferred securities being offered directly to one or more purchasers, through agents, to or through underwriters or dealers, or through a combination of any such methods of sale. The distribution of the securities may be effected from time to time in one or more transactions at fixed prices, which may be changed, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or at negotiated prices. The prospectus supplement will set forth the terms of the offering, including the names of any underwriters, dealers or agents, the purchase price of such securities and the proceeds to us and/or a trust from such sale, any underwriting discounts and commissions or agency fees and other items constituting underwriters' or agents' compensation, any initial public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or paid to dealers or any securities exchange on which such securities may be listed. Any initial public offering price, discounts or concessions allowed or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time.

Any discounts, concessions or commissions received by underwriters or agents and any profits on the resale of securities by them may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). Unless otherwise set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, the obligations of underwriters to purchase the offered securities will be subject to certain conditions precedent, and such underwriters will be obligated to purchase all such

securities, if any are purchased. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, any agent will be acting on a best efforts basis for the period of its appointment.

We, along with the trusts, may enter into derivative transactions with third parties, or sell securities not covered by this prospectus to third parties in privately negotiated transactions. If the applicable prospectus supplement indicates, in connection with those derivatives, the third parties may sell securities covered by this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, including in short sale transactions. If so, the third party may use securities pledged by us or the trusts, as applicable, or borrowed from us or the trusts, as applicable, or others to settle those sales or to close out any related open borrowings of stock, and may use securities received from us or the trusts, as applicable, in settlement of those derivatives to close out any related open borrowings of stock. The third party in such sale transactions will be an underwriter and, if not identified in this prospectus, will be identified in the applicable prospectus supplement (or a post-effective amendment).

We, along with the trusts, may also offer and sell securities, if so indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, in connection with a remarketing upon their purchase, in accordance with a redemption or repayment pursuant to their terms, or otherwise, by one or more firms referred to as remarketing firms, acting as principals for their own accounts or as agents for us or one of the trusts. Any remarketing firm will be identified and the terms of its agreement, if any, with us or one of the trusts, and its compensation will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. Remarketing firms may be deemed to be underwriters under the Securities Act in connection with the securities they remarket.

We may authorize underwriters, dealers or other persons acting as agents for us or one of the trusts to solicit offers by certain institutions to purchase securities from us or one of the trusts, pursuant to contracts providing for payment and delivery on a future date. Institutions with which such contracts may be made include commercial and savings banks, insurance companies, pension funds, investment companies, educational and charitable institutions and others, but in all cases such institutions must be approved by us or one of the trusts. The obligations of any purchaser under any such contract will be subject to the conditions that the purchase of the offered securities shall not at the time of delivery be prohibited under the laws of the jurisdiction to which such purchaser is subject. The underwriters and such other agents will not have any responsibility in respect of the validity or performance of such contracts.

In connection with the offering of securities, we or any trust, may grant to the underwriters an option to purchase additional securities to cover over-allotments at the initial public offering price, with an additional underwriting commission, as may be set forth in the accompanying prospectus supplement. If we or any trust grants any over-allotment option, the terms of such over-allotment option will be set forth in the prospectus supplement for such securities.

The securities may be a new issue of securities that have no established trading market. Any underwriters to whom securities are sold for public offering and sale may make a market in such securities, but such underwriters will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. Such securities may or may not be listed on a national securities exchange. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity of or the existence of trading markets for any securities.

We and the trusts may indemnify agents, underwriters, dealers and remarketing firms against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. Our agents, underwriters, dealers and remarketing firms, or their affiliates, may be customers of, engage in transactions with or perform services for us, in the ordinary course of business.

### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We and the trusts have filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission to register the securities covered by this prospectus. This prospectus forms a part of that registration statement and does not contain all of the information in the registration statement or the exhibits to the registration statement.

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act. Accordingly, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission. You may review a copy of those reports, statements or other information at the Securities and Exchange Commission's public reference room, which is located at Room 1580, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can also request copies of such documents, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by writing to the SEC's public reference room. Please call the Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room.

These Securities and Exchange Commission filings are also available to the public from commercial document retrieval services and at the Internet site maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission at "http://www.sec.gov." Reports, proxy statements and other information concerning us may also be inspected at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

We have not included any separate financial statements for the trusts. They were omitted because the trusts are our wholly owned subsidiaries, with no independent operations and we guarantee the fee obligations relating to the trust securities.

The Securities and Exchange Commission allows us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to other documents filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be part of this prospectus. Any statement made in this prospectus or a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any other subsequently filed document which is also incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any other subsequently filed document which is also incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus. This prospectus incorporates by reference the documents set forth below that we have previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (File No. 001-11840). These documents contain important business and financial information about us that is not included in or delivered with this prospectus.

### THE ALLSTATE CORPORATION FILINGS

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed February 22, 2012, and the portions of our Proxy Statement, filed April 11, 2012, for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders incorporated by reference into our Annual Report

The description of our common stock contained in Item 11 of our registration statement on Form 10/A filed May 14, 2001, as amended and restated in Item 8.01 of our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 18, 2011

We are also incorporating by reference all other documents subsequently filed by us pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, prior to the termination of this offering.

You can request a free copy of any or all of these documents, other than the exhibits to those documents, unless those exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into these documents, by

writing to: Investor Relations Department, The Allstate Corporation, 2775 Sanders Road, Northbrook, Illinois 60062-7127, or calling: (800) 416-8803.

### SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents we incorporate by reference contain "forward-looking statements" that anticipate results based on management's estimates, assumptions and plans that are subject to uncertainty. These statements are made subject to the safe-harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements as a result of new information or future events or developments.

These forward-looking statements do not relate strictly to historical or current facts and may be identified by their use of words like "plans," "expects," "will," "anticipates," "estimates," "intends," "believes," "likely" and other words with similar meanings. These statements may address, among other things, our strategy for growth, product development, regulatory approvals, market position, expenses, financial results and reserves. Management believes that these statements are based on reasonable estimates, assumptions and plans. However, if the estimates, assumptions or plans underlying the forward-looking statements prove inaccurate or if other risks or uncertainties arise, actual results could differ materially from those communicated in these forward-looking statements. In addition to the normal risks of business, we are subject to significant risks and uncertainties which are described in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission referred to above in "Where You Can Find More Information," including those identified under the caption "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, and as may be described in our subsequent filings.

#### LEGAL OPINIONS

The validity of the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP, New York, New York, counsel for Allstate, and certain matters of Delaware law relating to the validity of the trust preferred securities of Allstate Financing VII, VIII, IX and X will be passed upon for the trusts by Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A., Wilmington, Delaware, special Delaware counsel for the trusts.

#### EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedules, incorporated in this Prospectus by reference from The Allstate Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K, and the effectiveness of The Allstate Corporation's internal control over financial reporting have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports which are incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

### ERISA MATTERS

The following is a summary of certain considerations associated with the purchase of the security, holding and, to the extent relevant, disposition of the security by an employee benefit plan subject to Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), a plan described in Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), including an individual retirement account ("IRA") or a Keogh plan, a plan subject to provisions under applicable federal, state, local, non-U.S. or other laws or regulations that are similar to the provisions of Title I of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code ("Similar Laws") and any entity whose underlying assets include "plan assets" by reason of any such employee benefit or retirement plan's investment in such entity (each of which we refer to as a "Plan"). Any fiduciary or other Plan investor considering

whether to purchase the securities with Plan Assets should determine whether such purchase is consistent with its fiduciary duties and whether such purchase would constitute or result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA and/or Section 4975 of the Code. We and certain of our affiliates may each be considered a Party in Interest with respect to many employee benefit plans. Prohibited transactions within the meaning of ERISA or the Code may arise, for example, if the offered securities are acquired by a pension or other employee benefit plan with respect to which we or any of our affiliates is a service provider (or otherwise is a Party in Interest), unless such offered securities are acquired pursuant to an exemption for transactions effected on behalf of such plan by a "qualified professional asset manager" or pursuant to any other available exemption. Accordingly, any fiduciary or other Plan investor considering whether to purchase or hold a security should consult with its counsel regarding the availability of exemptive relief under Department of Labor Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption 96-23 (relating to transactions determined by "in-house asset managers"), 95-60 (relating to transactions involving insurance company general accounts), 91-38 (relating to transactions involving bank collective investment funds), 90-1 (relating to transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts) or 84-14 (relating to transactions determined by independent "qualified professional asset managers") or any other statutory or administrative prohibited transaction exemption. A purchaser of a security should be aware, however, that even if the conditions specified in one or more of the above-referenced exemptions are met, the scope of the exemptive relief provided by the exemption might not cover all acts which might be construed as prohibited transactions. In any event, each purchaser or holder of a security or any interest therein will be deemed to have represented by its purchase and holding thereof that either (i) it is not a Plan or acting on behalf of a Plan or acquiring the security with the Plan Assets or (ii) the acquisition and holding of the security is exempt pursuant to one or more foregoing prohibited transaction exemptions issued by the Department of Labor or another applicable statutory or administrative exemption.

TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH TREASURY DEPARTMENT CIRCULAR 230, HOLDERS OF THE SECURITIES TO BE OFFERED UNDER THE PROSPECTUS FORMING PART OF THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT: (A) ANY DISCUSSION OF UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAX ISSUES IN THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT IS NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE RELIED UPON, AND CANNOT BE RELIED UPON, BY HOLDERS OF SUCH SECURITIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON SUCH HOLDERS UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE; (B) SUCH DISCUSSION IS INCLUDED HEREIN BY ALLSTATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROMOTION OR MARKETING (WITHIN THE MEANING OF CIRCULAR 230) BY ALLSTATE OF THE SECURITIES TO BE OFFERED HEREBY; AND (C) HOLDERS OF SUCH SECURITIES SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR.

### **General Fiduciary Matters**

ERISA and the Code, impose certain duties on persons who are fiduciaries of a Plan subject to Title I of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (an "ERISA Plan") and prohibit certain transactions involving the assets of an ERISA Plan with its fiduciaries or other interested parties. In general, under ERISA and the Code, any person who exercises any discretionary authority or control over the administration of such an ERISA Plan or the management or disposition of the assets of such an ERISA Plan, or who renders investment advice for a fee or other compensation to such an ERISA Plan, is generally considered to be a fiduciary of the ERISA Plan. Plans that are governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA), certain church plans (as defined in Section 3(33) of ERISA or Section 4975(g)(3) of the Code) and non-U.S. plans (as described in Section 4(b)(4) of ERISA) are not subject to the requirements of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (but may be subject to similar prohibitions under Similar Laws).

In considering the purchase, holding and, to the extent relevant, disposition of the securities to be offered under this prospectus with a portion of the assets of a Plan, a fiduciary should determine whether the investment is in accordance with the documents and instruments governing the Plan and the applicable provisions of ERISA, the Code or any Similar Law relating to a fiduciary's duties to the Plan including, without limitation, the prudence, diversification, delegation of control and prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA, the Code and any other applicable Similar Laws.

#### **Prohibited Transaction Issues**

Section 406 of ERISA prohibits ERISA Plans from engaging in specified transactions involving "plan assets" with persons or entities who are "parties in interest," within the meaning of Section 3(14) of ERISA, and Section 4975 of the Code imposes an excise tax on certain "disqualified persons," within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code, who engage in similar transactions, in each case unless an exemption is available. A party in interest or disqualified person who engages in a non-exempt prohibited transaction may be subject to excise taxes and other penalties and liabilities under ERISA and the Code. In addition, the fiduciary of an ERISA Plan that engages in such a non-exempt prohibited transaction may be subject to penalties and liabilities under ERISA and the Code. In the case of an IRA, the occurrence of a prohibited transaction could cause the IRA to lose its tax-exempt status.

We or the underwriters may be parties in interest or disqualified persons with respect to ERISA Plans and the purchase and/or holding of any of the securities to be offered hereby by an ERISA Plan with respect to which the issuer, the underwriters or a guarantor (or certain of our or their affiliates) is considered a party in interest or a disgualified person may constitute or result in a direct or indirect prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA and/or Section 4975 of the Code, unless the investment is acquired and is held in accordance with an applicable statutory, class or individual prohibited transaction exemption. In this regard, the U.S. Department of Labor has issued prohibited transaction class exemptions, or "PTCEs," that may apply to the acquisition and holding of the securities. These class exemptions include, without limitation, PTCE 84-14 respecting transactions determined by independent qualified professional asset managers, PTCE 90-1 respecting insurance company pooled separate accounts, PTCE 91-38 respecting bank collective investment funds, PTCE 95-60 respecting life insurance company general accounts and PTCE 96-23 respecting transactions determined by in-house asset managers. In addition, Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code each provides a limited exemption, commonly referred to as the "service provider exemption," from the prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code for certain transactions between an ERISA Plan and a person that is a party in interest and/or a disqualified person (other than a fiduciary or an affiliate that, directly or indirectly, has or exercises any discretionary authority or control or renders any investment advice with respect to the assets of any ERISA Plan involved in the transaction) solely by reason of providing services to the Plan or by relationship to a service provider, provided that the ERISA Plan receives no less, nor pays no more, than adequate consideration. There can be no assurance that all of the conditions of any such exemptions will be satisfied at the time that the securities are acquired by a purchaser, or thereafter, if the facts relied upon for utilizing a prohibited transaction exemption change.

Moreover, because the purchase and/or holding of the securities may be deemed to be an indirect extension of credit between an investor and Allstate, no security may be purchased or held by any Plan if we or any of our affiliates (i) has investment or administrative discretion with respect to the "plan assets" used to effect such purchase or (ii) has authority or responsibility to give, or regularly gives, investment advice with respect to such "plan assets," for a fee and pursuant to an agreement or understanding that such advice (x) will serve as a primary basis for investment decisions with respect to such "plan assets," and (y) will be based on the particular investment needs of such Plan.

Because of the foregoing, the securities to be offered hereby should not be acquired or held by any person investing "plan assets" of any Plan, unless such acquisition and holding will not constitute a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code or similar violation of any applicable Similar Laws for which there is no applicable statutory, regulatory or administrative exemption.

### Representation

Each purchaser and holder of a security to be offered under this prospectus will be deemed to have represented and warranted that either (i) it is not a Plan, such as an IRA, and no portion of the assets used to acquire or hold the security constitutes assets of any Plan or (ii) the purchase and holding of a note will not constitute a prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code or similar violation under any applicable Similar Laws for which there is no applicable statutory, regulatory or administrative exemption.

The foregoing discussion is general in nature and is not intended to be all-inclusive. Due to the complexity of these rules and the penalties that may be imposed upon persons involved in non-exempt prohibited transactions, it is particularly important that fiduciaries or other persons considering purchasing the security on behalf of, or with the assets of, any Plan, consult with their counsel regarding the potential applicability of ERISA, Section 4975 of the Code and any Similar Laws to such investment and whether an exemption would be applicable to the purchase and holding of the security. The acquisition, holding and, to the extent relevant, disposition of the securities by or to any Plan is in no respect a representation by us or any of our affiliates or representatives that such an investment meets all relevant legal requirements with respect to investments by such Plans generally or any particular plan, or that such an investment is appropriate for Plans generally or any particular Plan.

## **The Allstate Corporation**

## **LEOPARDS** \*

## Each representing a 1/1,000th Interest in a Share of Fixed Rate Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock

### PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

December 2, 2013

## **Incapital LLC**

The Incapital LEOPARDS program provides for the Long Execution of Preferred and Related Debt Securities

\*